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highly specialised products made of rubber in the Industrial
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Semperit faced difficult framework conditions in the
past year. In the Industrial Sector, we met the challenges
and further expanded our market position. In contrast, the business
development in the Medical Sector fell short of our expectations.
Here, we paved the way for a realignment of our business.
In the Annual Report 2016, we would like to show what
we have done to achieve our strategic goals and
what our plans for the future look like.
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Highlights 2016

Ql

e Good order situation despite ongoing difficult e Industrial Sector with further increase in revenue
market environment and market share gains

e Further increases in sales and profitability in the e Sempermed starts cost-cutting programme
Industrial Sector e Dividend payment of EUR 1.20 per share

e Healthy demand development for Sempermed in Europe

e Sempermed is awarded the European innovation e Semperit starts World Class Manufacturing Programme
prize for anti-allergenic surgical gloves e Capacity expansion of Sempermed in Malaysia is

e Volume growth in all industrial segments continued

e Successful market entry of Semperit Profiles in the USA e Annual results impacted by one-off effects due

to joint venture termination
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Key performance figures

in EUR million 2016" Change restazt(e)j:lg 2014¥ 2013 2012 20114
Revenue 852.4 -6.8% 914.7 858.3 906.3 828.6 820
EBITDA 77.9 -19.0% 96.2 101.9 132.5 108.7 110
EBITDA margin 9.1% -1.4 PP 10.5% 11.9% 14.6% 13.1% 13.4%
EBIT 27.3 -59.1% 66.7 63.8 87.8 72,5 80.4
EBIT margin 3.2% -4.1 PP 7.3% 7.4% 9.7% 8.8% 9.8%
Earnings after tax -8.8 - 46.4 37.8 54.9 46.2 51.8
Earnings per share (EPS)”, in EUR -0.43 - 2.26 1.85 2.65 2.25 2.52
Gross cash flow 48.1 -13.7% 55.7 89.9 116.2 85.6 89.4
Return on equity -2.7% -15.5 PP 12.8% 8.6% 13.3% 11.4% 13.6%
Balance sheet key figures
2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated" 20142 2013 2012 20113
Balance sheet total 1,034.5 +10.3% 937.8 826.3 852.1 824.5 616.7
Equity® 329.3 -9.3% 363.3 443.8 411.5 406.2 3794
Equity ratio 31.8% -6.9 PP 38.7% 53.7% 48.3% 49.3% 61.5%
Investments in tangible and
intangible assets 65.1 -9.4% 71.8 67.4 49.7 41.2 45.1
Employees (at balance sheet
date) 6,974 -1.1% 7,053 6,888 10,276 9,577 8,025
Sector and segment key figures
2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated? 2014% 2013 2012 20114
Industrial Sector = Semperflex + Sempertrans + Semperform
Revenue 506.4 -2.8% 521.0 477.5 471.5 4451 448.5
EBITDA 89.5 -4.4% 93.6 88.0 90.1 80.2 73.2
EBIT 70.0 -9.4% 77.2 66.2 67.7 58.2 53.5
Semperflex
Revenue 202.3 -0.5% 203.4 202.1 186.1 180.6 186.9
EBITDA 48.0 +4.1% 46.1 48.5 41.5 38.6 35.2
EBIT 39.5 +3.4% 38.2 36.8 29.7 27.6 24.5
Sempertrans
Revenue 148.4 -10.0% 164.9 146.4 154.5 143.8 147.0
EBITDA 15.9 -31.5% 23.2 20.9 23.9 21.2 14.4
EBIT 12.1 -39.0% 19.9 16.8 19.4 16.0 10.8
Semperform
Revenue 155.7 +1.9% 152.8 129.0 130.8 120.7 114.6
EBITDA 25.6 +5.1% 24.3 18.6 24.7 20.4 23.6
EBIT 18.3 -4.2% 19.1 12.7 18.6 14.6 18.2
Medical Sector = Sempermed
Revenue 346.0 -12.1% 393.7 380.8 434.9 383.5 3715
EBITDA 6.6 -77.6% 29.4 33.5 58.7 41.5 44.4
EBIT -23.9 - 17.2 17.6 36.6 27.6 344

" Values adjusted for one-off effects, see table on page 49 in this report.

2 2015 values restated, see page 96f. in this report (foreign currency restatement).

3 2014 values restated, see page 90f. of annual report 2015 (joint venture restatement).
42011 values restated (see annual report 2012, notes 2.18).

9 Attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding.
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Foreword of the Management Board

The past months were dominated by
important strategic decisions and a
challenging market environment for
Semperit. In the Industrial Sector, the
weak economic development caused
partially significant declines in demand
among many of our customers. Semperit
developed better than the market, which
was possible because we further expan-
ded our global presence and gained
market shares through good production
and sales performances in important
regions. The Medical Sector was
increasingly impacted by high margin
pressure and one-off effects. We reacted
to this unsatisfying situation by imple-
menting a comprehensive programme
of measures to enhance profitability. In
mid-January 2017, we agreed to termi-
nate almost all joint business activities
with our Thai joint venture partner.
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Thom;s Fahnemann

Chairman of the Management Board

Industrial Sector:

better than the market

Low raw material prices and a global
reluctance to make investments had

an impact on the industrial sector again
in 2016. Under these conditions, it is
particularly positive that we achieved
volume growth in almost all industrial
segments and were able to further
strengthen our market position. We
continued to focus on the expansion
of our production capacities as well as
intensive sales and marketing activities,

which enabled us to utilise all production

locations well. In the Semperform
segment, we took an important step

in growth by entering the American
market. As a result, we clearly developed
better than the market, although we
could not fully escape the noticeable
downturn in demand particularly in

the second half of the year. The related
price pressure and the changed pro-
duct mix due to the demand situation
caused lower revenue and earnings
contributions.

Realignment in the Medical Sector

In the Medical Sector, the unsatisfying
price situation in the global glove market
made our business activities more
difficult. Furthermore, the Sempermed
segment was burdened by a conflict
with our Thai joint venture partner and
start-up costs relating to the capacity
expansion in Malaysia.

Therefore, it was all the more important
that the agreement created the neces-
sary conditions for a termination of the
Thai joint venture to realign our glove
business. Sempermed will now focus on
the attractive core markets of Europe

Foreword of the Management Board

-~

[

v _
St R

i
1
Richard Ehrenfeldner
Member of the Management Board
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and North America. We are the only
company in the market to combine a
strong brand with excellent customer
service and regional warehouses. We
will consistently continue the capacity
expansion of our glove factory in
Malaysia. As of the end of 2017, we will
operate a glove production of roughly
the same size as five years ago, when
we had 50% with the joint venture Siam
Sempermed — with the difference that
we now own almost 100%.

Continuation of the

growth strategy

The challenging market environment
as well as the targeted termination of
almost all joint ventures with our Thai
partner are clearly reflected in our
consolidated financial statements for
2016. However, in 2017 the positive
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one-off effects will be significantly higher
than the negative one-off effects of
2016. The cash-based inflow from the
expected joint venture transaction will
probably be around 200 million US
dollars before taxes. This will strengthen
our capital base and promote invest-
ments for further growth.

Achieving our strategic objectives
continues to be the top priority of our
activities. As a global company, it is our
goal to utilise the opportunities arising
from our Group's international orientati-
on and to react flexibly to regional
market developments. We continue to
focus consistently on quality and top
performance in all company segments.
We want to grow primarily organically
and therefore continue our investment
programme. For 2017, we plan capital

Frank Gumbinger
Chief Financial Officer

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

expenditures of around EUR 80-90
million after a total of around EUR 300
million in the past five years. The
focus is on the expansion of the hose
production in Odry (Czech Republic),

the conveyor belts in Betchatéw (Poland)

and the profile production in Germany
as well as on further capacity increase
in Malaysia.

In 2016, we laid crucial foundations for
the future. Therefore, we would like

to thank all employees for their great
commitment and their performance in
a challenging environment. Our thanks
also go to our customers and partners
as well as to all shareholders and
financial partners for their confidence
in our company.

We managed to position Semperit
well in a difficult market environment.
The mega trends such as population
growth, urbanisation and rising raw
material and energy demand as well
as increasing global wealth, which are
so important for our business, are in
full effect despite current instabilities
with regard to politics and the global
economy. These trends are the basis
for our future growth activities. In the
short term, however, we cannot see
any immediate improvement of the
general economic development. There
is hope, however, because towards the
end of 2016, there were first signs of
recovery of the commodity markets.
Therefore, we are cautiously optimistic

Michele Melchiorre
Chief Technical Officer

market with a delay. In addition, we
have a very good order situation, so
that further volume increases are only
possible after completion of further
capacity expansions. We consider this
evidence and motivation to continue
our investment programme at full force
because with our strategy we are on
the right track to utilise growth oppor-
tunities in the best possible way.

Vienna, 9 March 2017

that we have left the economic low point
in our sales markets behind us. In 2017,
we will only profit from it to a limited
extent, because increasing raw material
prices can only be passed on to the
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Our business is strongly driven by global mega trends. Population
growth, urbanisation and a hunger for raw materials and energy
as well as growing prosperity in developing countries are leading
to an increasing demand for Semperit products.

PEeReYY | —o@

33% population growth 30% increase
by 2050 in energy demand

by 2035
By 2050, 9.7 billion people will be
living on earth. For the year 2100, Energy demand is constantly rising.
the United Nations even estimate a In 2035, around 30% more energy than
world population of 11.2 billion. today will be consumed worldwide.

—

66% share of the urban
population in 2050

0o
00000

In approximately 30 years, two thirds
of all people will be living in urban
areas — currently it is little more than
half. Primarily megacities in Asia, Africa
and South America will be growing.

Strong market position in markets driven by mega trends

For Semperit these mega trends represent great growth potential. More people, increasing wealth and higher hygiene

requirements and investments in the health system involve a rising demand for gloves. At the same time, growing cities

and the ongoing industrialisation of agriculture propel the construction industry and engineering — which results in

more demand for our hoses, handrails or window profiles. In turn, our conveyor belt business profits from the accompanying

raw material and energy consumption. With our segments, we have strong market positions to successfully benefit from

these mega trends.

Economic development

The Medical Sector is largely independent of economic conditions while the
Industrial Sector is more sensitive to them. Therefore, the recent weak economic
development has led to a generally challenging market

environment for our conveyor belts, hydraulic hoses
or handrails. In turn, demand developed largely stably
and irrespective of worldwide economic trends in

the glove business. An intense competition, however,
has caused considerable price pressure in the

C ) Medical Sector.

Demand for
examination m
gloves

per person and year

10-20 25-30 100 160-170
Asia

South America Europe USA
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We have set clear goals for 2020: We will grow profitably by
opening new markets and will become a true global player.
To achieve this, we are striving for the highest quality of
our products and excellence in our services. Therefore, our
business is characterised by high customer orientation
and innovation power. A high-performance corporate
organisation is also the basis for an attractive profitability

of the group.

Global Player

We are striving for double-digit
volume growth on average as well
as attractive earnings margins. It is
our goal to continue our growth
course and enhance our presence
outside of existing regions. As a
global company, we supply and
service our customers around the
world. Consequently, we are able
to react flexibly to regional market
developments and to seize oppor-
tunities that arise from our inter-
national focus.

Business
Excellence

Both internally and externally, we

will consistently focus the Semperit
Group on quality and excellence and
become our industry’s best producer
in each case by tapping cost potential.
We want to grow globally and offer
our customers worldwide an adequate
added value. In this effort, a global
company structure with highest
professional and management
competences on all continents

is decisive for our success.

Innovation and
customer focus

Customer benefit is our focus to
remain the first-choice partner for our
customers. We will secure our leading
role in process innovations in the
industry and further expand our
development power for new products.
Thus, we will continue to be successful
in international competition in the
future, differentiate ourselves from our
competitors and continue to grow.

At the same time, we commit ourselves
to sustainable growth and our respon-
sibility for future generations.

Profitable growth

The basis for our further growth is a solid balance sheet structure, stable cash
flow generation and secured and cost-effective financing. This way, we will be able

to finance our investment programme and offer our shareholders an attractive

dividend policy.
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Especially in economically challenging times, it is our task
to consistently work on long-term success. In the Industrial
Sector, we have held the course despite a strong economic
headwind. In the Medical Sector, we have paved the way

for realignment.

I

Revenue and
earnings development

In 2016, we generated revenues of
EUR 852 million. At EUR 83 million,
adjusted EBITDA was below the prior-
year value. In the Industrial Sector, we
generated significantly positive con-
tributions to earnings again. However,
we were unable to offset the develop-
ment in the Medical Sector, which was
weaker than expected and impacted
by one-off effects.

Investing
in the future

In the past year we invested
EUR 65 million in our production
facilities. In all segments, capacities
were enhanced - from the glove
production in Malaysia and the
hose production in the Czech
Republic to

the expansion

of the profile

production at

Semperit Profiles

in Germany.

Solid performance
in the Industrial Sector

In a persistently difficult market
environment we have shown a solid
operational development in the
Industrial Sector. Despite declining
market developments, we increased
our sales volume and gained market
shares with a strong production and
sales performance.

Realignment
in the Medical Sector

On January 18, 2017, we reached an
agreement with Sri Trang-Agro Industry
Public Co Ltd for the termination of all
joint business activities. The agreement
provides for the acquisition of the sales
company Sempermed USA as well as
production companies of the Industrial
Sector, among other things. Sri Trang
will take over the glove production of
Siam Sempermed Corporation (SSC)

in Thailand, which has been operated
jointly to date. In addition, we will
receive a compensation payment of
USD 167.5 million as well as a dividend
of USD 51 million from SSC. In case of
a successful closing of the transaction,
the pending arbitration and civil
proceedings will be settled by mutual
consent. With this, we have laid the
foundations for a realignment of our
glove business.

Advancing
internationalisation

We further improved our global
presence and gained market shares
in important regions by a good
production and sales performance.
We founded a sales company for
our conveyor belts in the USA

and managed to enter the market
for window and door profiles.

25—
Award of the

Earto Innovation Prize

Together with our research partner
Polymer Competence Center Leoben,
we have been awarded one of the
most important innovation prizes in
the EU for the Sempermed® Syntegra
UV, the first anti-allergenic surgical
glove worldwide.
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Outlook
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We want to grow and be the first-choice partner for our
customers. We are realising a number of initiatives to

achieve this.

Better than
the market

We want to outperform our com-
petitors again, expand our global
presence and gain market shares.

In this process, we are concentrating
on the globalisation of our success
story with a focus on the expansion
of our industrial activities in America.

Solid financial
key figures

We want to grow with a sense of
proportion and continue to maintain
our solid financial basis. Our solid
equity ratio will be maintained and
our debt ratio improved. With a
long-term attractive dividend
policy, we will create

the right balance

between shareholder
remuneration on

the one hand and

investments on

the other.

Driving innovation

Our strength is the development

of new products. We will continue

to focus on innovation to successfully
differentiate ourselves in an interna-
tional comparison. Revolutionary
window profiles, a new spiral hose

and our ultra-light medical examination
glove “Sempercare Velvet” are just

the beginning.

Persistent
capacity expansion

With the further capacity expansion,
we create the foundation for further
growth in all segments. With the
construction of one of the most
modern production plants for gloves
in Malaysia, we set an important
milestone for Sempermed. In addition,
we will expand our production
capacities in the Industrial Sector for
hoses in Odry, Czech Republic, for
conveyor belts in Betchatéw, Poland,
as well as for window and door
profiles in Germany.

Sempermed
Full focus on our
own business

With the targeted termination of the
joint ventures in Thailand, we create the
necessary conditions for a successful
future in the Medical Sector. After

the closing, our focus will be on

the development of our own glove
business in our core markets in Europe
and America. Efficiency enhancements
and cost savings will counteract the
unsatisfying earnings situation as well
as the price pressure

in the glove market.
Capacity expansion
in Malaysia
secures our
growth on

the production
side.

©

World Class
Manufacturing

With the introduction of World Class
Manufacturing, we focus on integra-
ting all employees for a continuous
improvement on all levels and commit
ourselves to the long-term goal to be
completely accident-free. We want to
avoid waste and extra consumption
and ensure resource-efficient and
sustainable manufacturing of quality
products. The project was launched
in the main factory in Wimpassing,
Austria, in the fourth quarter of

2016. In 2017, the global roll-out

is scheduled to take place step by
step in all factories.
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The Semperit Group is a
globally leading
industrial corporation.
The tradition of the
company with highly
specialised rubber
products dates back to
1824. With its Industrial
and Medical Sectors, the
Semperit Group has a
leading position in
international markets.

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Corporate profile

Semperit Group at a glance

For more than 190 years, the publicly listed Semperit AG Holding has been a globally leading provider
of quality products of the rubber industry. The internationally-oriented group develops, produces and
sells in more than 100 countries highly specialised products for the Medical and Industrial sectors.

The Semperit Group employs around 7,000 people and operates 22 production facilities in 12
countries on three continents. Using its own distribution network in Asia, Europe, North and South
America as well as Australia, Semperit products are sold globally in the business-to-business field.
The group’s most important product categories include examination, protective and surgical gloves,
hydraulic and industrial hoses, conveyor belts, escalator handrails, construction profiles, cable car
rings, ski foils and products for railway superstructures.

Vision & company strategy

The Semperit Group pursues an ambitious growth strategy. In both the Industrial and the Medical
Sector, market opportunities are utilised actively for further internationalisation and regional diversifi-
cation. Semperit focuses primarily on organic growth, while targeted acquisitions within the range of
the existing business portfolio round off the growth strategy. The success of the Semperit Group is
based on a strict focus on customer and market demands combined with highest technological com-
petence and distinct innovation power.

Semperit has a clear vision for 2020. By the end of the decade Semperit wants to
* be a globally leading supplier of medical and technical rubber products,

e offer its customers high-quality solutions and be their partner of first choice,

e create sustainable value for all stakeholders and employees and

e distinguish itself by excellence and efficiency in all fields of activity.

Derived from this vision, three specific strategic core targets have been defined for the Group:
* A true global player

e Business excellence

* Innovation & customer focus

A true global player: Semperit wants to be a truly global company by 2020. Therefore, the Sem-
perit Group strives for an enhancement of its position as a global player in the coming years, obtain-
ing a leading position in all core segments. This will allow Semperit to react flexibly to regional mar-
ket developments and take advantage of opportunities from the international orientation.

Business excellence: In order to grow profitably, Semperit strives for the highest quality of prod-
ucts and excellence of services. Therefore, Semperit constantly works on cost potential and the
creation of a high-performance corporate organisation. By 2020, Semperit wants to be among the
best producers in its industries in operational terms (“best in class”).

Innovation & customer focus: Semperit plans to further expand its strength in the development of
new products and its proximity to the customers. A strong local presence ensures high customer
proximity and a competitive product portfolio that is tailored to the demands of local markets. Sem-
perit wants to consolidate its leading role in process innovations.
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A balanced business portfolio is essential for the stability of the Semperit Group: While Sempermed's
successful global position in the growth markets for examination, protective and surgical gloves has a
stabilising effect on the business, demand in the industrial segments is exposed to varying levels of
cyclical influence and the associated growth opportunities. The industrial segments are characterised
by higher profitability and dynamics compared with the Medical Sector, due to a high degree of
specialisation and the successful development of attractive niche markets.

Semperit combines the region’s local roots with their global focus. For employees, the Semperit
Group is a reliable and loyal employer that promotes both individual perspectives and entrepreneuri-
al thinking. In addition to its customer and employee focus, Semperit is explicitly committed to profit
orientation. This is the only way the company can finance its growth targets, expand its global market
positions and ensure its competitiveness in the long term.

Structure of Semperit Group
The Semperit Group's operating business comprises the Industrial Sector, with the Semperflex, Sem-
pertrans and Semperform segments, and the Medical Sector, with the Sempermed segment.

Industrial Sector

In the Industrial Sector, Semperit makes valuable contributions to the technical infrastructure and has
a leading position in international markets. The Semperflex, Sempertrans and Semperform segments
benefit from the growth in industrialisation around the world, the associated need for energy and raw
materials as well as the necessary investments in the infrastructure.

Semperflex: Megatrends, product and service portfolio

The Semperflex segment develops, produces and sells hydraulic hoses, industrial hoses as well as
elastomer and wear-resistant sheeting worldwide. Manufacturing in the production sites in Austria,
the Czech Republic, Italy, China and Thailand is based on the highest quality standards. Semperflex
plans to strengthen its leading position by continuously expanding the capacities and further
strengthening its presence in the growth markets.

The hydraulic and industrial hoses produced in the Semperflex segment are used in the construc-
tion and transport industry, in mining as well as agricultural machinery such as tractors, combines and
harvesters. Therefore demand depends particularly on the extent of infrastructural investments, the
prosperity of the mining and agricultural sectors as well as the advancement process in growth coun-
tries.

Semperflex’s largest business unit is the Hydraulic Hose unit. Its hoses are used for the transmis-
sion of pressure and energy in powerful, heavy-duty machinery such as excavators and cranes. The
Industrial Hoses unit covers a broad range of hose applications for industrial and technical require-
ments. Elastomer and wear-resistant sheeting is a further element of Semperflex’s business. Elasto-
mer sheeting is primarily sold to punching companies and technical traders for producing all kinds of
seals. Wear-resistant sheeting is used for lining, among other things.

17
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Sempertrans: Megatrends, product and service portfolio

With production facilities in Poland, France, China and India, Sempertrans is one of the largest
and technologically leading manufacturers of conveyor belts worldwide. Conveyor belts are used
in mining, the steel industry, the cement industry, in power stations as well as in civil engineering
and in the transport industry, particularly for ports. Thanks to the strong presence in growth
markets, Sempertrans will continue to profit from the high demand for raw materials and energy
in the future.

A key factor influencing business in the Sempertrans segment is the global demand for raw
materials extracted by mining and transported via conveyor belts. Falling prices for raw materials
such as copper, iron ore and coal have a dampening effect on investment plans. On the other
hand, when the prices of raw materials are low, there is a tendency to increase output, which
positively impacts the performance of the spare parts business with conveyor belts.

The Sempertrans product range comprises both textile and steel-cord conveyor belts and is there-
fore optimally aligned to the requirements of the respective applications. Their core product charac-
teristics include high resistance to abrasion, heat and oil, coupled with excellent high-strength per-
formance. Sempertrans has extensive technical expertise and a global Application Engineering Team
to support customers with the design and configuration of conveyor belts.

Semperform: product and service portfolio

Semperform is one of the leading European manufacturers of moulded and extrusion products made
of rubber and plastic. The comprehensive product portfolio comprises escalator handrails, elastomer
and insulation profiles for windows, doors and facades, vibration-reducing foils for skis and snow-
boards, custom moulded parts and rubber rings for ropeways. Tailored products are manufactured at
production sites in Austria, Germany, Hungary and China.

The Semperform segment operates mainly in Europe and is successfully positioned in market
niches. The success of its most important product group, window profiles, depends on investments in
infrastructure and business trends in the construction industry. Demand for products of the Semperit
Engineered Solutions unit is dependent on trends in the construction and industrial sectors as well as
railway superstructure activity. Business in the Handrails unit is influenced mainly by infrastructure
investment and urbanisation.

The Construction Profile unit is Semperform’s largest business area and was further strength-
ened in 2015 by acquiring the German profile manufacturer Leeser. With its high-quality product
portfolio Leeser perfectly complements the previous Semperform business with regard to seals
for windows, doors and facades. Customer-specific injection moulding items for sealing and
absorbing purposes are included in the Semperit Engineered Solutions unit. The Handrails unit
manufactures escalator handrails.
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Medical Sector

The Medical Sector benefits from the continuous increase in the demand for examination, protective
and surgical gloves, which is largely independent of economic growth. With its high-quality
Sempermed gloves the Semperit Group holds a leading position in international markets.

Sempermed: Megatrends, product and service portfolio

Sempermed is one of the leading manufacturers of examination and surgical gloves in the medical
area as well as of protective gloves in the industrial area. Sempermed’s research centre constantly
develops and tests new products in close cooperation with users and experts. Sempermed has
produced gloves in top quality for more than 95 years and as the global technology leader has set
standards in quality and innovation. Gloves are produced at Sempermed sites in Austria and Ma-
laysia as well as in Thailand (joint venture).

Demand for examination, protective and surgical gloves is oriented towards global megatrends
such as the increasing health and hygiene requirements. The forecast increase in world population
to around 9.6 billion people by 2050 as well as the generally higher demand for medical products
and services due to the demographic change are of importance.

In recent years, the global demand for examination, protective and surgical gloves has increased
at an average rate between 5% and 6% annually. Worldwide annual consumption is currently approx-
imately 190 billion units for examination and protective gloves (single counting) and 2.0 billion units
for surgical gloves. In addition, our business depends to a significant extent on the development of
raw material prices and a flexible management of production and pricing.

Semperit Group
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Sectors Industrial Medical
Segments Semperflex Sempertrans Semperform Sempemed
Product groups
and market positions .
o o o ]
Hydraulic hoses Conveyor belts Handrails Examination and
# 3 globally/ One of the world-wide Globally protective gloves

leader in hose only leading suppliers leading position

Industrial hoses Additional products
#2-3 Cable car rings and ski foils:
in Europe leading position

Window profiles
European player

Globally leading position

Surgical gloves
Leading position
in Europe




20

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

s e
SEMPERMED
1 Vienna, Austria
Marketing and sales office
2 Wimpassing, Austria
Technology and innovation centre,
production of surgical gloves
4 Sopron, Hungary
Packaging of surgical gloves,
quality control
7 Waldbéckelheim, Germany SEMPERFLEX
Sales offices
10 Allershausen, Germany* 2 Wimpassing, Austria
Sterilisation of Technology centre, production
surgical gloves of steel-reinforced spiral hydraulic
24 Shanghai, China hoses, mandrel built industrial hoses
Quality management and sales office 5 Odry, Czech Republic
22 Bangkok, Thailand Production of long-length
Regional office industrial hoses, steel-reinforced
25 Surat Thani, Thailand* wire braided hydraulic and pressure
Production of powder-free washer hoses (Europe’s largest
nitrile and latex exam and manufacturer of hydraulic and industrial
protective gloves hoses), mandrel build hoses, Hydraulic
26 Hat Yai, Thailand* Hose Testing Centre
Production of powder-free 6 Rovigo, Italy
nitrile and latex exam and Production of industrial hoses
protective gloves for special applications
27 Kamunting, Malaysia 7 Waldbéckelheim, Germany
Production of latex and Sales of hydraulic hoses in
nitrile exam gloves Germany, expert centre for
28 Nilai, Malaysia complete high-pressure hose
Production of porcelain systems
dip mouldings for 18 Mumbai, India
glove production Sales office
29 Singapore 24 Shanghai, China
Segment management, sales office Production of steel-reinforced wire
and supply chain management braided hydraulic and pressure washer
33 Bridgeton, New Jersey, USA hoses for the Chinese market, Hydraulic
Distribution centre Hose Testing Centre
34 Clearwater, Florida, USA 26 Hat Yai, Thailand
Sales office and distribution centre Production of steel-reinforced
35 Coppell, Texas, USA wire braided hydraulic, spiral hydraulic
Distribution centre and pressure washer hoses (one of the
36 Ontario, California, USA largest hose plants in Asia), Hydraulic
Distribution centre Hose Testing Centre
3 Budapest, Hungary 29 Singapore
6 Rovigo, Italy Sales office
16 Istanbul, Turkey 32 Fair Lawn, New Jersey, USA
38 Santiago, Chile Sales office

Corporate Profile

SEMPERTRANS
1 Vienna, Austria
Segment management and sales office
2 Wimpassing, Austria
Technology and innovation centre
6 Rovigo, ltaly
Sales office
9 Moers, Germany

Application engineering
centre, sales office
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Betchatéw, Poland

Sales and production of heavy-
duty steel and textile cord belts

as well as cables for conveyor belts,
development centre

Warsaw, Poland

Sales office
Levallois, France

Sales office

Argenteuil, France

Production of steel cord and
textile belts, focus on special belts
Béthune, France

Sales, installation and maintenance
of conveyor belts, warehouse

and distribution

Roha, India

Production of textile belts
Mumbai, India

Delhi, India

Kolkata, India

Chennai, India

Sales offices

Shanghai, China
Sales office

Shandong, China
Production of steel cord
and textile belts

Jakarta, Indonesia

Sales office

Mexico City, Mexico
Sales office

Santiago de Chile, Chile
Sales office

Salt Lake City, Utah, USA
Sales office

Dekatur, Georgia, USA

Sales office, customer service,
distribution centre
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41

42
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Ottawa, Canada
Sales office

Vancouver, Canada

Sales office

Somersby, NSW, Australia
Sales office

Perth, Australia

Sales office

Wimpassing, Austria
Production of handrails, plastic and
rubber moulded parts, profiles,
elastomer and wear resistant sheeting,
technology centre

Sopron, Hungary

Production of rubber injection
moulded parts

Deggendorf, Germany

Production of profiles for window

and facade construction
Hiickelhoven, Germany

Production of profiles for window

and facade construction

Dalheim, Germany

Production of profiles

for packaging industry

Levallois, France

Sales office
Birmingham, Great Britain
Sales office

24 Shanghai, China
Production and sales
of handrails

29 Singapore
Sales office

32 Fair Lawn, New Jersey, USA
Handrail splicing,
warehouse, sales office

HEADQUARTERS

1 Vi A .
Corporate headquarters
Semperit AG Holding
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Semperit is committed
to sustainable growth
and responsibility for
future generations.
Therefore, we have
made sustainability a
fundamental principle of
our company strategy.
The Semperit
Sustainability Guidelines
are available at
www.semperitgroup.com
/en/sustainability
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Sustainability

Long-term success is only feasible if we act in harmony with the environment and society. Therefore,

we have made sustainability a core principle of our company strategy. Our ethical principles, which

are explained in more detail in the Code of Conduct, are the basis for all operations. The Sustainabil-

ity Council designs and further develops current and future tasks in the area of sustainability. The

Council is comprised of managerial staff from the segments and central functions and deals with the

group-wide establishment of sustainability management. The Guidelines that are valid throughout the

group as well as measures and initiatives are established for the following five key topics of the sus-

tainability strategy:

e Safety, health, environment: At Semperit, human and environmental safety is our highest priority.
We systematically protect our employees from risks.

® Resource management: We constantly enhance our resource efficiency to reduce environmental
pollution and increase profitability.

* Employees and society: We create attractive and fair working conditions. Supporting social projects
at our locations worldwide is important to us.

* Suppliers: We work with suppliers, who act in harmony with the environment and society. Thus, we
ensure sustainability along the entire supply chain.

* Innovation: We develop innovative products, processes and materials. Here we focus on highest
user benefits and environmental friendliness.

In 2016, the focus of sustainability management was on the development and expansion of the
sustainability strategy based on an extensive stakeholder survey and the definition of KPIs (key per-
formance indicators) for the different business segments. The next step will be the preparation of
external reporting in conformity with GRI (Global Reporting Initiative). It also includes an extensive
data collection in all sustainability areas that have been defined as material.

Safety, health and environment
We are aware of our special responsibility towards our employees and the environment and have a
group-wide SHE management in place. The goals of SHE (Safety, Health & Environment) are to re-
duce the risks for people and the environment on the one hand and to achieve cost savings on the
other hand by avoiding accidents and related production losses. To accomplish this, we constantly
implement appropriate measures within the framework of the SHE initiative for a continuous im-
provement of operational safety, the promotion of health and the optimisation of the environmental
performance (among other things by reducing the amount of waste and the energy consumption).
Employees participate in specialist presentations and practical exercises of safety-related and
workplace-specific training courses that are offered to improve safety. The spectrum ranges from first
aid and accident prevention to fire drills. New employees receive a detailed safety training. To avoid
accidents in the best possible way, near-accidents must be reported for identification of appropriate
countermeasures. Potential risks are identified by regular plant tours, audits and training courses.
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Certifications

All production sites of Semperit AG Holding have been certified for years according to ISO 9001 and
additionally to ISO 13485 in the Medical Sector. In the course of the implementation of the environ-
mental management standard ISO 14001" and the occupational safety standard OHSAS 180012 (in
future 1ISO 45001) in the entire Semperit Group — in accordance with the regulation for matrix certifi-
cation — audits at several sites produced positive results in 2016. In total, 20 Semperit production
sites have been certified according to ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 standards.

Resource management
We continuously strive to optimise our resource management to reduce environmental hazards and
to increase economic efficiency.

Since the company spends roughly 60% of its revenues on material and purchased services, the
economical use of resources is given particularly high priority. With its central waste-of-material
(WOM) programme, Semperit pursues the aim to continuously reduce waste, rejects and complaints
by improving the production processes. If technically and economically sensible, waste is returned to
the materials cycle by recycling. If recycling is neither possible nor sensible, combustion under con-
trolled conditions is ensured by a qualified disposal company.

Semperit's efforts in this segment are valued accordingly: In March 2016, the Shanghai Chemical
Industrial Park awarded the resource management of Semperit at the Shanghai site (Semperform
segment) with the prize for the best company with regard to efficient use of resources and high envi-
ronmental and sustainability standards.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, “World Class Manufacturing” (WCM) was introduced by a kick-off
meeting. In 2017, comprehensive training will take place for this purpose. For this, WCM will focus on
the following features:

¢ the involvement of all employees in continuous improvement on all levels,

¢ increasing workplace safety with the long-term goal to become accident-free and

¢ the avoidance of waste and excess consumption for a resource-efficient and therefore sustainable
manufacturing of quality products

Improvement of energy efficiency

There is a group-wide waste-of-energy programme (WOE) to continue reducing the energy consump-
tion occurring in particular at the production sites of the Semperit Group. In this process, Semperit
successfully implements not only training courses for the responsible use of energy, but also energy
efficiency projects in the manufacturing process and in energy conversion. These projects are organ-
ised according to the PDCA (plan, do, check and act) cycle and documented in the management
systems ISO 14001 and ISO 50001.

In Austria, the Energy Efficiency Act has been in force since 2015. For the implementation of the
legal requirements, Semperit introduced an environmental management system according to 1SO
14001 at the production site Wimpassing, Lower Austria, and combined it with an internal energy
audit. In addition, an energy management system according to ISO 50001 was implemented at the

" The international environmental management standard ISO 14001 defines requirements accepted worldwide for an
environmental management system, www.iso.org.

2 The occupational safety standard OHSAS (Occupational Health and Safety Assessment System) 18001 is the basis for a
management system for occupational safety that contains fixed standards and procedures for reasons of health protection
and accident prevention in companies, www.ohsas.org.

23



24

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Sustainability

production site Deggendorf, Germany. In October 2017, Leeser, Germany, will also be audited for
the first time according to ISO 50001.

The continuous production expansion of existing Semperit factories in 2016 made it possible to
keep energy consumption per quantity produced at approximately the same level as in previous year.
Total energy consumption increased Europe-wide from 263 GWh (gigawatt hours) in 2015 to
284 GWh in 2016. At the Asian production sites in China and Malaysia, energy consumption per
quantity produced was decreased due to energy efficiency programmes, especially in Malaysia.
However, due to the production start of the new glove factory in Malaysia, total consumption rose
from 856 GWh in 2015 to 899 GWh in 2016.

Employees and society
We take social responsibility very seriously and have committed ourselves to the highest ethical and
social standards as well as fair working conditions for employees.

Independent audits such as the audit of the Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI) prove
that these standards are lived out consistently. The Sempermed segment is a member of this business
initiative, which is committed to the improvement of working conditions along the global supply
chain. The auditing processes started in Thailand in 2014. In 2015, the audit was repeated. Since the
end of 2016, all production sites of Sempermed have been audited according to the BSCI standard.

An important component for the employees’ loyalty is an attractive and safe workplace. In 2016,
Semperit conducted the first employee survey “SPEAK UP!" - for details see also page 26.

Social responsibility

We feel connected with and obliged to the people in the regions where we operate in a special way.
Therefore, Semperit invests responsibly in the future of its sites and supports the economic develop-
ment of the respective regions. In 2016, the production capacities in the Sempermed segment in
Kamunting, Malaysia, the Semperform segment in Wimpassing, Austria, and in Deggendorf, Germa-
ny, as well as the Semperflex segment in Odry, Czech Republic, were expanded significantly.

On the occasion of the World Environment Day of the United Nations, Semperit called upon its
employees to participate in various activities on World Environment Day within the framework of the
SHE competition. For example, in the Austrian factory in Wimpassing, an Energy Day of Action took
place with speeches on the systematic reduction of energy consumption. In Malaysia, the campaign
“Go Green, Save Paper, and Save Trees” was started, which covered information on consistent recy-
cling in addition to the reduction of paper consumption. Further priorities at other sites were for
example actions on waste separation or a car-free day at the Shanghai site in China.

Moreover, Semperit employees worldwide benefit from extensive training and further educational
measures as well as from fringe benefits such as accommodation, canteens, sports facilities or medi-
cal care offers.

In addition to the financial support of local social projects, Semperit regularly donates examina-
tion gloves to charitable institutions. Since 2010, Semperit has given the amount otherwise used for
Christmas presents to the international organisation Médecins Sans Frontiéres (Doctors Without
Borders) for a mobile children’s hospital in India.
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Suppliers

With the publication of the Supplier Policy, the Semperit Group clearly documented its expecta-
tions towards its suppliers in 2015. While in the past the focus was on resource management in the
cooperation with suppliers, it has now been extended systematically to safety, health and environ-
ment, working conditions, ethics in business life as well as operational excellence. We prefer suppliers
who further develop their business in harmony with the environment and society — a demand that
Semperit also puts a focus on for itself as a basis for sustainable success.

In 2016, the Supplier Policy was provided to all active suppliers with considerable revenues. Com-
pliance with the policy was started to be examined by means of self-assessments, personal conversa-
tions, supplier visits and audits. Performance is measured using appropriate measurement parameters
(KPIs), which provide information about productivity increases and compliance with the defined
standards. Measures for verification and performance enhancement in line with the policy are current-
ly being prepared.

The further development of the supplier relationships is designed in an open dialogue. The com-
mon recognition of global standards and local norms and values supports the cooperation within the
supply chain and makes it more successful on a sustained basis.

Innovation

The development of innovative products, processes and materials plays a central role in the Semperit
Group placing the focus on maximum user benefit and environmental friendliness along the whole
supply chain. We put special emphasis on the potential effects of innovation on the environment and
people.

The core element of our innovation management is sustainability. This is based on the conviction
that truly extraordinary products distinguish themselves not only because of product quality and
performance, but because of the manufacturer’s responsible interaction with the environment and the
society. Based on the progress in technology and material science, Semperit will continuously im-
prove its processes and applications within the scope of group-wide innovation management and
monitor the progress.

In autumn 2016, Semperit and the Polymer Competence Center Leoben GmbH (PCCL) received
the European innovation award EARTO for the development of Sempermed® Syntegra UV, the first
anti-allergenic surgical glove worldwide. With the EARTO Award, the organisation recognises innova-
tions which bring substantial social or economic benefit to the EU. The Sempermed Syntegra UV is
latex- and accelerator-free and therefore anti-allergenic. In addition, the innovative production tech-
nology and the energy-efficient manufacturing process based on UV-rays were convincing. The pro-
cess is patented and has already received a number of awards.
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Professional human
resource management
that meets the current
and future needs of the
group is a high priority
for implementing the
growth strategy of the
Semperit Group. The
objective is to promote
the skills and
performance orientation
of every employee while
meeting the group’s
need for specialists and
managers.
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Responsibility for our employees

Human resources strategy

The Semperit Group has an ambitious growth strategy, which is supported by effective and modern
human resource policies. The overall goals of these policies are to position the company as an attrac-
tive employer, to implement modern management tools, to promote internationality and diversity and
to create the conditions for a performance-oriented and fair corporate culture with a clear set of values
(see www.semperitgroup.com/en/about-us/our-values). At the end of 2016, the Semperit Group em-
ployed 6,974 people worldwide, a decrease of 1.1%. For further details on the number of employees
see page 58.

Strategic areas of action

The emphasis in the Sourcing area of action is on recruiting regional talent and employer branding.
The group aims to boost diversity among both employees and managers, especially as part of career
and succession planning. There are separate development programmes and career paths for crucial
areas of expertise in the company such as technology or sales.

The focus in the Growing area of action is on management culture, organisation and employee
development and skills management. Strengthening these key elements supports the successful
further development of the Semperit Group.

In order to optimally support the group’s growth from a human resource perspective, a global Hu-
man Resources IT system was implemented in 2014. The first elements were personnel administration
and organisation management. Based on this, the Goal Setting & Performance Management process
was integrated in early 2017. Thus, an important milestone in the field of “People Management” was
achieved. Subsequently, complementary measures in the fields of “Learning & Development” as well
as "Talent Management” are planned to ensure a viable basis for the development of employees and
organisation.

As far as the Performing area of action is concerned, the Semperit Group aims to live “best prac-
tices” and thus pursues the goal of establishing a high-performance organisation that operates glob-
ally to provide its customers the greatest possible added value.

English has been chosen as the corporate language in order to facilitate integration and interac-
tion between the individual corporate units and therefore to promote the transfer of knowledge and
expertise.

First group-wide employee survey

In the last years, Semperit has experienced a major cultural change — especially with regard to how
cooperation is working. In 2016, the first group-wide employee survey “SPEAK UP!” provided a
global inventory and shall give input on which fields show improvement potential. All employees
were questioned for 14 thematic blocks — among others fair treatment, safety, communication, man-
agement, efficiency or work load. In an international benchmark comparison, Semperit scored well.
This was shown, among other topics, in “employee commitment” which amounted to 73% on a
global level. This means that more than 70% of all employees are working with a very strong com-
mitment and motivation for Semperit.

360-degree-feedback

The 360-degree feedback tool was introduced to assess management regarding the jointly defined
leadership principles. This initiative applies not only for upper and middle management but also team
leaders. The feedback process is conducted anonymously, enabling a high level of objectivity. In
addition to self-assessments by the managers themselves, direct feedback is obtained from supervi-
sors, employees and colleagues, as well as from customers and other external business partners.



Employees Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

Expatriates

The focus on growth requires investments at various locations. In order to optimally accomplish these
investments in a reasonable time frame from both a technical and organisational perspective, a sig-
nificant extent of knowledge transfer and exchange of expertise is necessary at all levels. Semperit
therefore sends employees to other locations. While only two expatriates were deployed in 2012, the
total rose to 29 in 2016. Most of these expatriates are employed in Malaysia to provide support with
the build-up of the new glove factory, among other things.

Equal opportunities

Semperit sees itself as a responsible and fair employer, and would therefore like to offer equal oppor-
tunities to every employee. Using flexible work models such as flexitime and part-time work, as well
as special parental part-time arrangements, the group aims at continuously increasing the proportion
of female employees. As a traditional industrial company with a technical focus, the share of female
employees in Austria and group-wide was somewhat more than 20% at the end of 2016 and almost
30% throughout Europe. At the end of 2016 one fourth of the Supervisory Board members were
women. There were no women in the Management Board. Overall, the share of women in manage-
ment (Management Board, Executive Committee, department heads) amounted to more than 10%.

Training and professional education

Semperit's Group management understands that the expertise and innovative strength of employees
are critical success factors for expanding the company’s market positions. The group therefore offers
an extensive training and professional education programme to teach employees the necessary
professional skills so that they are optimally prepared for their operational and strategic challenges.
As part of a comprehensive training catalogue, personal development training is also offered to,
among other things, provide employees with skills for conflict, time and target management, as well
as presentation techniques. In addition, employees have the opportunity to participate in specialized
training courses.

E-Learning

In 2015 the group launched an e-learning pilot training programme for its English language training
and selected internal initiatives. E-learning means “electronically supported learning via Intra-
net/Internet”. In 2016, the offer was expanded to six languages, whereby English at around 85% is
the language being trained most.

Apprentices

During the financial year 2016, 15 apprentices were trained in Austria. Semperit therefore offers these
young people well-founded access to the world of work, while subsequently gaining qualified special-
ists who are familiar with the group’s processes.

Joining the company and advancement at Semperit

Onboarding Academy and mentoring programme

The Onboarding Academy is a comprehensive training programme offered to new employees (ex-
perts, managers). It provides a rapid overview of the entire group, while enabling integration into the
company and international networking across all corporate divisions. In addition, technicians and
chemists are offered in-depth training with specific details on their respective areas of professional
expertise. In the course of 2017, the introduction of e-learning for individual modules of the Onboard-
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ing Academy is scheduled. The contents created for it such as videos or presentations will be available
globally to all employees on the Intranet.

To optimally integrate employees into the company, a mentoring system is used for certain em-
ployee groups. The objective is that experienced employees in their role as mentor provide advice to
young employees (the mentees).

Personal and career planning/Performance reviews

An essential component of human resources management is successor and career planning. To identi-
fy individual potential as well as to utilise it optimally, we conduct annual institutionalised perfor-
mance reviews for employees. These reviews serve to integrate and motivate employees and to
foster their identification with the company.

Talent Academy

The Semperit Talent Academy is intending to prepare future experts and managers for their respon-
sibilities in the segments and in the Holding. Selected employees complete an analysis of their poten-
tial, followed by three modules. Another Talent Academy with 22 employees was launched at the
start of 2017. Around two thirds of the participating employees came from Europe, with the remain-
der from Asia. Approximately 35% of the attendees were women.

Leadership Academy

Building on the insights obtained through the 360-degree feedback programme, key topics were
created for the Semperit Leadership Academy in order to further strengthen and optimise the leader-
ship skills of the company’s management at all levels.

Internal knowledge transfer

The Semperit Group places great importance on the exchange of knowledge and experience within
the company in order to promote cross-border and cross-departmental cooperation amid the com-
pany's growing internationalisation and diversification. International meetings of technicians, sales
employees, specialists in purchasing, human resources or finance as well as managers ensure the
desired synergistic effects. One key focus last year was the systematic knowledge exchange between
research and development fields of the segments and the structured development, documentation
and training of defined core processes in the Semperit Group. In addition, each segment conducts its
own Segment Day at least once a year so that managers and specialists are able to meet personally
and work jointly on current projects.

The company holds town hall meetings twice a year at all locations around the world. During
these meetings, members of the Management Board and other managers answer employee ques-
tions and provide first-hand information about the corporate strategy, internal programmes and
organisational changes.

Collaborations and employer branding

In order to meet the current and future need for specialists and managers, the Semperit Group sup-
ports several collaborations with technical higher education institutions, universities and technical
colleges, with the aim of attracting qualified and ambitious candidates. In addition, the group pro-
vides internships and support for numerous theses and dissertations that are relevant to the compa-
ny. By taking part in career fairs and recruitment days, Semperit represents itself as an attractive
employer with fascinating occupational fields and career opportunities.
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Investor Relations

Performance of the Semperit share
Starting from the closing price of EUR 31.10 at the end of 2015, the Semperit share decreased to less
than EUR 26 and increased as of mid-February, reaching a high of EUR 34 by the end of March. From
this point on, the share lost ground in several steps, falling to a level of around EUR 24. Since the
beginning of November, the rate increased slightly. The closing price at the end of 2016 was
EUR 25.75, a decline of 17.2% compared to the end of 2015. Considering the distributed dividend
totalling EUR 1.20, the decrease is almost 13.3%.

At the end of 2016 market capitalisation totalled EUR 530 million, compared with EUR 640 million
at the end of the previous year. The average daily trading volume of Semperit shares was
EUR 335 thousand or 12,206 units during 2016, a decrease of 39%/19% compared with 2015.
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Dividend

Semperit’s dividend policy provides for paying out approximately 50% of earnings after tax to the
shareholders — assuming continued successful performance and that no unusual circumstances occur.
As announced in the inside information of 18 January 2017, Semperit's existing dividend policy is
being reviewed for 2016 and 2017 because of one-off effects.

At the Annual General Meeting on 26 April 2017, the Management Board will propose a basic
dividend of EUR 0.70 per share. This means that EUR 14.4 million will be distributed overall. Given
the share price of EUR 25.75 as at the end of 2016, this results in a dividend yield of 2.7% after 3.9%
in 2015.

This dividend proposal is based on the assumption that there will be a closing of the joint venture
transaction. If the transaction fails to be closed, the Management Board reserves the right to propose
a resolution at the Annual General Meeting that deviates from this dividend proposal.
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Shareholder structure

Semperit AG Holding is listed with 20,573,434 no-par value bearer shares in the Prime Market of the
Vienna Stock Exchange. B & C Holding Osterreich GmbH, with 54.18% (11,145,917 shares), is the
majority owner and a long-term core shareholder. The owner of B & C Holding Osterreich GmbH,
B & C Foundation, is a private foundation which was established under Austrian law with the mission
to foster Austrian entrepreneurship. FMR Co., Inc (Fidelity Management & Research Company) holds
5%, the remaining shares are free float.

Communication with the capital market

The Semperit Group intends to provide current and potential shareholders with a complete picture of
the company'’s business performance through a transparent and prompt communications policy. This
should enable an accurate valuation of Semperit shares on the markets and facilitate a long-term
relationship of trust with both shareholders and the general public.

The Chairman of the Management Board, the Chief Financial Officer and Investor Relations
actively seek dialogue with key players in the financial markets and participated in conferences and
roadshows in European financial centres as well as in New York, Chicago and Singapore. In addition,
many institutional investors participated in meetings with the Management Board in Vienna and took
advantage of the opportunity to tour the core production facility in Wimpassing. The intensity of
Investor Relations activities is reflected, in part, in the number of analysts who regularly cover
Semperit shares: Baader Bank, Deutsche Bank, Erste Bank, Hauck & Aufhduser, HSBC, Kepler
Cheuvreux, LBBW and Raiffeisen Centrobank (RCB). The Investor Relations website plays an im-
portant role in communication. In addition to financial reports and presentations, it also provides a
share chart tool for comparing with indices and selected shares.

1.1. -

1.1.- 31.12.2015

Key figures 31.12.2016 Change restated”
Price at balance sheet date in EUR 25.75 -17.2% 31.10
Lowest price in EUR 23.71 -12.4% 27.07
Highest price in EUR 34.00 -22.6% 43.95
Market capitalisation at balance sheet date in EUR million 529.8 -17.2% 639.8
Number of shares issued in unit 20,573,434 - 20,573,434
Earnings per share (EPS)? in EUR -0.43 -119.0% 2.26
Dividend per share® in EUR 0.70 -41.7% 1.20
Average trading volume per day? in EUR thousand 335 -39.0% 549
Average traded shares per day” in unit 12,206 -19.0% 15,074

12015 values restated (see notes page 96f. in this report)
2 Attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding.
3 Proposal to the Annual General Meeting on 23 May 2017

4 single counting
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Corporate Governance Report

Austrian Corporate Governance Code

The Austrian Corporate Governance Code, a regulatory framework for the management and monitor-
ing of Austrian joint stock companies, has been established. This code contains internationally adopt-
ed, customary standards, as well as significant related regulations stipulated in the Austrian Stock
Corporation-, Stock Exchange-, and Capital Markets Acts and is based on the EU recommendations
on the tasks of supervisory board members and on the remuneration of directors as well as on the
principles encompassed in the OECD Guidelines for Corporate Governance.

The Code is aimed at ensuring a responsible management and supervision of individual compa-
nies and groups, with the goal of creating sustainable and long lasting value. The code seeks to
create a high level of transparency for all company stakeholders.

Companies voluntarily undertake to comply with the guidelines contained in the current ver-
sion of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code as amended. The version of the Corporate
Governance Code that is applicable to the year 2016 was issued in January 2015 and can be
found on the website at www.corporate-governance.at.

Statement on Corporate Governance

The Semperit Group, as an internationally operating, publicly listed company, hereby declares that it
will voluntarily observe the Austrian Corporate Governance Code and that it also intends to observe
the Code in the future, or justify any deviating behaviour. Semperit AG Holding complies with all
legally binding L-rules (Legal Requirements). Unless otherwise declared, the C-rules (Comply-or-
Explain) will be observed by the relevant bodies and the company. Explanation of the C-Rule 64:
Semperit does not have a current shareholder identification for the reporting period, so that differen-
tiation of the shareholder structure according to geographic origin and investor type is not available.

Management Board

Composition and function of the Management Board

The Management Board leads the company and consists of four members. It has full responsibility for
managing the company for the benefit of the enterprise while considering the interests of sharehold-
ers and employees as well as the public interest (L-rule 13).

The Management Board's internal rules of procedure regulate the allocation of business responsi-
bilities and the principles of cooperation between members of the Management Board. Decisions of
primary importance are taken by the Board as a whole. The Management Board itself assumes com-
munication tasks that have a significant impact on how the company is perceived by its stakeholders.
Legally binding regulations, the Articles of Association, and the internal rules of procedure for the
Management and Supervisory Board laid down by the Supervisory Board form the basis for corporate
management.

Cooperation between the Management and Supervisory Boards

The Management Board and Supervisory Board are committed to managing the company in accord-
ance with the principles of good corporate governance. This management takes place in open dis-
cussions between the Management Board and the Supervisory Board as well as within these corpo-
rate bodies. Among other things, the Management Board’s internal rules of procedure govern the
Management Board’s ongoing reporting to the Supervisory Board. They also specify a catalogue of
transactions and measures that, in addition to legal provisions, also require the Supervisory Board's
explicit authorisation. The Supervisory Board controls the Management Board and supports it in
managing the company, particularly when decisions of fundamental importance are to be made.
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The strategic direction of the company is determined in close cooperation between the Manage-
ment Board and the Supervisory Board and is discussed in Supervisory Board meetings held at

regular intervals.

Organisational structure Semperit Group

Thomas Fahnemann Frank Gumbinger Michele Melchiorre Richard Ehrenfeldner
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Chief Technical Officer
Business Sectors Procurement & Accounting Controlling Engineering & Innovation & Semperflex Special
Medical+ Logistics Maintenance Technology Asia Corp. Projects
Industrial (SAC)
Corporate Communications Tax Treasury Operational Quality
Development & Excellence Management
Strategy
Human Compliance Investor Internal Mixing Operations
Resources Relations Audit Industrial +
Medical
Risk Legal
Management
Information Opal
Technology

m Management Board mm Business Sectors mm Central functions

Corporate bodies of Semperit AG Holding: Management Board

Thomas Fahnemann
Chairman of the Management Board since 14 April 2011; previously Deputy Chairman of the Manage-
ment Board since joining the company on 1 December 2010; period of office ends on 31 December 2019
Following his studies in business administration in Mainz, Germany, Thomas Fahnemann, born in
1961, completed an Executive MBA Program at Northwestern University in Chicago. Thomas Fahne-
mann began his professional career with Hoechst AG in Frankfurt in 1983. He subsequently assumed
several executive positions in Germany and in the USA. In 1995, he was appointed Group Depart-
ment Manager for Trevira in North Carolina, USA, and starting in 1998, served as Chief Operating
Officer for KoSa in Houston, USA. In 2003, he became CEO and Chairman of the Management Board
of Lenzing AG in Austria. From 2009 to 2010, he was Chairman of the Management Board of RHI AG,
Vienna. He holds no Supervisory Board mandates in other companies that are not included in the
consolidated financial statements pursuant to C-rule 16 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.
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Frank Gumbinger
Member of the Management Board since 1 December 2016, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), period of
office ends on 31 December 2019

After completing his university degree in Business Administration in Frankfurt, Frank Gumbinger,
born in 1968, worked as an auditor and consultant with PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1996 to 1998
prior to switching to Delton AG in Bad Homburg in 1999. He held various leading positions within the
associated group companies until 2008. From 2001 to 2005 he was Head of the Corporate Develop-
ment and Strategy Department as well as Head of Controlling with ERGO-PHARM Be-
teiligungsgesellschaft mbH/Heel GmbH. Then Gumbinger transferred within the group to become
CFO of CEAG AG. Most recently, he was CFO of the Progroup AG in Landau. He holds no Superviso-
ry Board mandates in other companies that are not included in the consolidated financial statements
pursuant to C-rule 16 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.

Richard Ehrenfeldner
Member of the Management Board since 1 October 2001; member of the Management Board;
period of office ends on 31 May 2018

After concluding his studies in process engineering (chemical plant engineering) at the Graz Uni-
versity of Technology, Richard Ehrenfeldner, born in 1954, commenced his professional career in 1984
with AT&S in Leoben, where he was head of the Departments of Production and Expansion with a
particular focus on large investments in expanding production capabilities. In 1989, he moved to
Semperit AG Holding. As Technical Manager of the Sempermed segment, he was responsible for the
expansion of manufacturing facilities as well as the construction and development of new plants in
Sopron, Hungary, Hat Yai, Thailand, and Shanghai, China. He holds no Supervisory Board mandates in
other companies that are not included in the consolidated financial statements pursuant to C-rule 16
of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.

Michele Melchiorre
Member of the Management Board since 1 June 2016; Chief Technical Officer (CTO); period of office
ends on 31 May 2019

Michele Melchiorre, born in 1964, studied mechanical engineering at the prestigious Technical
University Aachen and business administration at the University of Hagen. He began his professional
career at Daimler Benz AG in 1988. In the following years, he assumed a number of management
functions in the international automotive and aviation industry — initially at the DASA / EADS Group in
Augsburg and then at DaimlerChrysler AG in Stuttgart. In 2007 he became Vice President Manufac-
turing Engineering at Fiat Chrysler Automobiles in Turin. He was most recently employed as Group
Vice President Global Supply Chain at Bombardier Transportation in Berlin. He holds no Supervisory
Board mandates in other companies that are not included in the consolidated financial statements
pursuant to C-rule 16 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.

Johannes Schmidt-Schultes
Member of the Management Board since 15 April 2011; Chief Financial Officer (CFO); period of
office ended on 30 November 2016

Johannes Schmidt-Schultes, born in 1966, concluded his studies in economics at the University of
Hanover, Germany, in 1993. In 1996, he earned a doctorate at the Ludwig Maximilian University in
Munich, Germany. He studied abroad at Aston University in Birmingham, UK, as well as at the Univer-
sity of California in Berkeley, USA. During his tenure as a university assistant, Johannes Schmidt-
Schultes worked for the strategy consultants Bain & Company in Munich. From 1996 to 1999, he
served as Head of the Department of Investment Controlling and Group Development at VIAG AG in
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Munich, and from 1999 to 2001, he was Managing Director of Finance for Kloeckner & Co in Vienna.
In 2001, he moved to Deutsche Telekom Group - first as CFO of T-Mobile Austria in Vienna and then,
from 2004 to 2007, of T-Mobile UK in Hatfield, UK. From 2007 to 2011, he was Deputy Chief Finan-
cial Officer of the Australian telecommunications company Telstra Corporation in Melbourne, Austral-
ia. He held no Supervisory Board mandates in other companies that are not included in the consoli-
dated financial statements pursuant to C-rule 16 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.

In agreement with the company, Johannes Schmidt-Schultes resigned from his position as of 30
November 2016.

Declan Daly
Member of the Management Board since 1 June 2014; Chief Information Officer (CIO); period of
office ended on 30 November 2016

Declan Daly, born in 1966 in Dublin, studied electrical engineering at the Dublin City University and
graduated with honours. He began his professional career in 1988 in software engineering at Asea
Brown Boveri (ABB), where he specialised in industrial process automation and was responsible for
sales of control systems in Ireland and Austria. In 1996, he completed an MBA programme at the
INSEAD Business School in Fontainebleau, France, and then worked for three years as a management
consultant at Gemini Consulting in Germany. In 2000, he moved to General Electric for ten years,
where, at the beginning, he headed the Corporate Initiatives Europe department. From 2002, Declan
Daly worked as Chief Operating Officer for GE Money Bank in Switzerland, where he was responsible
for the modernisation and reorganisation of customer service, contract processing and collections. He
was appointed CEO of GE Money Bank Austria in 2006, where he contributed in this role to the stra-
tegic reorientation of the bank’s activities in preparation for its sale, which took place in 2009. From
2009 until 2014, he was Vice President Europe at Western Union, an international financial services
provider. He held no Supervisory Board mandates in other companies that are not included in the
consolidated financial statements pursuant to C-rule 16 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.

In agreement with the company, Declan Daly resigned from his position as of 30 November 2016.

Remuneration of the Management Board

The remuneration of the Management Board consists of a fixed salary component, a short-term
variable, performance-based component, and a long-term variable, performance-based component,
as well as remuneration in kind. The assessment for the short-term variable, performance-based salary
component of the Management Board is based on consolidated net profit, the return on capital
employed (ROCE) and individual, qualitative targets.

A variable, performance-based bonus component that is linked to the achievement of sustainable,
long-term and multi-year performance criteria has been integrated into the remuneration of all Manage-
ment Board members. Based on the achievement of the quantitative changes of revenue, EBIT margin
and total shareholder return (TSR) compared with a determined peer group as well as of personal quanti-
tative goals, the long-term bonus for Thomas Fahnemann and Richard Ehrenfeldner was determined for
the past financial year. The subsequently determined long-term bonus is credited to the bonus bank
account and the balance is paid out at one third each. If the pre-defined goals are not attained within a
year, no bonus will be allocated. In case of a substantial underperformance compared with the peer
group companies, a negative allocation is made to the bonus bank, or, in certain cases of a premature
termination of the Management Board mandate, the remaining unpaid share of the bonus was agreed.

For Michele Melchiorre, the long-term increase of Semperit's equity value in accordance with a
predefined formula over a calculation period of several years is the target value for the long-term
bonus from the start of the business year.
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For Frank Gumbinger, the achievement of qualitative strategic goals with long-term effects is the
target value for the long-term bonus from the start of the business year.

The upper limits for variable, performance-based remuneration components (short- and long-term
components) for Thomas Fahnemann and Richard Ehrenfeldner are at 150% and 93% of the annual
fixed remuneration. The relevant upper limit for Michele Melchiorre is at 121% and for Frank
Gumbinger at 107% and is calculated from the short-term variable share plus the long-term bonus
share in relation to the current fixed annual remuneration.

In 2016, the remuneration paid to the active members of the Management Board totalled
EUR 2.676 thousand (2015: EUR 3,323 thousand) - in consideration of the repayments for variable
remunerations for previous years — of which EUR 2,117 thousand or 79% (2015: EUR 1,903 thousand
or 57%) consisted of fixed remuneration and EUR 559 thousand or 21% (2015: EUR 1,420 thousand or
43%) of variable salary components.

Remuneration paid to the Management Board
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2016 2015
Fixed Fixed
remunerati remunera-
on (incl. Variable Repayment tion (incl. Variable
payments Variable long-term  for variable payments in Variable long-term
in kind and  short-term remunera- remuneration kind and  short-term remunera-
daily remunera- tion (bonus in previous daily remunera- tion (bonus
in EUR thousand  allowances) tion bank) years Total allowances) tion bank) Total
Thomas
Fahnemann,
Chairman 562 340 115 =267 750 600 663 138 1,401
Richard
Ehrenfeldner 432 159 49 -139 501 411 184 55 649
Frank
Gumbinger 35 80 - - 115 - - - -
Michele
Melchiorre 245 60 - - 305 - - - -
Johannes
Schmidt-
Schultes 395 171 45 -158 453 418 199 49 665
Declan Daly 450 170 24 -90 553 474 116 18 608
Total 2,117 980 233 -654 2,676 1,903 1,162 259 3,323

The Supervisory Board (Remuneration Committee) has claimed a partial reimbursement of paid
variable remunerations of the financial years 2014 and 2015 amounting to EUR 654 thousand from the
Management Board members Thomas Fahnemann, Richard Ehrenfeldner, Johannes Schmidt-Schultes
and Declan Daly, which was repaid by the Management Board members in 2016. A non-interest-bearing
employer loan of the same amount was awarded to the named Management Board members. The loans’
terms roughly correspond to the remaining period of office. The named Management Board members
have the opportunity to achieve an additional variable remuneration of similar value by achieving special
individual targets during the remaining period of office. The reason for the reclaim was the retroactive
adjustment due to the change of the accounting method of Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd. in the
consolidated financial statement of 2014, which had led to changed target achievements for the variable
short- and long-term bonus targets in 2014 and 2015. In the above table, the remunerations for the
Management Board members Johannes Schmidt-Schultes and Declan Daly — both of them resigned from
their positions on 30 November 2016 — are shown for the full year 2016 for reasons of comparability.
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Provisions have been made for the premature termination of the Management Board contracts
with Johannes Schmidt-Schultes and Declan Daly in the financial year of 2016, while payment is made
in the financial year of 2017.

Contributions to pensions
A defined-contribution pension agreement has been established for the Management Board mem-
bers Thomas Fahnemann, Frank Gumbinger and Michele Melchiorre as well as Declan Daly and
Johannes Schmidt-Schultes. Annually, the company pays 1/14 of the respective fixed remuneration
into a pension fund (APK Pensionskasse AG). The amount of the pension is based on the capital
available in the pension fund. The payout is made in accordance with the pension fund agreement.
Richard Ehrenfeldner is covered by a pension scheme based on a reinsurance policy with Generali
Versicherung AG, where 1/7 of the annual fixed remuneration is paid in.

In addition, pension payments are made to previous Management Board members or their wid-
ows in accordance with the contractual commitments made by the company in the past.

Contributions to pensions

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Thomas Fahnemann 36 36
Richard Ehrenfeldner 58 53
Frank Gumbinger 2 -
Michele Melchiorre 16 -
Johannes Schmidt-Schultes 25 25
Declan Daly 29 29
Total 166 143

Termination benefits — severance payments

The Management Board members Thomas Fahnemann, Frank Gumbinger, Michele Melchiorre as well
as Declan Daly and Johannes Schmidt-Schultes are subject to the Austrian Corporate Employee and
Self-Employed Pension Act (Betriebliches Mitarbeiter- und Selbststandigenvorsorgegesetz — BMSVG).
This Act stipulates that 1.53% of the individual’s total remuneration (which includes all current remu-
neration, remuneration in kind and special payments) has to be paid to BONUS Vorsorgekasse AG.

In total, the expenses for severance payments amounted to EUR 35.9 thousand (2015: EUR 37.6
thousand). Richard Ehrenfeldner is covered by the termination benefits in accordance with legal
requirements (Section 23 of the Austrian Employees Act (Angestelltengesetz — AngG)) for employ-
ment relationships in Austria that began prior to 1 January 2003 (“Abfertigung Alt”). In 2016, alloca-
tions were made to the provision for severance payments owed to Mr Ehrenfeldner amounting to
EUR 15.4 thousand (2015: EUR 11.6 thousand). The total provision for severance payments stood at
EUR 688.4 thousand as of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: EUR 701.9 thousand).

Upon premature termination of the Management Board mandate, the framework conditions for
premature termination of contracts, pursuant to C-rule 27a of the Austrian Corporate Governance
Code, will be considered adequately.

Directors- and Officers- (D&O) Insurance

A Directors and Officers (D&O) insurance has been taken out for the members of the Management
Board and senior executives — no deductible is due from Management Board members in the event
of a claim; the company bears the related costs.
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Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board consists of eight shareholder representatives and four employee representatives.
Due to the resignation of Stephan B. Tanda as of 1 February 2017, the number of shareholder repre-
sentatives is reduced to seven persons until the next Annual General Meeting. The Supervisory Board
has resolved to establish the following committees consisting of its own members to carry out specific
functions: Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Nominating Committee, Strategy Committee,
Joint Ventures Committee, Committee for Special Projects and Committee for Urgent Issues. The
authority to make decisions and pass resolutions rests in the hands of the entire Supervisory Board.

Meetings of the Supervisory Board and its committees

The Supervisory Board convened for six meetings during the 2016 financial year. In 2016, no member
of the Supervisory Board attended less than 50% of the meetings. Veit Sorger is Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and his deputy is Felix Strohbichler.

The Audit Committee, led by the financial expert Patrick Prigger performs its duties in accord-
ance with article 92 section 4a of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act and rule 40 of the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee held three meetings in the financial year 2016
and specifically dealt with the preparation of the resolution for the 2015 annual and consolidated
financial statements, risk management, the internal control system (ICS), internal auditing, the com-
pliance organisation, corporate governance and the preparation for the audit of the annual and
consolidated financial statements for 2016.

The Remuneration Committee, chaired by Veit Sorger, held five meetings dealing with the per-
formance review talks for the financial year 2015 and the agreement of objectives of the members of
the Management Board for the financial year 2016, the remuneration system for Management Board
members, the termination agreements with Management Board members, the monitoring of the
execution of the employment agreements of the Management Board as well as the bonus system for
blue-collar and white-collar workers.

The Nominating Committee, under the chairmanship of Veit Sorger, held seven meetings to deal
with the definition of qualification profiles for Management Board members, the definition of ap-
pointment procedures for Management Board positions, the selection process for Management
Board members and the preparation of the nomination of candidates for the Management Board as
well as the Talent Development and Succession Planning Process, the assessment of candidates for
the Executive Committee and the succession planning for the Management Board within the Group.

The Strategy Committee, under the chairmanship of Felix Strohbichler, held two meetings, to
deal with fundamental questions about the positioning of the business segments in the market and
competitive environment as well as the strategic development of the group and accompanied the
strategy project “Focus 2020".

The Joint Ventures Committee, under the chairmanship of Felix Strohbichler, convened five
meetings and dealt with the relationships with the joint venture partner Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public
Co Ltd. in Thailand, including the project for reorganisation of the joint venture activities, as well as
the associated legal proceedings.

The Committee for Special Projects was established in July 2016 by the Supervisory Board and is
chaired by Felix Strohbichler. The Committee held five meetings, at which it dealt primarily with the
monitoring of the project for the sustainable increase of the operational results in the Sempermed
segment.

The Committee for Urgent Issues, chaired by Veit Sorger, held one meeting dealing with the
management of time-sensitive investment projects.
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In the financial year 2016, the Supervisory Board discussed in plenary the self-evaluation con-

ducted in the fourth quarter of 2015 in the form of a questionnaire and in accordance with C-Rule 36

of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code. Measures were picked up and derived from it for the

efficiency enhancement of the Supervisory Board activities. The results of the self-evaluation showed
that the activities of the Supervisory Board have been assessed as good. Due to the dense work
programme of the full Supervisory Board and its committees in 2016, a new self-evaluation by ques-

tionnaire was started at the beginning of 2017.

Corporate bodies of Semperit AG Holding: Supervisory Board

Composition of the Supervisory Board*

Year of birth  First appointed End of current term of office”

Supervisory board position in other
listed companies®

Shareholder
representative
Veit Sorger 23 1942 26/05/2004 Until the Annual General Lenzing AG (Deputy Chairman)
Chairman Meeting resolving upon the
2018 financial year
Felix Strohbichler 2 1974 28/05/2015 Until the Annual General Lenzing AG (Deputy Chairman)
Deputy Chairman Meeting resolving upon the
2018 financial year
Stefan Fida 2 1979 29/04/2014 Until the Annual General -
Member Meeting resolving upon the
2016 financial year
Walter Koppensteiner a3 1959 23/04/2012 Until the Annual General -
Member Meeting resolving upon the
2018 financial year
Patrick Priigger 2 1975 14/04/2011 Until the Annual General Lenzing AG,
Member Meeting resolving upon the AMAG Austria Metall AG
2016 financial year
Andreas Schmidradner 2 1961 20/05/2008 Until the Annual General -
Member Meeting resolving upon the
2019 financial year
Astrid Skala-Kuhmann 29 1953 29/04/2014 Until the Annual General Lenzing AG
Member Meeting resolving upon the
2016 financial year
Employee representative Works Council function
Sigrid Haipl 1960 26/03/2012 - Member of the Central Works Council
of Semperit AG Holding, Member of
the European Works Council, Chair of
the Works Council - White-collar
workers, Vienna
Michaela Jagschitz 1961 29/04/2014 Deputy Chairman of the Works Council
— White-collar workers, Wimpassing
Markus Stocker 1979 01/01/2017 - Chairman of the Central Works Council
of Semperit AG Holding, Deputy
Chairman of the European Works
Council, Chairman of the Works
Council - White-collar workers,
Wimpassing
Karl Voitl 1966 20/03/2015 - Deputy Chairman of the Central Works

Council of Semperit AG Holding,
Chairman of the European Works
Council, Deputy Chairman of the Works
Council - Blue-collar workers,
Wimpassing

" Pursuant to the Articles of Association, one fifth of the members of the Supervisory Board automatically leave their positions every year at the

end of the Annual General Meeting.
2 Have declared their independence vis-a-vis the Supervisory Board in accordance with C-Rule 53 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code.
3 No representation by a shareholder over 10% (C-Rule 54 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code).

4 As of 28 February 2017
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Resigned members of the Supervisory Board

First appointed to the

Year of birth Supervisory Board End of term of current office
Shareholder representative
Stephan B. Tanda 1965 26/04/2016 Resigned the mandate on
Member 01/02/2017
Ingrid Wesseln 1966 23/04/2012 Resigned the mandate on
Member 26/04/2016
Employee representative
Alexander Hollerer 1954 01/07/1998 Until 31/12/2016

Guidelines for the independence of Supervisory Board members
A member of the Supervisory Board shall be deemed independent if he/she has no business or per-
sonal relations with the company or its Management Board that would constitute a material conflict
of interest and could thus influence the member’s behaviour.

In evaluating the independence of a Supervisory Board member, the Supervisory Board uses the
following guidelines, which correspond to those contained in Appendix 1 of the January 2015 version
of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code:

® The Supervisory Board member shall not have been a member of the Management Board or a
managing employee of the company or one of its subsidiaries in the past five years.

 The Supervisory Board member shall not maintain or have maintained in the past year any business
relations with the company or one of its subsidiaries to an extent of significance for the Supervisory
Board member.

This shall also apply to business relationships with companies in which the Supervisory Board
member has a considerable economic interest, but not for exercising functions in the bodies of the
group. According to L-Rule 48, the approval of individual transactions by the Supervisory Board does
not automatically mean that the person is qualified as not independent.

¢ The Supervisory Board member shall not have been the auditor of the company or have owned a
share in the auditing company or have worked there as an employee in the past three years.

® The Supervisory Board member shall not be a member of the Management Board of another com-
pany in which a Management Board member of the company is a Supervisory Board member.

® The Supervisory Board member shall not serve on the Supervisory Board for more than 15 years.
This limitation does not apply to Supervisory Board members who are shareholders with a direct
investment in the company or who represent the interests of such a shareholder.

® The Supervisory Board member shall not be a close relative (direct offspring, spouses, life partners,
parents, uncles, aunts, siblings, nieces, nephews) of a Management Board member or of persons
having one of the aforementioned relations.
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Composition of the Committees of the Supervisory Board"

Committee

Members

Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

Patrick Priigger (Chairman, financial expert)
Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016
Andreas Schmidradner

Veit Sorger

Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017

Felix Strohbichler

Karl Voitl

Remuneration Committee

Veit Sorger (Chairman)

Stefan Fida

Sigrid Haipl

Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016
Andreas Schmidradner

Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017
Felix Strohbichler

Nominating Committee

Veit Sorger (Chairman)

Stefan Fida

Sigrid Haipl

Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016
Andreas Schmidradner

Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017
Felix Strohbichler

Strategy Committee

Felix Strohbichler (Chairman as of 26/04/2016)
Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016

Walter Koppensteiner

Andreas Schmidradner

Astrid Skala-Kuhmann

Veit Sorger (Chairman until 26/04/2016)
Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017

Karl Voitl

Joint Ventures Committee

Felix Strohbichler (Chairman as of 26/04/2016)
Stefan Fida

Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016

Patrick Prigger

Veit Sorger (Chairman until 26/04/2016)
Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017

Committee for Special Projects

Felix Strohbichler (Chairman)

Sigrid Haipl

Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016
Walter Koppensteiner

Andreas Schmidradner

Veit Sorger

Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017

Committee for Urgent Issues

Veit Sorger (Chairman)

Alexander Hollerer, until 31/12/2016
Markus Stocker, as of 01/01/2017
Felix Strohbichler
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Remuneration of the Supervisory Board
On 26 April 2016, the Annual General Meeting approved the remuneration structure for the mem-

bers of the Supervisory Board for 2015. A Directors and Officers (D&O) insurance has been taken out
for the members of the Supervisory Board; the company bears the related costs.

Remuneration paid in the 2016 financial year to shareholder representatives in the Supervisory Board"
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Remuneration for

Base membership of
in EUR remuneration the committee Attendance fee Total
Veit Sorger, Chairman 50,000 61,667 19,000 130,667
Felix Strohbichler, Deputy Chairman? 23,333 16,667 12,000 52,000
Stefan Fida 20,000 15,000 10,000 45,000
Walter Koppensteiner 20,000 5,000 8,000 33,000
Patrick Priigger 20,000 23,333 11,000 54,333
Andreas Schmidradner 20,000 13,333 13,000 46,333
Astrid Skala-Kuhmann 20,000 3,333 9,000 32,333
Ingrid Wesseln 20,000 5,000 5,000 30,000
Michael Junghans® 11,667 8,333 8,000 28,000
Total 205,000 151,666 95,000 451,666

" Employee representatives receive no remuneration.
2 Member of the Supervisory Board since 18/04/2015
3 Deputy Chairman until 28/04/2015

Issuer compliance directive

In order to implement and ensure compliance with all relevant stock exchange regulations, Semperit
has issued its own Issuer Compliance Policy designed to prevent the misuse or dissemination of
insider information. Compliance is monitored and administered by a specially designated Issuer
Compliance Officer who reports directly to the Management Board.

Code of Conduct

Beyond stock exchange compliance, Semperit Group has a compliance organisation that covers all
corporate units. A Group Compliance Officer receives support in fulfilling his responsibilities from
compliance officers working in the larger subsidiaries of the Semperit Group. The Group Compliance
Officer reports any incidents to the Compliance Committee and the Management Board.

The Code of Conduct applies to all employees and managers and is available in several lan-
guages. Its most important objectives are to avoid corruption, money laundering, human rights
violations and insider trading. In addition, it deals with aspects of data protection, export restrictions
and the protection of the interests of all stakeholders. These requirements for behaviour are further
specified in thematic compliance guidelines that are available to all employees on the Intranet. Em-
ployees receive an in-depth and practical training on the matters referred to in the Code of Conduct.
In addition, the relevant employees are regularly updated about current issues, or when appropriate.
The Code of Conduct can be viewed at the following website:

www.semperitgroup.com/en/compliance.
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Advancement of women

Semperit sees itself as a fair and responsible employer, and would therefore like to offer equal oppor-
tunities to every employee. Using flexible work models such as flexitime and part-time work, as well
as special parental part-time arrangements, the group aims at continuously increasing the proportion
of female employees. As a traditional industrial company with a technical focus, the share of women
in Austria and Group-wide was somewhat more than 20% at the end of 2016. The share of female
employees amounted to almost 30% throughout Europe. The share of women in the Supervisory
Board was one fourth at the end of 2016. There were no women in the Management Board. Overall,
the share of women in management (Management Board, Executive Committee, Management Fo-
rum, department heads) was more than 10%.

Mangers' transactions

Transactions with shares or debt instruments of the company or related derivatives respectively
financial instruments carried out by members of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board are
published in accordance with Article 19 of the Market Abuse Regulation:
http://issuerinfo.oekb.at/startpage.html. Directors' Dealings before 3rd July 2016 are available here:
https://www.fma.gv.at/kapitalmaerkte/directors-dealings/directors-dealings-datenbank/.

Risk Management & Assurance

The Risk Management & Assurance department assumes the central coordination, moderation and
monitoring of the risk management process for the group as a whole. Together with the operational
units, the department records and assesses substantial risks and reports them directly to the manage-
ment and the Management Board. At least once a year, the Audit Committee presents the comprehen-
sive risk report to the Supervisory Board. The Risk Management & Assurance department is supported
by the local risk managers in the individual group units and also covers the insurance field. Whenever
possible, the measures for risk reduction are also implemented in external insurance contracts.

Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H. has audited and confirmed the effective-
ness of Semperit's risk management system for 2016 according to the C-Rule 83 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The purpose of the internal control system of Semperit is to ensure the effectiveness and efficien-
cy of business operations, the reliability of financial reporting, and adherence to applicable laws and
regulations. It also supports the early recognition and monitoring of risks from inadequate monitoring
systems and fraudulent actions, and is revised and expanded on an ongoing basis by the Risk Man-
agement & Assurance department together with the relevant specialist departments. The manage-
ment of the respective business units is responsible for the implementation and monitoring of the ICS
and the risk management system. Cross-sectoral, group-wide standards and regulations are deter-
mined by the Management Board of Semperit AG Holding. Follow-up audits are undertaken at the
various locations to ensure a sustainable implementation of the standards and regulations.
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External evaluation

In accordance with C-Rule 62 of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code, the Semperit Group
engaged an external organisation to evaluate its compliance with the stipulations contained in the
Code and the accuracy of the associated public reporting for the 2016 financial year. This evaluation,
which was performed by KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesell-
schaft, did not identify any facts inconsistent with the declaration of the Management Board and
Supervisory Board found in the Corporate Governance Report 2016 of the company with respect to
its compliance with the C-Rules of the Austrian Corporate Governance Code. In accordance with C-
Rule 62, a new evaluation will take place for the 2019 financial year.

Vienna, 9 March 2017

The Management Board

Thomas Fahnemann

Chairman
i ' ‘ J)/Q.zék,, :
(g
Frank Gumbinger Richard Ehrenfeldner Michele Melchiorre

Finance Member Technic
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Dear Sir or Madam,

In the past financial year, Semperit was confronted with a difficult market environment. In the
Industrial Sector, market shares were expanded despite a declining development of the sales
markets, with a focus on opening up new markets as well as expanding and optimising existing
production capacities. Despite a stable demand development, the market environment in the
Medical Sector, which is largely independent of economic cycles, was burdened by higher raw
material and energy prices and further price pressures. Therefore, the focus in the Medical Sector
(Sempermed segment) was on measures for process optimisation and efficiency enhancement as
well as the implementation of a cost-cutting programme for the improvement of profitability.

Furthermore, the cooperation with the joint venture partner in Thailand as well as the prepara-
tions for the agreement signed on 18 January 2017 for the termination of almost all joint business
activities (“joint venture transaction”) with Sri Trang-Agro Industry Public Co Ltd. (“Sri Trang”) had
negative effects on the financial year of 2016.

For the Supervisory Board, based on the experiences with the joint venture partner during the
past years, the agreement which has now been reached was the right step for Semperit to focus
its resources on the development of its own business activities.

The Supervisory Board held six meetings during the 2016 financial year, fulfilling its duties re-
quired by law and the company’s statutes. The meetings focused primarily on business perfor-
mance, the discussion of opportunities for the further strategic development of the group as well
as the discussion on and resolution for key business events and measures.

The Management Board reported to the Supervisory Board on the development of business
on a monthly regular basis. Prior to Supervisory Board meetings, detailed written documents
about the group were made available. Beyond the meetings, the Management Board reported
regularly to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board and his deputy on the business development
and the group'’s situation.

In three meetings held during the business year, the Audit Committee dealt in particular with
the 2015 annual and consolidated financial statements, risk management, the internal control sys-
tem (ICS), internal auditing, the compliance organisation, corporate governance and the prepara-
tion for the 2016 audit of the annual and consolidated financial statements.

The Nominating Committee held seven meetings to deal with the appointment procedure for
Management Board positions, the selection process for board members and the preparation of
the nomination of two board candidates as well as the Talent Development and Succession Plan-
ning Process, the assessment of candidates for the Executive Committee and succession planning
for the Management Board within the company.

The Strategy Committee met twice and dealt with fundamental questions about the position-
ing of the business segments in the market and the competitive environment as well as the stra-
tegic development of the group. In addition, the Strategic Committee accompanied the imple-
mentation of the strategy project "Focus 2020".

The Joint Ventures Committee convened five meetings and dealt with the relationships with
the joint venture partner Sri Trang including the project of realignment of the joint venture activi-
ties as well as with the associated legal proceedings.

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings, at which it dealt with the following topics: dis-
cussions on Performance Reviews on the financial year 2015, the agreement on objectives of the
members of the Management Board for 2016, the remuneration models for two newly nominated
Management Board members, the termination agreements for two Management Board members as
well as the monitoring of the execution of the employment agreements of the Management Board.
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In addition, the target agreement system for employees of Semperit was discussed with the Man-
agement Board members.

The Committee for Special Projects, which was established in July 2016 by the Supervisory Board,
held five meetings and dealt primarily with the monitoring of the project for the sustainable increase
of the operational results in the Sempermed segment.

The Committee for Urgent Issues, which was established according to the Austrian Corporate
Governance Code, held one meeting dealing with time-critical investment projects.

Ernst & Young Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft m.b.H. of Vienna as annual auditor for the financial
year 2016 audited the annual financial statements 2016 of Semperit AG Holding including the man-
agement report and the corporate governance report as well as the consolidated financial statements
2016, which were prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and
the group management report. The auditor issued an unqualified audit opinion on the annual finan-
cial statements and the consolidated financial statements 2016 of Semperit AG Holding.

In its meeting held on 9 March 2017, the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board dealt in par-
ticular with the annual financial statements, the corporate governance report, the consolidated finan-
cial statements, the group management report and the auditor’s report. Moreover, the Committee
discussed the results of the audit in detail with the auditor. On the basis of its own audit, the Audit
Committee concurred with the auditor’s results and reported them to the Supervisory Board. Based
on the efficient auditing process for the consolidated financial statements of 2016, the Audit Commit-
tee recommended to the Supervisory Board to propose to the Annual General Meeting the reap-
pointment of Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna, as auditor for the
financial year 2017.

The Supervisory Board has examined the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial
statements, the management report, the group management report and the corporate governance
report, and concurs with the conclusions of the auditor. The Supervisory Board formally approves the
annual financial statements for the 2016 financial year, which are consequently adopted in accordance
with Section 96 (4) of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act. The Corporate Governance report, manage-
ment report and consolidated financial statements for 2016 have been approved by the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board follows the recommendation of the Audit Committee and proposes to
the Annual General Meeting to reappoint Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H.,
Vienna, for auditing the financial year 2017.

The Supervisory Board accepts the Management Board’s proposal on the distribution of profits, ac-
cording to which a dividend of EUR 0.70 per eligible share is to be paid from Semperit AG Holding’s
reported net profit for the period of EUR 14,547,748.66, with the remaining profit carried forward. This
dividend proposal is based on the assumption that there will be a closing of the joint venture transac-
tion. If the transaction fails to be closed, the Supervisory Board reserves the right in the same manner
as the Management Board to make a resolution proposal at the Annual General Meeting that devi-
ates from this dividend proposal.

On behalf of the entire Supervisory Board, | would like to thank the Management Board and all
members of staff for their commitment in the past financial year. | would also like to thank the share-
holders and customers of the Semperit Group for the faith they have placed in the company.

Vienna, 9 March 2017

Veit Sorger m.p.
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Group Management Report

Economic environment

Difficult framework conditions continued to characterise the world economy in 2016. A weak eco-
nomic development in major economies caused subdued demand in numerous industrial sectors. In
addition, Europe and the USA were influenced by further uncertainty factors due to the Brexit vote
and the presidential election in the USA. In the second half of 2016, first signs of an upward trend
were recorded in the industrialised countries. According to estimates by the International Monetary
Fund (IMF), the global economy expanded by 3.1% in 2016, after 3.2% in 2015.

While economic growth in the industrialised countries cooled off with an average growth rate of
1.6% (2015: 2.1%), growth in the emerging and developing countries maintained the same level as
the previous year at 4.1% (2015: 4.1%).

In the USA, GDP (gross domestic product) rose by 1.6% (2015: 2.6%); in the euro area, it grew by
1.7% (2015: 2.0%). Among the BRIC countries, economic growth in India, with GDP at 6.6% (2015:
7.6%), and China with 6.7% (2015: 6.9%) slowed down according to the IMF. The economy in Russia
shrank further by 0.6% compared with 3.7% in 2015. Brazil remained in recession with its GDP declin-
ing by 3.5% (2015: 3.8%).

According to assessments by the IMF, the worldwide economy will develop positively over the
next two years. However, the anticipated recovery will continue to be characterised by uncertainties
due to political framework conditions. Emerging and developing countries are expected to develop
more strongly overall than the industrialised countries.

Developments in the raw materials markets

The sub-markets for raw materials that are important for the rubber industry, such as the market for
natural rubber and natural latex as well as synthetic rubber and synthetic latex, experienced an in-
crease in prices to varying degrees in 2016. The development of these markets in the natural rubber
field is influenced by production conditions, while the fields of synthetic rubber and carbon black are
impacted by supplier behaviour and costs for basic raw materials, which are affected by the price of
crude oil. Demand is influenced primarily by the main buyers of rubber products, the tyre and auto-
motive industry.

Since the beginning of March 2016, a partly significant price increase was recorded for almost all
raw materials, which significantly surpassed the declining tendencies at the beginning of 2016. Since
the beginning of November 2016, another enhanced increase in prices in all raw material categories
was recorded. In November and December 2016, the average prices of individual raw materials were
50% and more above the average of November and December 2015. Over the full year, the average
raw material prices in 2016 were slightly above the average of 2015. In the first two months of 2017,
there was no indication that the raw material prices being relevant for Semperit would stop increasing.

At the beginning of 2016, prices for the filling material carbon black decreased compared with
the end of the year 2015. From the second quarter of 2016, prices for carbon black increased signifi-
cantly due to the rise in the crude oil price. The prices for wire rose in 2016 due to the significant
price increase for wire rods.
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Revenue and earnings of Semperit Group

Revenue of the Semperit Group fell from EUR 914.7 million in 2015 to EUR 852.4 million in 2016, a
decrease of -6.8%. For the most part, the decrease in revenue was due to significantly lower revenues
of the Medical Sector and to a smaller extent to a revenue decline in the Sempertrans segment (for
details on the development of sectors and segments see page 52ff). The distribution of revenues
slightly shifted in favour of the Industrial Sector. In 2016 the Industrial Sector accounted for 59% (41%
Medical Sector), after 57% in 2015 (43% Medical Sector).

In 2016, the inventories increased by EUR 2.2 million compared with EUR 6.8 million in 2015.

The other operating income increased slightly from EUR 9.1 million to EUR 10.5 million in 2016.
The claim for reimbursement from the arbitration procedures ICC amounting to EUR 2.5 million had a
positive influence on other operating income in 2016. In contrast, an income amounting to around
EUR 3.4 million was recorded from the acquisition of Leeser, Germany, in 2015.

Cost of materials dropped by EUR 50.3 million or 9.0% to EUR 505.5 million, supported by an ac-
tive raw material management.

Personnel expenses grew slightly by 0.3% to EUR 165.3 million due to increases in salaries and
wages. By contrast, the variable salary components for employees with target agreements showed a
declining development in line with the business development.

As an internationally operating group, Semperit is subject to various foreign exchange effects
within the scope of its business activities. For the purpose of a more effective internal management
as well as a more transparent presentation in the external financial reports of Semperit Group and its
segments, foreign exchange gains or losses in the consolidated income statement are not shown as
part of the operating result in “Other operating income"” or “Other operating expenses” anymore
since 1 January 2016, but in financial income / financial expenses and are therefore part of the finan-
cial result. In order to guarantee comparability with the previous year following the change of method
pursuant to IAS 8, all comparable figures for 2015 are presented according to the same new report-
ing method in this report.

Revenue split by segments Revenue split by region

1. Semperflex 1. Europe
2% 22% . /4 @ QA .. 68% (66%) ...
2. North and

2. Sempertrans

L7%(18%) 2 South America

.20% (22%)

3. Asia, Africa,
other countries
12% (12%)

4. Sempermed
41% (43%)
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Other operating expenses dropped by 5.7% compared with 2015 to EUR 129.2 million, among
other things due to lower legal and consulting expenses. This item included a special effect: A provi-
sion of EUR 4.7 million for levies in Brazil had a negative effect.

The item “Share of profits from joint ventures and associated companies” decreased by more
than half to EUR 8.4 million (2015: EUR 17.1 million). This item consisted almost exclusively of the
contribution to earnings of the glove production joint ventures in Thailand.

Hence, EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) totalled
EUR 77.9 million, a minus of 19.0%. The EBITDA margin decreased from 10.5% to 9.1%. Without the
above-mentioned special effect (levies in Brazil), the adjusted EBITDA totalled EUR 82.6 million and
the EBITDA margin was 9.7%.

Depreciation increased to EUR 33.3 million in line with capacity enhancements. Impairments to-
taled EUR 17.3 million, of which the impairment of intangible assets in the Sempermed segment
accounted for EUR 17.0 million as a special effect relating to the joint venture transaction as well as
the development in the Sempermed segment (see page 56), which was weaker than expected.

At EUR 27.3 million (-59.1%), EBIT was significantly below the level of 2015, also due to the
above-mentioned impairment. The EBIT margin amounted to 3.2%. EBIT adjusted for the special
effects (levies in Brazil and impairment of Sempermed goodwill) amounts to EUR 49.0 million while
the adjusted EBIT margin is 5.8%.

The negative financial result totalled EUR 19.9 million in 2016 after EUR 8.0 million in the previous
year. Financial income, which now also includes foreign exchange gains, decreased by EUR 6.4 million
compared to the previous year and amounted to EUR 22.8 million. In 2015, this item (restated) had
been influenced by the positive foreign exchange effects as well as profits from hedging transactions
for foreign currencies. Financial expenses, which also include foreign exchange losses, increased by
EUR 4.6 million compared to the previous year to EUR 36.4 million. The reasons for this are primarily
foreign exchange losses (especially in the first quarter of 2016), interest expenses due to additional
borrowings as well as the above-mentioned provisions in the interest component for the levies in
Brazil amounting to EUR 2.5 million.

In 2016, the item “Profit/loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests” increased to
EUR 6.4 million after EUR 5.4 million in 2015 and is mostly related to companies in the Semperflex
and Sempermed segments.
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Key figures Semperit Group

2015" Change in
in EUR million 2016 restated Change  EUR million
Revenue 852.4 914.7 -6.8% -62.3
EBITDA adjusted? 82.6 96.2 -14.1% -13.6
EBITDA margin adjusted? 9.7% 10.5% -0.8 PP -
EBITDA 77.9 96.2 -19.0% -18.3
EBITDA margin 9.1% 10.5% -1.4 PP -
EBIT adjusted? 49.0 66.7 -26.5% -17.7
EBIT margin adjusted? 5.8% 7.3% -1.5 PP -
EBIT 27.3 66.7 -59.1% -39.4
EBIT margin 3.2% 7.3% -4.1 PP -
Earnings after tax adjusted? 23.1 46.4 -50.1% -23.2
Earnings after tax -8.8 46.4 - -55.2
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 65.1 71.8 -9.4% -6.8
Employees (at balance sheet date) 6,974 7,053 -1.1% -79

" Values restated for 2015, see page 96f. in this report (Foreign Exchange restatement).
2 Values are adjusted for special effects (levies in Brazil, depreciation of the goodwill of Sempermed and tax effect of the joint venture
transaction)

Income tax expense increased by EUR 3.8 million to EUR 16.2 million. The increase resulted from
the special effect of the changes - recognised in profit or loss — in deferred tax liabilities amounting
to EUR 7.7 million relating to the joint venture transaction as well as the value adjustment of deferred
taxes and additional tax payments for prior periods.

Earnings after tax totalled EUR -8.8 million, resulting in earnings per share of EUR -0.43 in 2016,
following EUR 2.26 in 2015. Adjusted for the three above-mentioned special effects (transportation
taxes in Brazil, impairment of the Sempermed goodwill and tax effect of the joint venture transaction)
totalling EUR 31.9 million, earnings after tax amount to EUR 23.1 million while earnings per share are
EUR 1.12.

Termination of the joint venture Siam Sempermed Corporation Ltd.
("joint venture transaction”)

On 18 January 2017, the Semperit Group and the joint venture partner Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Co
Ltd. (“Sri Trang”) signed an agreement on the termination of almost all joint venture activities. The
agreement provides for changes for all segments except Sempertrans.

Changes in the Sempermed segment

The agreement provides for the takeover of the joint distribution company Sempermed USA Inc. by
Semperit. In addition, Semperit will take over the previous Sempermed joint venture companies
Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd, Shanghai Sempermed Glove Sales Co Ltd. und Sempermed Brazil
Comercio Exterior Ltda. as well as the majority interest in the Malaysian FormTech Engineering (M)
Sdn Bhd. Sri Trang will take over the glove production of Siam Sempermed Corporation Ltd. (“SSC")
in Thailand, which has been operated jointly to date.



50

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Group management report

Changes in the Semperflex segment

Semperit will fully take over Semperflex Shanghai Ltd. with a hydraulic hose production site in China.
In Thailand, the joint venture Semperflex Asia (“SAC") will be continued. Here, Semperit on the one
hand and Sri Trang together with further partners on the other hand each hold an unchanged share of
50% of the production for hydraulic hoses in Hatyai/Thailand. Semperit will receive an option to take
over the remaining 50% of SAC for USD 60 million (approx. EUR 57 million) from the joint venture
partners.

Changes in the Semperform segment
Semperit increases the share of Semperform business activities in China from 90% to 100%.

Financial effects of the transaction

Within the framework of the termination of the joint ventures, Semperit will receive a one-time com-
pensation payment amounting to USD 167.5 million (approx. EUR 157 million) before taxes. Immedi-
ately prior to closing and with it the full transfer of SSC to Sri Trang, Semperit will receive a dividend
of USD 51 million (approx. EUR 48 million) before taxes in cash from SSC. Immediately prior to the
closing, a payout of a dividend of USD 15 million for SAC to the joint venture partner for 2017 has
been provided for. As a result, a total cash inflow of USD 200 million (around EUR 187 million) before
taxes is expected, of which USD 150 million (around EUR 140 million) are hedged by a Deal Contin-
gent Forward to minimise the currency risk.

From today's perspective, a closing of the transaction would lead to positive special effects in
Semperit's Group result amounting to around EUR 65-75 million in the financial year 2017. This is up
against negative special effects in the Group's result of 2016 amounting to EUR 31.9 million (for
details see chapter “Revenue and earnings of Semperit Group”, page 47f.).

The transaction is subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board of Semperit, a corresponding
resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Sri Trang as well as relevant closing condi-
tions. The closing of the transaction is expected for March 2017.

In case of a successful closing, all pending arbitration and civil proceedings between the Semperit
Group on one hand and the Sri Trang Group and SSC on the other hand will be settled by mutual
consent. Common break-up fees were agreed in case of failure.

Dividend

Semperit's dividend policy provides for paying out approximately 50% of earnings after tax to the
shareholders — assuming continued successful performance and that no unusual circumstances occur.
As announced in the inside information of 18 January 2017, Semperit's existing dividend policy is
being reviewed for 2016 and 2017 because of special effects.

Despite negative earnings after tax the Management Board will propose a dividend of EUR 0.70
per share at the Annual General Meeting on 23 May 2017. This means that EUR 14.4 million will be
distributed in total. Given the share price of EUR 25.75 as at the end of 2016, this results in a divi-
dend yield of 2.7% after 3.9% in 2015.

This dividend proposal is based on the assumption that the joint venture transaction will be
closed. If the transaction fails to be closed, the Management Board reserves the right to make a
resolution proposal at the Annual General Meeting that deviates from this dividend proposal.
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Assets and financial position

Compared with the balance as of 31 December 2015, the balance sheet total rose by 10.3% to
EUR 1,034.5 million in 2016. On the asset side of the balance sheet, the main reasons for this increase
were expansion investments and the related increase in tangible assets and cash and cash equiva-
lents.

On the liabilities side, the item corporate Schuldschein loan increased while revenue reserves and
liabilities to banks decreased.

Trade working capital (inventories plus trade receivables minus trade payables) decreased from
EUR 160.6 million at the end of 2015 to EUR 145.4 million, and therefore constituted 17.1% of the
revenues of 2016 (year-end 2015: 17.6%). The decline is attributable to a decline in trade receivables
and an increase in inventories and trade payables.

Cash and cash equivalents increased from EUR 126.4 million by the end of 2015 to
EUR 190.2 million as of 31 December 2016.

As of 31 December 2015, the Semperit Group's equity (without non-controlling interests) stood at
EUR 329.3 million, EUR 34.0 million lower than at the end of 2015 (EUR 363.3 million). The change
resulted almost entirely from a negative result after tax and the distribution of dividends to the share-
holders of Semperit AG Holding in the second quarter of 2016.

The group’s reported equity ratio as of 31 December 2016 amounted to 31.8% (year-end 2015:
38.7%). The capital structure of the Semperit Group therefore remains to be solid. The return on
equity stood at -2.7%, following 12.8% in 2015. The return on equity is calculated based on the
earnings after tax in relation to the equity of EUR 329.3 million (each both in respect to the portion
attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding). Not taking into account the mentioned
special effects, the return on equity was at 6.4%.

Debt is significantly higher at EUR 703.5 million compared with the end of 2015. Liabilities from
the corporate Schuldschein loan and liabilities to banks totalled EUR 420.8 million (year-end 2015:
EUR 302.6 million). Taking into consideration cash and cash equivalents, this resulted in an overall net
debt of EUR 230.6 million (year-end 2015: EUR 176.1 million). The net debt/EBITDA ratio (net debt in
relation to EBITDA) at the end of 2016 is therefore 2.96 (year-end 2015: 1.83). The liabilities from
redeemable non-controlling interests remained almost unchanged at EUR 51.8 million. Provisions
including social capital remained almost unchanged at EUR 66.7 million. Other liabilities and deferred
taxes decreased to EUR 52.6 million.

Cash flow

Gross cash flow was EUR 48.1 million, a year-on-year decline of EUR 7.6 million or 13.7%. This
change resulted primarily from lower earnings before tax, an increase in depreciation and impair-
ments, a change of non-current provisions and the change in the item “Investments in joint ven-
tures and associated companies”.

The cash flow from operating activities dropped sharply to EUR 34.4 million, a decline of -42.5%.
The development of other liabilities and reserves was the primary reason for this decline while trade
receivables had declined and had a positive effect on the cash flow.

The cash flow from investing activities amounted to EUR -64.8 million in 2016, following
EUR -89.0 million in 2015. This decrease compared to the previous year is primarily due to the acqui-
sition of Leeser in Germany in 2015 and a decline of investments in tangible and intangible assets.

51



52

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Group management report

The cash flow from financing activities at EUR 92.9 million (EUR 38.4 million in 2015) was impacted
on the one hand by the payment of the dividend to shareholders of Semperit AG Holding totalling
EUR 24.7 million and on the other hand the repayment and incoming payment of financing liabilities.
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2016 amounted to EUR 190.2 million, a year-on-year
increase of EUR 63.8 million.

Investments

At EUR 65.1 million, cash-relevant investments in tangible and intangible assets (CAPEX) in 2016 were
lower than in 2015 (EUR 71.8 million). The ratio of CAPEX to depreciation stood at 2.0 in 2016 and
was thus lower than in 2015 (2.4). The investment priorities were on expansion and improvement in
the segments Sempermed (expansion of glove production in Kamunting, Malaysia), Semperform
(expansion of the locations in Wimpassing, Austria, and in Germany) and Semperflex (expansion of
the hose production in Odry, Czech Republic).

Related-party transactions with companies and individuals

With regard to the related-party transactions with companies and individuals please refer to the
Consolidated financial statements and notes.

Additional information

There is a branch office in 2632 Wimpassing, Triester Bundesstral3e 26, Austria.

The  Corporate  Governance report can be found on the Internet at
http://www.semperitgroup.com/en/ir, menu item Corporate Governance. The direct link to the re-
ports is
http://www.semperitgroup.com/en/ir/corporate-governance/corporate-governance-reports/

Performance of the sectors and segments

Industrial Sector

The Industrial Sector comprises the segments Semperflex, Sempertrans and Semperform and devel-
oped better than the market trend. Despite a challenging economic environment and a weak de-
mand development, the Sector recorded only a slight decrease in revenue by 2.8% to
EUR 506.4 million. EBITDA fell by 4.4% to EUR 89.5 million, while EBIT declined somewhat more
strongly by 9.4% to EUR 70.0 million due to higher depreciation related to facilities that were newly
put into operation. With more than 50%, the Semperflex segment contributed the largest share of
EBIT in the Industrial Sector, followed by Semperform with more than 25% and Sempertrans with less
than 20%.

In 2016 the sector's EBITDA margin stood at 17.7%, following 18.0% in 2015. The EBIT margin
was 13.8%, down from 14.8% in 2015. However, the values of 2015 included net earnings from the
Leeser acquisition amounting to EUR 3.4 million. Semperflex reported the highest EBIT margin at
19.5%, followed by Semperform with 11.8% and Sempertrans with 8.2%.
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Key figures Industrial Sector

2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated" 2014?
Revenue 506.4 -2.8% 521.0 477.5
EBITDA 89.5 -4.4% 93.6 88.0
EBITDA margin 17.7% -0.3 PP 18.0% 18.4%
EBIT 70.0 -9.4% 77.2 66.2
EBIT margin 13.8% -1.0 PP 14.8% 13.9%
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 34.9 -0.5% 35.1 35.1
Employees (at balance sheet date) 3,637 +1.7% 3,576 3,352

12015 values restated, see notes page 96ff. in this report (foreign currency adjustments).
2 2014 values restated, see notes page 90f. in Annual Report 2015 (JV adjustments).

Semperflex segment

The Semperflex segment generated further high profitability and slightly declining revenue thanks to
very good production and sales performances in a declining market. The business unit for hydraulic
hoses achieved sales successes primarily in Europe, while North America and Asia recorded weaker
demand. In total, sales of hydraulic hoses increased. The booking situation for the coming months is
good.

The test run for the new capacities for industrial hoses in Odry, Czech Republic, was transferred
into regular operations in the third quarter of 2016. All capacities were, and still are, well utilised due
to strategic partnerships with key customers, while sales of industrial hoses increased.

The comparison of 2016 and the previous year shows a slight decrease in revenue, due to struc-
tural shifts of the portfolio. A slight increase was recorded for EBITDA and EBIT.

Key figures Semperflex

2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated" 2014?
Revenue 202.3 -0.5% 203.4 202.1
EBITDA 48.0 +4.1% 46.1 48.5
EBITDA margin 23.7% +1.0 PP 22.7% 24.0%
EBIT 39.5 +3.4% 38.2 36.8
EBIT margin 19.5% +0.7 PP 18.8% 18.2%
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 14.4 -1.4% 14.6 14.6
Employees (at balance sheet date) 1,674 +8.9% 1,536 1,538

12015 values restated, see notes page 96ff. in this report (foreign currency adjustments).
2 2014 values restated, see notes page 90f. in Annual Report 2015 (JV adjustments).
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Sempertrans segment

The Sempertrans segment defended its position in established markets and held its market position
in new regions and market segments. This was achieved against the background of a stabilisation of
raw material prices for mining products. However, demand for investment goods in the mining indus-
try continued to remain subdued despite first indications of a price increase for individual raw materi-
als in recent months. This also applies to conveyor belts.

Following a period of low raw material prices that were relevant for production, the price level for
raw materials started to increase sharply as of November 2016. These high increases could only
partially be passed on to the customer and with a delay. Combined with competitive pressures of
other manufacturers, price pressures continued to be on a high level. Due to lower demand in the
mining industry, Sempertrans has opened up other customer segments such as harbours, steel and
cement factories to fully utilise its production capacities. These customers, however, rather have a
demand in lighter belts, which has a negative effect on the total volume sold.

Considering the challenging market and competitive environment, the utilisation of production
capacities was satisfying. However, year-on-year, the volume sold was slightly below previous year’s
level for steel cord reinforced conveyor belts, while conveyor belts with textile carcasses achieved a
sales increase. Visibility of demand continued to be low and was characterised by prolonged uncer-
tainty and strong price pressure.

In total, revenue as well as EBITDA and EBIT decreased due to the price pressure and the market
situation described above.

Key figures Sempertrans

2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated" 2014?
Revenue 148.4 -10.0% 164.9 146.4
EBITDA 15.9 -31.5% 23.2 20.9
EBITDA margin 10.7% -3.3PP 14.0% 14.3%
EBIT 121 -39.0% 19.9 16.8
EBIT margin 8.2% -3.9 PP 12.1% 11.5%
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 6.7 -45.7% 12.3 12.3
Employees (at balance sheet date) 1,036 —4,6% 1,086 1,027

1 2015 values restated, see notes page 96ff. in this report (foreign currency adjustments).
2 2014 values restated, see notes page 90f. in Annual Report 2015 (JV adjustments).
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Semperform segment

In a difficult or contracting market environment with volatile demand, the Semperform segment
profited from gaining market shares in the window and door profile as well as the handrail businesses.
In the second and third quarter of 2016, two new extrusion lines for profiles were put into operation
by the profile manufacturer Leeser, which was acquired in the second quarter of 2015. Thanks to
market share gains in Western and Central Europe, sales of window and door profiles were increased
compared with 2015. A sales increase was achieved despite the difficult market environment in Russia
and Ukraine, which caused further substantial declines of the business volume in these markets.
Gaining market shares was driven by an increased demand for high-quality and technically complex
products, which helped to improve positioning with aluminium and wooden windows. In the USA, the
market entry for window profiles was successful and first orders are being fulfilled.

Demand for products of the business unit Semperit Engineered Solutions remained roughly the
same year-on-year, though it continued to show a volatile development. In order to counteract volatil-
ity, the company entered into development partnerships with market leaders in certain product
segments. The business unit Special Applications increased sales.

In 2016, a slight increase in revenue as well as EBITDA was achieved, while EBIT declined. Opera-
tional profitability developed satisfyingly, considering that the values for 2015 included a positive
effect of around EUR 3.4 million from the acquisition of Leeser. The good sales performance as well
as measures for efficiency enhancement contributed to profitability — particularly in production — and

to minimising the costs.

Key figures Semperform

2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated" 20142
Revenue 155.7 +1.9% 152.8 129.0
EBITDA 25.6 +5.1% 24.3 18.6
EBITDA margin 16.4% +0.5 PP 15.9% 14.5%
EBIT 18.3 -4.2% 19.1 12.7
EBIT margin 11.8% -0.7 PP 12.5% 9.9%
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 13.8 +69.7% 8.1 8.1
Employees (at balance sheet date) 928 —2.7% 954 787

12015 values restated, see notes page 96ff. in this report (foreign currency adjustments).
2 2014 values restated, see notes page 90f. in Annual Report 2015 (JV adjustments).
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Medical Sector: Sempermed segment

The development of the Sempermed segment was characterised by a difficult market environment.
This included increased production costs in Malaysia due to an extraordinary increase in salary costs
as well as higher gas and electricity rates at the beginning of 2016, which could not entirely be
passed on to the market. The pricing policy in particular for nitrile gloves was challenging — also due
to overcapacities in the market.

On the raw material side, prices increased in particular for natural latex. Since the beginning of
November 2016 there has been another strong increase of prices. So far, these increases could only
partially be passed on to the customer and with a certain delay. In addition, the use of merchandise
enhanced the margin situation.

The negative impact of the cooperation with the joint venture partner in Thailand (availability of
the gloves was not sufficiently secured, conditions were not satisfying) persisted and involved addi-
tional costs. The earnings contribution of Siam Sempermed Corporation Ltd. was halved from
EUR 16.6 million in 2015 to EUR 7.9 million in 2016, which had a negative effect on EBITDA and EBIT.

Considering this unsatisfying price situation, Sempermed now focuses on the core markets
Europe and North America as well as selected markets in Asia (Japan and South Korea). The overall
focus is on sales of Sempermed brand gloves. This sales strategy, which was adapted to the current
market conditions, is intended to lead to further cost savings and efficiency enhancements in the
coming quarters.

The expansion of the plant and the optimisation of existing capacities in Malaysia were continued.
Relevant start-up costs arise due to the expansion. The initiated cost-cutting programme (production,
marketing, sales) shows first positive results. However, in total, the earnings development is not
satisfying, so that further measures have been taken.

Revenue of the Sector fell by 12.1% to EUR 346.0 million due to heavy price pressure and a weak
start of the year 2016. EBITDA decreased to EUR 6.6 million after EUR 29.4 million in 2015. EBITDA
includes a negative special effect of EUR 4.7 million for provisions relating to levies in Brazil. Relating
to a fire in the former storage in Malaysia, a claim for insurance benefits (fire damage) amounting to
EUR 2.5 million was recorded. Due to the damage caused by the fire, a carrying amount of
EUR 1.3 million was derecognised.

Depreciation at EUR 13.2 million was EUR 1.0 million higher than in the previous year and reflect-
ed the ongoing expansion of the production capacities in Malaysia. In addition, in 2016 there was an
impairment totalling EUR 17.3 million. Of this total, EUR 17.0 million were accounted for by impair-
ment of the goodwill of the Sempermed segment as a special effect, which was necessary in the
context of the joint venture transaction as well as the development in the Sempermed segment,
which was weaker than expected.

EBIT fell to EUR -23.9 million, following EUR 17.2 million in 2015. Considering the two special ef-
fects (levies in Brazil and impairment of Sempermed goodwill), EBIT for the Sempermed segment
amounted to EUR -2.2 million in 2016.

Demand for examination and protective gloves improved during 2016. Especially the structured
market access to the Industrial (occupational health and retail) and Medical market segments contrib-
uted to this development. Sales of surgical gloves, which are produced in the core production facility
in Wimpassing, Austria, showed development above average due to higher demand in the core
markets compared to the previous year and resulted in a new maximum volume.

For further information on the joint venture transaction please refer to page 49f. The arbitration
proceedings against the joint venture partner Sri Trang or the joint venture company SSC are ex-
plained on page 163f. of the notes.
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Key figures Sempermed

2015
in EUR million 2016 Change restated" 2014?
Revenue 346.0 -12.1% 393.7 380.8
EBITDA adjusted 1.3 -61.5% 29.4 335
EBITDA margin adjusted 3.3% -4.2 PP 7.5% 8.8%
EBITDA 6.6 -77.6% 29.4 33.5
EBITDA margin 1.9% -5.6 PP 7.5% 8.8%
EBIT adjusted -2.2 - 17.2 17.6
EBIT margin adjusted -0.6% -5.0 PP 4.4% 4.6%
EBIT -23.9 - 17.2 17.6
EBIT margin -6.9% -11.3 PP 4.4% 4.6%
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 25.7 -13.0% 29.6 29.6
Employees (at balance sheet date) 3,183 -4,8% 3,344 3,428

12015 values restated, see notes page 96ff. in this report (foreign currency adjustments).
2 2014 values restated, see notes page 90f. in Annual Report 2015 (JV adjustments).
3 Values are adjusted for special effects (levies in Brazil and impairment of the Sempermed goodwill).

Sustainability

Long-term success is only possible in harmony with the environment and society. Therefore, we have

made sustainability a fundamental principle of our company strategy. Our ethical principles, which are

explained in more detail in the Code of Conduct, are the basis for all operations. The Sustainability

Council designs and further develops current and future areas of work in the sustainability field. The

Council comprises managerial staff from the segments and the central functions and deals with the

group-wide establishment of sustainability management. There are guidelines that are valid through-

out the group as well as measures and initiatives for the following five key topics of the sustainability

strategy:

o Safety, health, environment: At Semperit, human and environmental safety is our highest priority.
We systematically protect our employees from risks.

e Resource management: We constantly enhance our resource efficiency to reduce environmental
pollution and increase profitability.

e Employees and society: We create attractive and fair working conditions. Supporting social projects
at our locations worldwide is important to us.

o Suppliers: We work with suppliers, who act in harmony with the environment and society. Thus, we
ensure sustainability along the entire supply chain.

e Innovation: We develop innovative products, processes and materials. Here we focus on highest
user benefits and environmental friendliness.

In 2016, the focus of sustainability management was on the development and expansion of the sus-
tainability strategy based on an extensive stakeholder survey and the definition of KPIs (key perfor-
mance indicators) for the different business segments. The next step will be the preparation of exter-
nal reporting in agreement with the GRI (Global Reporting Initiative). It also includes an extensive
data collection in all sustainability segments that have been defined as material. The Semperit sus-
tainability policies are available at www.semperitgroup.com/sustainability.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2016, the number of employees was 6.974, which is -1.1% below the level of 31
December 2015. The employee headcount fell in all segments except the segments Semperflex and
Corporate Center. The analysis by segments shows that slightly less than half of the employees work in
the Sempermed segment, while around 20% work in the Semperflex segment and less than 15% in the
Sempertrans and Semperform segments respectively.

Number of employees (full time equivalents) at year end

Change 2016

2016 Structure vs. 2015 2015 2014
Semperflex 1,674 24.0% 8.9% 1,536 1,538
Sempertrans 1,036 14.8% -4.6% 1,086 1,027
Semperform 928 13.3% -2.7% 954 787
Sempermed 3,183 45.6% -4.8% 3,344 3,428
Corporate Center 154 2.2% 15.5% 133 108
Total 6,974 100.0% -1.1% 7,053 6,888
thereof Austria 838 12.0% 2.0% 821 821
thereof Semperit AG Holding 121 1.7% 13.8% 107 97

Training and professional education

Semperit's Group management understands that the expertise and innovative strength of employees
are critical success factors for expanding the company’s market positions. The group therefore offers
an extensive training and professional education programme to teach employees the necessary
professional skills so that they are optimally prepared for their operational and strategic challenges.
As part of a comprehensive training catalogue, personal development training is offered to, among
other things, provide employees with skills for conflict, time and target management, as well as
presentation techniques. In addition, employees have the opportunity to participate in specialized

training courses.
Research and development

By means of successful research and development, generations of competent engineers, chemists,
physicists, basic researchers, plastic engineers and application engineers have made significant con-
tributions to 190 years of history of the Semperit Group. Today research and development is focused
on three pillars: further development of materials (both elastomers and reinforcing materials), product
development and process development.

The research and development units of the Semperit Group are located in Malaysia, China, India,
Poland, the Czech Republic, Germany and Austria. All of the related activities concerning this matter
are coordinated at the Research & Development Center in Wimpassing, Austria. With more than 60
employees in research and development, the site in Wimpassing also serves for coordination with
external development partners and the trans-sectoral exchange of knowledge and experience. In the
Group, more than 250 employees work in research and development all over the world. Expenses
amount to more than EUR 13 million or more than 1% of revenue per year. Semperit's innovation
power is also reflected in the Group having approximately 50 patent families at its disposal.
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The Semperit Group's research strategy is focused on the following objectives:

e Market-oriented product innovations as a basis to continue the growth strategy.

e Optimising the use of resources: the energy and materials used in the production and design of
products are constantly being optimised (waste of energy/waste of material/waste of properties).
The resulting benefits in terms of quality help ensure competitive advantages.

® More flexible production methods enable the group to respond rapidly to changes in raw material
prices and market demand.

e Knowledge transfer as a precondition for achieving synergies.

Disclosures pursuant to Section 243a (1) of the Austrian Commercial
Code (UGB)

1.The share capital of Semperit AG Holding amounted to EUR 21,358,996.53 as at 31 December 2016
and consisted of 20,573,434 non-par-value ordinary shares, each carrying equal rights in every respect.

The Management Board was authorised by the Annual General Meeting on 26 April 2016 (anew) —
simultaneously repealing the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of 23 April 2012 in this
regard — subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the share capital in the coming
five years after registration of the amendment into the company register — in several tranches — against
cash and/or contributions in kind by 50% or up to 10,286,717 new bearer shares. The Management
Board is also authorised (anew), subject to the agreement of the Supervisory Board, to issue converti-
ble bonds. These can be associated with conversion or subscription rights or obligations for up to
10,286,717 bearer shares of the company (50% of the existing shares).

The Annual General Meeting on 26 April 2016 authorised the Management Board — simultaneously
revoking the existing authorisation for repurchasing own shares pursuant to Section 65 Para. 1 Z 8 of
the AktG of 29 April 2014 — with the consent of the Supervisory Board, to repurchase and, if applica-
ble, retire own shares up to the legally permitted maximum of 10% of the share capital for a period of
30 months from the adoption of the resolution in the Annual General Meeting in accordance with
Section 65 (1) (8) of the AktG. At the same Annual General Meeting, the Management Board was
authorised, pursuant to Section 65 (1b) of the AktG and with the consent of the Supervisory Board, to
decide on a different method of selling shares than via the stock exchange or through a public offer
and on a possible exclusion of the pre-emption rights (subscription right) of shareholders. There is
currently no share buyback programme and the company does not hold any treasury shares.

2. There are no restrictions with regard to voting rights or the transfer of shares except for provi-
sions contained in the Austrian Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz — AktG).

3. B & C Semperit Holding GmbH directly owned more than 50% of the shares in Semperit AG
Holding as at 31 December 2016 and is the majority shareholder of Semperit AG Holding. The pri-
vate foundation B & C Privatstiftung is the highest controlling legal entity. B & C Holding Osterreich
GmbH is an indirect majority shareholder, who prepares and publishes consolidated financial state-
ments including the Semperit Group. More than 10% of the ordinary shares had been held by Legg
Mason Inc., USA, since 10 March 2011. In 2015 and 2016, this share was gradually decreased. As of
12 January 2016, the interest of Legg Mason Inc., USA, has been less than 3%. FMR Co., Inc (Fidelity
Management & Research Company) has held more than 5% as of 17 February 2016. The remaining
shares are in free float.

4. No shares were issued entitling the owners to special control rights.

5. Employees who own shares are entitled to exercise their right to vote at the Annual General
Meeting.

6. There are no other regulations extending beyond the legal requirements that relate to the
appointment and dismissal of members of the Management Board.
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7. The following applies with respect to the appointment and revocation of Supervisory Board
members pursuant to the Articles of Association: unless a shorter term of office is specified, Superviso-
ry Board members are elected until the end of the Annual General Meeting resolving upon the ratifica-
tion of the actions of the Management and Supervisory Boards for the fourth year after the election,
not including the financial year in which the election took place. However, at least one-fifth of all Su-
pervisory Board members are required to resign each year, effective at the end of the Annual General
Meeting. In cases in which the number of Supervisory Board members is greater than but not divisible
by five, this number will be alternately raised and lowered to numbers divisible by five. In cases in
which the number of Supervisory Board members is less than five, the number five will be used as a
base only in every second year.

The selection of the members departing will be undertaken using the following procedures: those
members whose terms of office expire are to be the first to depart. Should the above divisibility not
be attained by this, those members are to depart whose terms of office are the longest. In cases in
which this procedure yields a number of members eligible for departure that is greater than required,
the selection among them will be undertaken through the drawing of lots. This procedure is also used
to decide in cases in which the above rules do not suffice to determine which members will depart.
Those departing are immediately eligible for re-election.

Should members - not including those cases described in the previous paragraph - depart from
the board prior to the expiry of their term of office, the election held to replace them need not be
held before the next Annual General Meeting. However, an election to replace them is to be held
without delay via the convening of an Extraordinary General Meeting in cases in which the number of
Supervisory Board members declines to less than five. These replacement elections are effective for
the remaining term of office of the members who have departed. In cases in which a member is
elected to the Supervisory Board by convening an Extraordinary General Meeting, the member’s first
year of office is deemed to conclude at the end of the next Annual General Meeting.

Any member of the Supervisory Board can resign from it even without good cause by submitting
written notification of such. Should this cause the number of members of the Supervisory Board to
decline to below the minimum specified number, a four-week notice period must be observed.

8. With regard to amendments to the Articles of Association, these are enacted with a simple ma-
jority of the share capital represented at the Annual General Meeting, inasmuch as the AktG does not
stipulate any other procedure.

9. Certain financing agreements contain contractual clauses regarding a change of control in the
event of takeovers pursuant to Section 243a Para. (1) (8) of the Austrian Commercial Code (Unter-
nehmensgesetzbuch — UGB).

10. There are no compensation agreements pursuant to Section 243a (1) (9) of the UGB.
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Risk report

Risk environment

As a group with international activities, Semperit constantly has to face new challenges as a result of
the current fragility of the global economy with its strong regional differences. Semperit operates in
countries with different economic framework conditions. In addition, these countries are in different
phases of political, constitutional and social development. Semperit is subject to risks related to this
situation. The strategic orientation of each of Semperit's four operating segments means that their
success depends to differing degrees on the general economic environment.

A risk potential of Semperit's worldwide business activities is the volatility of exchange rates, par-
ticularly between Euro and US dollar/Polish zloty/Czech crown as well as between US dollar and
Malaysian ringgit/Singapore dollar/Chinese renminbi. Therefore, unfavourable exchange rate fluctua-
tions may have significant effects on results.

Increasing raw material costs, energy prices and wage costs, which cannot be passed on fast
enough to the customers through selling prices, may lead to a deterioration in Semperit’s results.

Risks such as fire and natural or environmental disasters are also associated with significant poten-
tial losses for Semperit.

Risk management and organisation

The Management Board of Semperit AG Holding and the bodies subordinate to it undertake exten-
sive monitoring and controlling tasks with respect to operating units in the context of an integrated
control system covering all group sites. Identifying and evaluating strategic risks and opportunities
and responding to them at an early stage are accordingly an important component of these units’
management activity. The foundation for this is a standardised, group-wide monthly reporting
system.

Semperit's objective is to minimise significant risk potentials of future events through an effective
enterprise risk management. Furthermore, risk management supports the achievement of company
objectives as well as the company strategy while simultaneously developing competitive advantages.
In addition to compliance with legal requirements, the main objective of group-wide risk manage-
ment is to increase risk awareness and to integrate the perceptions into operational work and strate-
gic company development.

The Risk Management & Assurance department is responsible for central coordination, modera-
tion and monitoring of the risk management process for the entire group. Together with the opera-
tional units, the department records and assesses the principal risks and reports them to senior staff
and the Management Board. At least once a year, the department comprehensively reports the
significant risks to the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board. The Risk Management & Assurance
department is assisted by regional risk managers in the individual group units and also includes the
insurance area. Whenever possible, measures to reduce risks are also implemented by arranging
external insurance cover.

61



62

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Group management report

The process follows the international COSO standards (Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
of the Treadway Commission) and is represented in a systematic risk management process with risk
identification (bottom-up), risk assessment, development of measures and follow-up. This process
ensures that risks are identified in time and appropriate risk-mitigating actions are implemented.
Another task of the Risk Management & Assurance department is to keep track of the adequate
implementation of actions with the risk owners.

Risk management and the Internal Control System (ICS, also see page 66f.) are strategic and op-
erational elements. They support a sustainable company success and aim at minimising risks. The
legal framework and guidelines for risk management are laid down in the Risk Management Guide-
line.

Ernst & Young Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H. audited and approved the functionality of
Semperit's risk management system for 2016 according to C-Rule 83 of the Austrian Code of Corpo-
rate Governance.

Specific significant risks

An assessment of the general market risks resulting from developments in the world economy and in
the regions and industries of relevance to Semperit is made in the group management report’s sec-
tion “Outlook”. Selected specific risks and precautionary measures taken are explained below.

Operational risks

Procurement risk

Semperit purchases large amounts of raw material such as rubber (particularly synthetic rubber),
chemicals, bulking agents and both textile and steel reinforcing materials as well as energy for manu-
facturing its products. These raw materials are subject to high price volatility. Price increases can be
passed on to the customer only partially or with delay — depending on the respective market situa-
tion. Therefore, an increase in raw material prices may have a negative impact on earnings and a
shortage of individual raw materials may pose a risk. In this context, there are asset, financial and
earnings risks.

Semperit manages this risk category by actively steering its supplier portfolio, and through a globally
oriented purchasing management system that is coordinated throughout the group. Semperit's pres-
ence in Asia, the world’s most important region for rubber production, ensures proximity to producers
at all points along the value chain. Long-term relationships also exist with suppliers of other important
raw materials such as synthetic rubber, chemicals, bulking agents and both textile and steel reinforcing
materials. At the Semperit research and development centre in Wimpassing, Austria, interdisciplinary
teams are constantly working to develop alternative formulas so that Semperit can respond quickly
and with flexibility to fluctuations in commodity prices and supply bottlenecks. This adaptability is
also ensured by the flexible structuring of the group’s production facilities.

Production and utilisation risks
Despite all these efforts, the risk of operational disruptions, accidents or underutilisation of produc-
tion sites cannot be completely eliminated. Disruptions can be caused, in particular, by natural phe-
nomena that are beyond the control of Semperit, which in turn may have a negative effect on the
assets, financial and earnings position.

The Semperit Group has established high technical and safety standards for its production sites in
Austria and abroad. The risk of downtime at production plants is also reduced through regular
maintenance including preventive maintenance as well as through flexible production control. As far
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as possible, the company protects itself against these types of risk with insurance to an extent that is
reasonable from a commercial perspective.

Environmental risks
In the production process, unforeseen incidents may cause environmental risks/damage to the envi-
ronment, which may have negative effects on Semperit’s assets, financial and earnings position.

With the SHE programme (Safety/Health/Environment), Semperit tries to identify these risks in
time and to minimise the associated potential risks.

Sales, customer and default risks

For companies of various industries and regions there is a latent danger of a declining business de-
velopment. If the business developments of several major Semperit customers decline at the same
time, this may have a negative effect on the assets, financial and earnings position.

Semperit's customer structure is relatively broad and well-balanced, thus avoiding an excessive
concentration of risk on individual customers. No customer accounts for more than 5% of the group’s
consolidated revenue.

Credit risks and the risk of payment default are reduced by the implementation of standardised
credit checks, defined credit limits and credit insurance. When credit insurances do not apply, there is
a higher risk of debt defaults, depending on the customer’s creditworthiness.

Sales risk is also reduced through the management of the product portfolio, as well as the ongo-
ing development of product innovations and by tapping into new markets. Semperit handles the risk
of overcapacities by evaluating market and order data on an ongoing basis in order to be able to
respond quickly to changes with the appropriate measures such as temporary shutdowns and adjust-
ments of working shifts.

Risks of information technology (IT)

The major part of production, control systems and services depends on functioning and error-free IT
landscapes. The failure of essential servers and production scheduling units, ERP systems, unavailabil-
ity, and unauthorised access to IT networks (cyber-crime) may lead to a loss of production volumes
that cannot be recovered anymore, a reduction in quality or delivery failures and therefore have a
negative effect on Semperit. IT systems that were developed in-house, which require a high degree
of manual interventions and that may impair data quality are an additional risk.

Therefore, it is Semperit's goal to create and maintain a functioning and error-free IT landscape. In
2016, an extensive update of software programmes for controlling machines was initiated, which is
intended to minimise potential failures in mixed operations. Furthermore, another focus is on tech-
nical security measures which avoid the risk of unauthorised access to IT networks and systems.

Personnel risk

Semperit's business performance in the future will be largely determined by the recruitment of ade-
quately qualified professional and managerial staff at the individual locations and the reduction of
dependencies on key persons. A shortage of manpower may lead to a declining utilisation of produc-
tion facilities as well as restrictions in other business sectors and therefore may have a negative im-
pact on productivity as well as on the assets, financial and earnings position.

Semperit competes for highly qualified specialists and executive staff by working closely with uni-
versities, colleges and advanced technical colleges, and by positioning itself as an attractive employer
at trade fairs and similar events. In addition to forward-looking succession planning, the bases of
human resources management is formed by attractive opportunities for individual development and
performance-based remuneration systems.

63



64

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Group management report

Risks relating to legal proceedings
It cannot be ruled out that the outcome of legal proceedings and lawsuits may have a negative effect
on the assets, financial and earnings position of the Semperit Group.

Likewise, compliance breaches such as cartel and corruption infringements pose considerable
risks and may have adverse effects relating to financial and reputational damage.

The arbitration and national proceedings of the Semperit Group and the Thai joint venture part-
ner Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Company Limited are explained in detail in the notes, see page
163f. On 18 January 2017, the termination of several joint venture agreements with Sri Trang was
announced, see page 49f of this Group management report and page 107f in the notes.

In October 2015, the Federal Competition Authority (Bundeswettbewerbsbehérde) initiated pro-
ceedings against Semperit and the Sri Trang companies at the Vienna Antitrust Court due to a request
of Sri Trang companies, which are joint venture partners of Semperit in Siam Sempermed Corporation
Ltd. — see page 165 in the notes.

One group company is involved in anti-trust proceedings. The state of the proceedings does not
allow an estimation of the outcome with sufficient likelihood. The proceedings take place before the
authorities in coordination with local specialists. The subsidiary is cooperating with the competent
authorities and has committed to providing full support. The Semperit Group’s management does not
expect a substantial impairment of the Group’s assets, financial and earnings position from these
proceedings. A provision of the most probable amount according to IAS 37 has been made for the
expected costs and the associated risk according to the assessment of the Semperit Group. A possi-
ble need for adaptation is assessed periodically.

Risks in connection with the joint venture transaction and the reorientation of the
Sempermed segment

There are certain risks that may have negative effects on the assets, financial and earnings position of
the group relating to the termination of the joint ventures in Thailand, the reorientation of the Sem-
permed segment, the capacity expansion at the location in Malaysia as well as further aspects in-
volved including the failure of the joint venture termination.

Financial risks
As required by IFRS 7.31, the financial risks are described in detail in the notes under point 8. A
summary and interpretation is provided below.

Capital and financial risks

The goals with capital management are to ensure the company’s going concern status and to enable
growth-oriented organic (own business activity without acquisitions) and non-organic (acquisitions)
investment activity and dividend policies based on these goals. Relating to loan agreements, the
usual covenants include a termination by the banks/investors in case of non-compliance and therefore
a possible negative effect on the assets, financial and earnings position.

Against the backdrop of the group’s organic and non-organic growth strategy, the Semperit
Group has decided not to establish a firmly defined target capital structure because different capital
structures could be required. Management aims to ensure that the group has a sustainably robust
capital structure.
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Interest rate risk
Operating resources, investments and acquisitions in the group’s business operations are partially
financed using debt and partially carry variable interest rates. An increase in interest rates may have
negative effects on the asset, liabilities, financial and earnings position.

Semperit tries to minimise the interest rate risk by various measures, among other things by a
well-balanced ratio between variable and fixed interest rate agreements.

Default and liquidity risk

There are default risks relating to Semperit's bank deposits. These deposits are not or only partially
secured by deposit protection funds and may be the reason why Semperit cannot or only partially or
only with some delay access this liquidity or credit lines in case of difficulties of individual banks or
another bank and/or financial crisis. In addition, Semperit has business activities in countries with
capital controls or agreements with joint venture partners, which results in restrictions on the free
availability of the respective cash and cash equivalents. The above-mentioned risks may have nega-
tive effects on the assets, financial and earnings position.

Semperit's contractual partners are for the most part banks with a good credit rating. Further-
more, Semperit has defined maximum investment amounts with each contractual partner in order to
minimise the default risk. In countries with restricted cash transfer, Semperit tries to limit the locally
kept amount to the operationally necessary minimum.

Currency risk

As a result of international trading activities in various foreign currencies, the Semperit Group is
exposed to currency risks. There are associated transaction risks in all group companies, which for
example purchase raw materials in foreign currencies or sell products in another currency than the
Euro. The main currencies in this context are the US dollar, Czech crown, Polish zloty and Malaysian
ringgit. In the notes under point 8. “Risk management/Currency risk management” there is a listing
of revenue by the major currencies as well as those currency pairs that exist versus the Euro and the
US dollar which pose a significant currency risk.

The primary objective of currency risk management is to achieve a natural balance of the currencies
used on the level of the group companies by determining the billing currencies and the terms of
payment of the subsidiaries. Furthermore, in individual cases the company protects itself against individual
risks with forward transactions. No derivative financial instruments are concluded for the purpose of speculation.

Currency risks also exist in the context of granting Euro loans to group companies in other curren-
cy areas. In 2016, Semperit partially took up external financing in the companies’ functional currencies
and repaid the Euro loans to minimise these risks.
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Tax risks

Semperit's subsidiaries are subject to local tax legislation in the respective countries and have to pay
profit taxes as well as other (local) taxes and fees. Changes in tax legislation and different interpreta-
tions of the respective provisions in force may lead to subsequent tax burdens.

Currently a subsidiary is involved in tax proceedings relating to levies in Brazil, in which the man-
agement now assumes for the assessment years 2008 to 2010 that the requirement of a provision is
met due to the negative development of the proceedings in the financial year of 2016 as well as
additional external statements. For the assessment years 2011 and 2012, the management still as-
sumes that there is no need to form provisions for a possible tax risk — see page 162 in the notes.

Since the tax liabilities have to be settled in Brazilian real, there are currency risks deriving from
the relation Euro versus Brazilian real.

Internal Control System (ICS)

Semperit's internal control system is designed to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of its busi-
ness activities, the reliability of its financial reporting and compliance with relevant statutory regula-
tions. It also supports the early recognition and monitoring of risks deriving from inadequate monitor-
ing systems and fraudulent actions and is revised and expanded on an ongoing basis by the Risk
Management & Assurance department together with the relevant specialist departments. The man-
agement of the respective business unit is responsible for implementing and monitoring the ICS and
the risk management system. The Management Board of Semperit AG Holding stipulates cross-
divisional framework conditions and regulations that are applicable throughout the group. Regular
follow-up audits are performed at the locations to ensure the sustained implementation of the
framework conditions and regulations.

The following principles form the basis of the ICS:

* Recognition of potential operating risks and making losses visible that have already occurred
* Protection of property

* Improvement in operating effectiveness

* Ensuring the accuracy of accounting and reporting

e Compliance with internal and external laws and regulations

* Auditability by independent experts

* Ensuring adequate implementation and segregation of duties

At the time this management report was prepared, no risks could be identified in connection with
future developments that could threaten the continued existence of the Semperit Group either in
isolation or jointly. Adequate insurance has been taken out for specific liability risks and damages
when reasonable and cost effective.
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Outlook

After weak growth of the global economy in the past year, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) is
expecting a slight increase in global economic growth to 3.4% (2016: 3.1%). However, this develop-
ment is still characterised by instabilities caused by the political framework conditions.

In detail the outlook shows a differentiated development. At 1.9% (USA: 2.3%, euro area: 1.6%),
the forecast GDP growth of the industrialised countries is higher in 2017 than the figure of 1.6% in
the previous year. This moderate economic recovery is primarily based on increased industrial utilisa-
tion. For 2017, the IMF expects a heterogeneous scenario for the emerging and developing coun-
tries: while growth in China will slow down further, the prospects for India and Russia have improved.
For South America, the IMF expects the weak economic development to continue.

After having reached the bottom in 2016, Semperit expects a moderate improvement of market
conditions in the course of 2017 based on this development. Due to the rising trend of raw material
prices as well as better economic forecasts, the generally low demand in the industrial sector is likely
to recover slowly. A gradual easing of the investment backlog in the Industrial Sector might lead to a
demand recovery. Demand in the Medical Sector, which is largely independent of economic cycles, is
expected to continue to increase in 2017. However, on the supply side, the glove market continues to
face overcapacities, which leads to further price and margin pressures.

For 2017, Semperit expects a largely stable sales development with good capacity utilisation and
positive one-off effects on earnings in connection with the joint venture transaction. The expected
closing of the joint venture transaction — taking into account a non-cash reduction of goodwill -, will
have positive one-off effects amounting to EUR 85-95 million on the EBITDA and EBIT bases as well
as around EUR 65-75 million of earnings after tax. Semperit continues to expect a cash inflow from
the joint venture transaction of around USD 200 million (around EUR 187 million) before taxes, of
which a major part has been hedged against currency fluctuations. Semperit thus strengthens its
capital base and promotes investments for further growth.

From today's perspective, the adjusted EBIT (without one-off effects from the joint venture trans-
action) for the financial year 2017 will be below the adjusted EBIT of 2016 (EUR 49 million). The main
reason for this are increasing raw material prices, which in both Sectors can probably only be passed
on to the customers with a delay, and the elimination of the earnings contribution of Siam Sem-
permed Corporation Ltd. caused by the joint venture transaction. Furthermore, the currently high
utilisation of production capacities limits the positive effects of the expected market recovery on the
sales development in the Industrial Sector.

Outlook Industrial Sector

Semperit expects a largely stable development in the Industrial Sector for the overall year of 2017
due to the strong market positions. Passing on increases in raw material prices with a delay will have
a negative effect on the results. In the Semperflex segment, the production capacities are well utilised
although market conditions are currently still difficult. However, volume growth as in previous years
will only be possible after further expansion of the hose factory in Odry, Czech Republic. In the Sem-
pertrans segment capacity bookings are satisfactory despite the difficult situation in the customer
markets. Due to the rising raw material prices, a reduction of the investment reluctance in important
customer groups may lead to an improvement of profitability at the earliest as of the second half of
2017. Utilisation in the Semperform segment continues to be satisfactory.
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Outlook Medical Sector

In the Medical Sector, Semperit expects largely unchanged market conditions in 2017. Increasing raw
material and energy prices as well as overcapacities in the market lead to high margin pressure in the
global glove business. This unsatisfying price situation will also have a negative effect on the earnings
development of the Medical Sector in the financial year of 2017. However, the joint venture transac-
tion was the basis for a successful realignment of the Sempermed segment. Therefore, 2017 should
be viewed as a transition year for Sempermed, in which the development of its own medical business
after the pending settlement of the legal disputes with the joint venture partner can be pushed
ahead. In order to achieve cost and earnings improvements, Semperit counteracts the non-satisfying
earnings development in the Sempermed segment by additional operational optimisation measures
and a marketing and sales strategy that is adapted to the current market situation.

Pursuing strategic objectives

The strategic orientation will remain unchanged in 2017. Semperit continues to focus on organic
growth as well as operational earnings improvements in the Medical Sector. Investments in the ex-
pansion of capacities will be continued. In the Industrial Sector, the production capacities for hoses in
Odry, Czech Republic, for conveyor belts in Betchatéw, Poland, as well as for window and door pro-
files in Germany will be expanded. In the Medical Sector, the focus is on the expansion of the factory
in Malaysia as well as cost savings and efficiency enhancements. Total capital expenditures (CAPEX) of
around EUR 80-90 million (2016: EUR 65 million) have been planned for 2017.

Note

This outlook is based on the assessments of the Management Board as of 9 March 2017. The Man-
agement Board expects a closing of the joint venture transaction announced on 18 January 2017. The
outlook does not take into account the effects of possible acquisitions, divestments or other unfore-
seeable structural or economic changes during the further course of 2017. These assessments are
subject to both known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which may result in actual events and
outcomes differing from the statements made here.
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Consolidated income statement
2015
in EUR thousand Note 2016 restated”
Revenue 5.1. 852,379 914,686
Changes in inventories 2,169 6,788
Own work capitalised 4,549 6,217
Operating revenue 859,097 927,691
Other operating income 5.2. 10,477 9,145
Cost of material and purchased services 5.3. -505,504 -555,785
Personnel expenses 5.4. -165,294 -164,813
Other operating expenses 5.5. -129,237 -137,092
Share of profits from joint ventures and associated companies 3.2. 8,370 17,078
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 77,909 96,224
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible and intangible assets 5.6. -33,265 -29,462
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 5.6. -17,334 -16
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 27,310 66,746
Financial income 5.7. 22,813 29,206
Financial expenses 5.7. -36,350 -31,776
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests 6.10. -6,393 -5,395
Financial result -19,930 -7,965
Earnings before tax 7.379 58,781
Income taxes 5.8. -16,182 -12,419
Earnings after tax -8,802 46,363
thereof attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding 6.9. -8,799 46,394
thereof attributable to non-controlling interests 6.9. -3 =31
Earnings per share in EUR (diluted and undiluted)? 5.9. -0.43 2.26

12015 values restated, see page 96 in the notes (Foreign Exchange restatement).
2 Attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

in EUR thousand Note 2016 2015
Earnings after tax according to the consolidated income statement -8,802 46,363
Other comprehensive income
Amounts that will not be recognised through profit and loss in future periods
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (IAS 19) 6.11. -523 2,060
Related deferred taxes 6.8. 328 -2,153
-195 -93
Other comprehensive income from joint ventures / non-current assets held for sale 6.9.
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (IAS 19) 6.11. 9 247
Related deferred taxes 6.8. -1 -36
7 211
-188 118
Amounts that will potentially be recognised through profit and loss in future periods
Available-for-sale financial assets
Revaluation gains / losses for the period 5.7. 12 -112
Cash flow hedges
Revaluation gains / losses for the period 8. 289 624
Reclassification to profit and loss for the period 274 771
15 1,395
Other comprehensive income from joint ventures / non-current assets held for sale 6.9.
Currency translation differences for the period 5.7. 4,884 2,545
Currency translation differences 5.7.
Currency translation differences for the period -5,374 -7,296
Related deferred taxes 6.8. -7 -299
-469 -3,767
Other comprehensive income -657 -3,649
Total recognised comprehensive income -9,459 42,714
thereof on earnings attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding -9,269 42,949
thereof on earnings attributable to non-controlling interests -191 -236
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Consolidated cash flow statement

in EUR thousand Note 2016 2015
Earnings before tax 7,379 58,781
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and write-ups of tangible and intangible assets 6.1./6.2. 50,595 29,473
Profit / loss from disposal of assets

(including current and non-current financial assets) 1,829 345
Change in non-current provisions 3,731 -4,735
Share of profits from joint ventures and associated companies -8,370 -17,078
Badwill arising from business combinations 3.5. 0 -3,376
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests 6,393 5,395
Net interest income (including income from securities) 5,084 3,466
Interest paid -5,904 -4,330
Interest received 1,178 1,277
Taxes paid on income -13,839 -13,502
Gross cash flow 48,077 55,717
Change in inventories -2,393 -2,549
Change in trade receivables 6,675 -9,202
Change in other receivables and assets -2,800 -8,925
Change in trade payables 1,193 14,878
Change in other liabilities and current provisions -15,011 5,181
Changes in working capital resulting from currency translation adjustments -1,324 4,717
Cash flow from operating activities 34,416 59,816
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets 266 299
Proceeds from sale of current and non-current financial assets 2 0
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 6.1./62./7. -65,072 -71,848
Investments in current and non-current financial assets 0 -8
Net cash outflow on business combinations (net of cash acquired) 0 -17,474
Cash flow from investing activities -64,804 -89,032
Cash receipts from current and non-current financing liabilities 144,204 239,401
Repayment of current and non-current financing liabilities —-26,552 -76,537
Dividend to shareholders of Semperit AG Holding 6.9. 24,688 -123,441
Dividends to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries 6.10. 0 -1,003
Acquisition of non-controlling interests -57 -63
Cash flow from financing activities 92,907 38,358
Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents 62,518 9,142
Effects resulting from currency translation 1,259 1,714
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 126,430 115,574
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 190,208 126,430
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Consolidated balance sheet

in EUR thousand Note 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 6.1. 53,396 111,314
Tangible assets 6.2. 313,560 276,630
Investments in joint ventures and associated companies 3.2 2,608 102,670
Other financial assets 6.5. 13,170 12,372
Other assets 6.6. 4,404 5,275
Deferred taxes 6.8. 18,846 16,717
405,984 524,978
Current assets
Inventories 6.3. 138,105 135,711
Trade receivables 6.4. 118,844 125,519
Other financial assets 6.5. 7,698 2,284
Other assets 6.6. 14,121 16,670
Current tax receivables 6,842 6,192
Cash and cash equivalents 6.7. 190,208 126,430
475,817 412,806
Non-current assets held for sale 3.2 152,684 0
628,501 412,806
ASSETS 1,034,485 937,784
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 6.9.
Share capital 21,359 21,359
Capital reserves 21,503 21,503
Revenue reserves 284,079 317,733
Currency translation reserve -11,670 2,664
Reserves, which are classified as non-current assets held for sale 14,033 0
Equity attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding 329,304 363,260
Non-controlling interests 1,675 1,924
330,979 365,183
Non-current provisions and liabilities
Provisions for pension and severance payments 6.11. 40,066 40,775
Other provisions 6.12. 16,384 11,421
Liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests 6.10. 14,319 44,192
Corporate Schuldschein loan 6.13. 275,578 132,615
Liabilities to banks 6.14. 136,421 162,898
Other financial liabilities 6.15. 796 862
Other liabilities 6.16. 832 746
Deferred taxes 6.8. 17,836 11,924
502,231 405,433
Current provisions and liabilities
Provisions for pension and severance payments 6.11. 2,612 2,866
Other provisions 6.12. 7,676 19,033
Liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests 6.10. 37,506 0
Corporate Schuldschein loan 6.13. 1,969 1,481
Liabilities to banks 6.14. 6,814 5,560
Trade payables 111,569 100,660
Other financial liabilities 6.15. 15,576 13,762
Other liabilities 6.16. 13,349 19,037
Current tax liabilities 4,203 4,769
201,275 167,168
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,034,485 937,784
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Consolidated statement of the changes in equity
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Revenue reserves

Total equity
attributable

to the share- Non-
Re- Other Total Currency  holders of  control-

Share Capital valuation revenue revenue translation Semperit AG ling Total
in EUR thousand Note capital reserves reserves reserves" reserves reserve? Holding interests equity
As at 1.1.2015 21,359 21,503 284 393,405 393,690 7,211 443,762 2,211 445,973

Earnings after tax 0 0 0 46,394 46,394 0 46,394 -31 46,363
Other comprehensive
income 0 0 -84 1,186 1,102 -4,546 -3,445 -204 -3,649
Total recognised
comprehensive income -84 47,580 47,496 -4,546 42,949 -236 42,714
Dividend 6.9. 0 -123,441 -123,441 0 -123,441 0 -123,441
Acquisition of non-
controlling interests 3.6. 0 0 0 -1 -1 0 -1 =51 -63
As at 31.12.2015 21,359 21,503 200 317,533 317,733 2,664 363,260 1,924 365,183
As at 1.1.2016 21,359 21,503 200 317,533 317,733 2,664 363,260 1,924 365,183
Earnings after tax 0 0 0 -8,799 -8,799 0 -8,799 -3 -8,802
Other comprehensive
income 0 0 9 -177 -168 -302 -470 -187 -657
Total recognised
comprehensive income -8,976 -8,967 -302 -9,269 -191 -9,459
Dividend 6.9. 0 0 0 24,688 24,688 0 -24,688 0 -24,688
Acquisition of non-
controlling interests 3.6. 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 -58 -57
As at 31.12.2016 21,359 21,503 209 283,870 284,079 2,363 329,304 1,675 330,979

" Includes reserves which are classified as non-current assets held for sale.
2 ncludes currency translation reserves which are classified as non-current assets held for sale.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

1. General information

Semperit Aktiengesellschaft Holding (hereinafter Semperit AG Holding), a joint stock company ac-
cording to Austrian law, is an internationally operating industrial group headquartered at the address
Modecenterstrasse 22, 1031 Vienna, Austria. B & C Semperit Holding GmbH is the direct majority
shareholder of Semperit AG Holding, and B & C Privatstiftung is the dominant legal entity. The activi-
ties of the group are divided into four strategic business segments: Sempermed, Semperflex, Sem-
pertrans and Semperform.

1.1. Preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2016 were prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union (EU), and in
conjunction with Section 245a of the Austrian Company Code (UGB). The financial year covers the
period starting 1 January and ending 31 December.

The reporting currency is the euro, in which case figures are rounded off to thousands of euros,
unless specified otherwise. Rounding differences in the totalling of rounded amounts and percent-
ages may arise from the automatic processing of data.

These consolidated financial statements were prepared by the Management Board of Semperit
AG Holding on 9 March 2017, signed and approved for forwarding to the Supervisory Board. The
Supervisory Board is responsible for reviewing the consolidated financial statements and stating
whether it approves them.

1.2. Adoption of new and revised accounting standards
First-time adoption of standards and interpretations

The following new or amended standards and interpretations were applied for the first time in the
financial year 2016:

First-time adoption of standards and interpretations Effective date” Endorsement

New standards and interpretations

n/a n/a n/a

Amended standards and interpretations

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangéments - Amendments: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in 11.2016 November 2015
Joint Operations

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments: Disclosure Initiative 1.1.2016 December 2015

IAS 19 Employee Benefits - Amendments: Employee Contributions 1.1.2015 December 2014

IAS 27 S.epara.te Financial Statements — Amendments: Equity Method in Separate 11.2016 December 2015
Financial Statements

IAS 16, 38 Pro.perty, Plant and Equipment and Intangik?le Assets — An.1en-dments: Clarifi- 112016 December 2015
cation of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

IAS 16, 41 Property, Plant and Equipment and Agriculture — Amendments: Bearer Plants 1.1.2016 November 2015

IFRS 10, 12, IAS " . . .

28 Investment Entities — Amendments: Applying the Consolidated Exception 1.1.2016 September 2016

Misc. Annual Improvements to IFRS, cycle 2010-2012 1.2.2015 December 2014

Misc. Annual Improvements to IFRS, cycle 2012-2014 1.1.2016 December 2015

" According to the Official Journal of the EU, the standards are obligatory for financial years commencing on or after the effective date.
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Standards and interpretations that have already been published but are not yet effective

The application of the following new or amended standards and interpretations that had already
been published when the consolidated financial statements were prepared was not mandatory for
financial years starting on or before 1 January 2016, nor were they applied voluntarily. The Semperit
Group plans to apply these amendments for the first time once it becomes mandatory to apply them.
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Standards and interpretations that are not yet effective Effective date” Endorsement
New standards and interpretations
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1.1.2018 2  November 2016
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1.1.2016 n/a
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1.1.2018 ? September 2016
IFRS 16 Leases 1.1.2019
Amended standards and interpretations
IFRS 10, IAS 28 Consolidated Financial Statements and Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and Postponed
its Associate or Joint Venture indefinitely
IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1.1.2018
IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 1.1.2018
IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 1.1.2018
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows — Amendments: Disclosure Initiative 1.1.2017
IAS 12 Income Taxes — Amendments: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses 1.1.2017
IAS 40 Investment Property — Amendments: Transfers of Investment Property 1.1.2018
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1.1.2018
Misc. Annual Improvements to IFRS, cycle 2014-2016 1.1.2017

" In accordance with the provisions of the IASB on entry into force, the standards are obligatory for financial years commencing on or after the
effective date.
2 The new / amended standards are obligatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS regulates the classification and measurement of financial assets and creates a new form of cate-
gorisation for financial instruments. The standard was further amended with regard to hedge ac-
counting. IFRS 9 is to be applied by companies whose financial years start on or after 1 January 2018.
The standard has been adopted by the EU in November 2016. Amendments must be applied retro-
spectively. The anticipated amendments mainly relate to the measurement and presentation of
changes in the value of financial assets in the consolidated income statement or under other compre-
hensive income, and to the measurement of the effectiveness of existing hedging relationships.

The standard will not have any significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Semperit Group.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. The new regulations are to
be applied for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018.

The distinction between types of contract and types of goods and services no longer applies.
When applying this standard an entity must implement a 5-step model that focuses in particular on
the interpretation of contracts with customers. Standard criteria are stipulated defining the perfor-
mance obligations as well as the point in time or time period when the performance obligations are
satisfied.
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In order to evaluate the effects of the new standard on the consolidated financial statements of the
Semperit Group, an initial analysis was conducted based on interviews with the segment heads and
sales managers. Based on this analysis further investigations are currently planned, if actions are
needed, at the business-unit level. The results of the initial analysis are summarised below.

The greatest need for adjustments is anticipated in the Semperform segment. The reason why
changes are particularly likely here is because the segment's business model is highly diversified and
considerably more complex compared with the other segments. The more detailed analysis at the
business-unit level is currently being planned for the Semperform segment, and is to be carried out in
the near future. Under the 5-step model of IFRS 15 the initial application of the standard requires that
the individual performance obligations in the contract are identified (step 2) and the transaction price
for these obligations is determined (step 3). The determined transaction price is then allocated to the
individual performance obligations in the contract (step 4). This step is where the greatest potential
for investigation has been identified in the Semperform segment compared with the other segments.
Its customer contracts usually include a broad spectrum of performance obligations, including not
only the sale of the produced goods but also their installation (particularly for hand rails). In addition,
the effects and volumes of non-refundable upfront fees must be investigated.

We anticipate the Sempertrans segment will require a more detailed analysis as well. Contracts in
this segment regularly include the delivery of the agreed quantities of produced goods, installation of
the goods and warranty services. In this respect the requirements set out under step 4 must be inves-
tigated and the corresponding effects for the Sempertrans segment need to be taken into account.

It is likely the analyses for the Sempermed and Semperflex segments will be less extensive com-
pared with the other segments. This is because the performance obligations under their contracts
with customers are usually less differentiated and their business models are not as complex.

However, adjustments in the financial reporting will be necessary for all of the Semperit Group's
segments in order to ensure compliance with the requirement for more detailed disclosures in the
notes.

The Semperit Group anticipates at present that it will apply the regulations of IFRS 15 with effect
as of 1 January 2018. The current planning foresees the Group will select the modified retrospective
approach for the first-time application. The cumulative effect of initially applying this standard will
therefore be recognised without restating the comparable periods.

IFRS 16 Leases

On 13 January 2016 the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) published IFRS 16, the
successor standard to IAS 17 Leases. The new regulations are to be applied for financial years com-
mencing on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted in connection with the application
of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The new standard no longer distinguishes between operating leases and finance leases for les-
sees. Apart from a limited number of exceptions, lessees are required to recognise in the balance
sheet the leases and the associated rights and obligations. This will lead to an increase in assets and
liabilities. In addition, the recognition of assets will cause higher depreciation and a corresponding
interest expense for the lease liability. Consequently, this shift will change key figures. The exceptions
to the requirement to recognise leases in the balance sheet include low value and short-term leases.
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The Semperit Group has initiated the first analyses to determine the effects on the consolidated
financial statements. Material effects in the consolidated financial statements will result from the
requirement to capitalise operating leases and rental agreements involving buildings, office equip-
ment and vehicles. These effects will result from an increase in the balance sheet total and restate-
ments in the income statement. The initial application will shift other operating expenses to deprecia-
tion and interest expense and thereby have a positive effect on the key figures EBITDA and EBIT. In
addition, the shift of rent and lease payments to interest and principal payments will improve operat-
ing cash flow.

The Semperit Group anticipates at present that it will apply the regulations of IFRS 16 with effect
as of 1 January 2019. The current planning foresees that the Group will select the modified retrospec-
tive approach for the first-time application. The cumulative effect of initially applying this standard will
therefore be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of the reporting period, without
restating the comparable period. The leasing liability is to be capitalised at the present value of the
remaining lease payments. The right-of-use assets are to be recognised either at the value which
would have resulted under retrospective accounting, or alternatively in the amount of the recognised
leasing liability. When selecting this method the lessee must provide additional information in the
notes.

IAS 12 Income Taxes

An amendment to IAS 12 Income Taxes was published in January 2016 regarding the recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses. The amendment to IAS 12 is to be applied for the first time
by companies whose financial years start on or after 1 January 2017.

Among other things, the amendment relates to the formation of deductible temporary differences
when there are variations between unrealised losses on assets accounted for at fair value and the tax
cost of acquisition. In addition, the standard sets out restrictions on the offsetting of tax losses in the
applicable tax legislation to take into account when assessing whether deferred tax assets must be
recognised for deductible temporary differences.

The standard will not have any significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Semperit Group.

No other amended standards are relevant to the Semperit Group or are expected to have any
significant effects on the consolidated financial statements.

79



80

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

1.3. Principles and methods of consolidation, business combinations

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and the
financial statements of the companies under its control, i.e. the subsidiaries of the parent. The group
controls a company when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
company and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the company. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the time at
which control begins until the time at which control ends.

Please see the comments in note 3.1 on the assessment whether the definition of control within
the meaning of IFRS 10 is met where the group’s de facto investment in subsidiaries is between
41.43% and 50%.

The annual financial statements of the individual, fully consolidated domestic and international
companies were prepared for the period ending as of 31 December 2016, the balance sheet date of
the consolidated financial statements. If required, the annual financial statements of the subsidiaries
are adjusted in accordance with the accounting and valuation methods applied by the Semperit
Group.

Items 3.1. and 3.2. of the notes to the financial statements provide an overview of the fully consol-
idated companies and companies included at equity.

Capital is consolidated by offsetting the acquisition costs of the holding in the subsidiary and the
equity of the respective subsidiary attributable to the holding.

Business combinations are accounted for in accordance with the acquisition method. This method
stipulates that identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities, are to be recognised
at their fair values as at the acquisition date. The exceptions to this requirement are deferred tax
assets or deferred tax liabilities, the recognition of which is defined in IAS 12 Income Taxes, as well as
the accounting treatment for liabilities or provisions for commitments to employees, for which IAS 19
Employee Benefits is applicable.

If the value of the consideration recognised at fair value plus the value of non-controlling interests
exceeds the value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired by the Semperit Group (net assets
recognised at fair value), the difference is recognised as goodwill. If this consideration is below the
fair value of the net assets, the difference is recognised in the consolidated income statement under
“Other operating income”. Incidental acquisition costs are included in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

If a business combination has not yet been definitively accounted for by the subsequent balance
sheet date following the date of acquisition, preliminary values are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. These preliminary values are adjusted within one year following the date of
acquisition on the basis of circumstances that were already present on the acquisition date but which
were not yet known on the balance sheet date.

In the course of debt consolidation, receivables and liabilities between companies included in full
in the consolidated accounts are fully netted.

In the course of expense and income elimination, all income and expenses resulting from in-
tragroup transactions, such as the sale of goods or services, group financing or dividend pay-outs, are
eliminated.

In addition, interim profits or losses from the sale of goods and services between companies in
the group are eliminated.

The shares held by shareholders who do not exercise a controlling influence on subsidiaries (non-
controlling interests), provided they are equity interests, are reported separately from the shares in
these subsidiaries owned by shareholders of Semperit AG Holding (the parent company) in equity.
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These non-controlling interests are initially recognised either

a) At a proportionate share of the net value of the identifiable assets and the recognised total for

the acquired liabilities and contingent liabilities on the date of acquisition or

b) At fair value (limited to business combinations as of 1 January 2010).

This recognition option relating to business combinations as of 1 January 2010 can be exercised
differently for each transaction. As at the end of subsequent reporting periods, the carrying amounts
of the non-controlling interests are carried forward and adjusted to reflect the changes in equity
assignable to the non-controlling interests, even if the carrying amount of the non-controlling inter-
ests comprises a negative value.

Transactions resulting in the alteration of an interest held by the group in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The difference between the value
by which the carrying amounts of the non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are adjusted and the fair
value of the assignable consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity less tax effects.

If the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is entitled to an unconditional right of termina-
tion or if the company in which the non-controlling shareholder is involved has a fixed term, there is a
liability of the group towards this non-controlling shareholder.

For such interests the “anticipated acquisition approach” is assumed, in which the group is con-
sidered to have already acquired these shares or the scheduled time has elapsed and is only obliged
to compensate non-controlling shareholders for their shares. If a liability to a non-controlling share-
holder exists, the proportionate share of net assets held by the non-controlling shareholder of the
respective subsidiary is not reported in equity as “Equity attributable to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries”. The financial liabilities associated with such an interest are recognised under “Liabili-
ties from redeemable non-controlling interests”. For further explanatory material on accounting and
valuation methods, see note 2.12.

1.4. Currency translation

The separate financial statements of each subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in the currency of the economic region in which the company primarily operates, thus in
its functional currency. For all companies included in consolidation, the functional currency is the
currency of the country in which the respective company operates, with the exception of Sempermed
Singapore Pte Ltd., Sempermed Industrial Products Singapore Private Ltd, Sempermed Kft. and
Semperit Investments Asia Pte Ltd. The currency of the primary business environment in which Sem-
permed Singapore Pte Ltd., Sempermed Industrial Products Singapore Private Ltd., Sempermed Kft.
and Semperit Investments Asia Pte Ltd. operate is the US dollar or the euro.

The separate financial statements included in consolidation, which are not reported in euros, the
currency used as the basis for the consolidated financial statements, must be translated into euros.
Assets and liabilities of these companies, including goodwill, are translated at the mid-rate on the
reporting date. Items in the consolidated income statement and other comprehensive income are
translated at the average rate for the financial year, which corresponds to the arithmetic mean of the
mid-rates on the Fridays of the financial year. These average reference rates led to accumulated
amounts in euros, which do not materially differ from the accumulated amounts which would have
arisen when translating the transactions at the reference exchange rate at the date of transaction.
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The foreign currency differences resulting from the conversion of the individual financial state-
ments of subsidiaries for the purpose of consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive in-
come, and reclassified into profit or loss upon disposal or other event leading to deconsolidation of
the respective subsidiary.

Gains or losses resulting from exchange rate fluctuations derived from transactions of consolidat-
ed companies in a currency other than the functional currency are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Monetary items of the consolidated companies denominated in a foreign
currency other than the functional currency are translated into the respective functional currency at
the mid-rate on the balance sheet date, and any gains or losses resulting from the translation are also
recognised in profit or loss.

The following key exchange rates vis-a-vis the euro were applied:

Average rate Rate on balance sheet date
FX-rate for 1 EUR 2016 2015 2016 2015
US dollar 1.1 1.1 1.05 1.09
Thai baht 38.74 37.71 37.38 39.08
Polish zloty 4.36 4.18 4.41 4.26
Czech koruna 27.03 27.29 27.02 27.02
Hungarian forint 311.37 309.73 309.83 315.98
British pound sterling 0.82 0.73 0.86 0.73
Brazilian real 3.85 3.62 3.43 4.31
Chinese renminbi 7.35 6.98 7.32 7.06
Indian rupee 74.36 71.22 71.59 72.02

Malaysian ringgit 4.58 4.30 4.73 4.70
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2. Accounting and valuation methods

2.1. Valuation principles

With the exception of the valuation of specified financial instruments and provisions, the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on the basis of the amortised cost of acquisition or production. The
historical cost of acquisition or production is generally based on the fair value of the service rendered
in exchange for the asset. Financial assets and liabilities available-for-sale and held for trading are
valued at their fair value. The value of provisions corresponds to the best possible estimate of the
outflows required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date.

2.2. Recognition and measurement of revenue and other income

Revenue and other income are recognised at the fair value of the underlying service rendered, in
which case deductions are carried out for probable returns, discounts, rebates, cash discounts and
similar applicable reductions in the proceeds received.

Revenue and income from deliveries are generally considered realised upon the transfer of risk (at
the transfer date of the risks and the utilisation or provision of the service). Interest income is realised
pro rata temporis taking into account the effective interest rate.

Income from services is recognised to the degree of their completion. After expiry, licence and
rental revenues are realised pro rata temporis on a straight line basis over the contract term. Licence
income determined according to other parameters is measured and recognised in accordance with
these underlying parameters.

2.3. Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings per share are determined in accordance with IAS 33 Earnings Per Share. The undiluted
earnings per share are calculated by dividing the share of earnings after taxes attributable to share-
holders of Semperit AG Holding by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
financial year. The diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the share of earnings after
taxes attributable to shareholders of Semperit AG Holding and the number of shares outstanding for
all dilution effects of potential ordinary shares. No dilution effects were taken into account as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2016.

2.4. Tangible and intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised at acquisition cost, which is subsequently subject to amor-
tisation on a straight-line basis according to their expected useful lives. The expected useful life is
usually considered to be in the range of one to ten years.

Internally generated intangible assets

An internally generated intangible asset arising from the development phase of an internal project

shall be recognised if, and only if, an entity can demonstrate

 The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e Its intention and ability to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it, and that the group also
has the required technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset;
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* That the respective intangible asset will generate future economic benefits, for example, the exist-
ence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself, or, if it is to be
used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; and

e |ts ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its devel-
opment.

Only expenses arising in connection with the development of the respective intangible asset in-
curred from the date when all the recognition criteria have been fulfilled are capitalised as production
costs. This means that expenditures cannot be reinstated and retroactively recognised as production
costs, if the recognition criteria are first met at a later date.

With regard to the scheduled amortisation, the same applies analogously as for the aforemen-
tioned acquired intangible assets.

In the Semperit Group development costs are capitalised only to a limited extent taking into ac-
count the aforementioned recognition criteria.

Intangible assets acquired in the course of business combinations
Intangible assets acquired in the course of a business combination and recognised separately from
any acquired goodwill are reported at the fair value of the acquisition costs at the time of acquisition.

Goodwill
Goodwill is not amortised but is subject to an impairment test annually or more frequently if there are
indications of a potential impairment.

For the purpose of the impairment test, goodwill is assigned to cash generating units or groups of
cash generating units which are expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business
combination. In the Semperit Group the segments represent the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

Indications of a potential impairment exist when the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill was assigned is lower than the carrying amount of this cash generating
unit, including the goodwill.

As a rule, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is considered to be equal to the
present value of the projected discounted cash flows generated by the cash generating unit in the
future (value in use). Taking the results for the current year, the expected discounted cash flows of the
cash generating unit are determined on the basis of multi-period calculations using projections of the
expected future development of the business. The expected business development for each of the
cash generating units is ascertained on the basis of market-specific conditions as well as on the basis
of the individual cost structure and the development of the relevant raw material prices.

For discounting future cash flows, a cost of capital is derived which is market-based and adjusted
for the specific risks of the Medical Sector (Sempermed segment) and Industrial Sector (Semperflex,
Sempertrans, Semperform).

If an impairment of the cash generating unit including goodwill is determined in this manner, the
goodwill assigned to this cash generating unit is subsequently written down. An impairment exceed-
ing the carrying amount of the goodwill is then assigned to the other assets of the cash generating
unit in proportion to their carrying amounts.
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Tangible assets
Tangible assets are valued at their cost of acquisition or production and, with the exception of land,
depreciated according to the straight-line method, starting at the date in which the assets are availa-
ble for initial operation, taking into account their probable useful lives. The costs of production in the
case of assets generated by the company itself also include pro-rated overhead costs in addition to
the direct costs, and also borrowing costs in the case of qualified assets (see note 2.16).

The following table shows the assumed probable useful lives of assets by investment category or
the range per investment category within the assumed probable useful lives:

Useful life
in years

Buildings
Technical plant 10-50
Other company buildings 10-50
Technical equipment, plant and machinery 2-30
Office furniture and equipment 2-25
Vehicles 5-10

Finance leases

Assets used under the terms of rental agreements or leases are accounted for as assets if the rental
agreement or lease stipulates that all material risks and opportunities arising from the use of the
leased asset are transferred to the Semperit Group (finance lease). Assets are valued upon comple-
tion of the agreement at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the future minimum
leasing payments. A finance lease liability is recognised in the same amount. Depreciation is carried
out over the asset’s useful life or, if shorter, over the term of the lease. If it is reasonably certain that
ownership will be transferred at the end of the lease, depreciation is carried out over the asset's
useful life.

Impairment

The above comments apply to goodwill. Other intangible and tangible fixed assets are subject to an
impairment test, if there are indications that they may be impaired. The impairment test is carried out
on the basis of a comparison of the recoverable amount for the specific asset or for the respective
cash generating unit with its carrying amount, whereby the recoverable amount is the higher of its fair
value less disposal costs and its value in use. If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
amount, a corresponding impairment is recognised. In respect of determining the value in use, the
same method applies as used to determine impairment on goodwill.
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Reversal of impairment

In the case of tangible and intangible assets with the exception of goodwill, if the reasons for impair-
ment no longer apply, the impairment is reversed, but this reversal may not exceed the amount which
would have arisen had the cash generating unit not been subject to an extraordinary impairment.

Derecognition of tangible and intangible assets

The carrying amount of a tangible or intangible asset is derecognised, if the respective asset is dis-
posed of or if no further economic benefit is to be expected from its use or its disposal. The gains or
losses resulting from its derecognition, calculated as the difference between the proceeds from the
sale and the residual carrying amount, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
respective asset is derecognised.

2.5. Investments in joint ventures and associated companies
The group’s share in financial assets accounted for using the equity method includes investments in
joint ventures and investments in associated companies.

An associated company is a company over which the group has a significant influence, but which
comprises neither a subsidiary nor a jointly controlled company. Significant influence means the
ability to take part in the decision-making process determining the company’s financial and business
policies.

A joint venture is an arrangement under which the group exercises joint control and has rights in
the net assets, instead of rights in the assets and obligations for the liabilities.

Investments in joint ventures and associated companies are accounted for using the equity meth-
od. According to this method, the interest in an associated company is first recognised at the cost of
acquisition, which is then increased or decreased by the proportionate share of the net profit or loss
of the associated company. Shares in the profit or loss of an associated company are recognised in
profit or loss, whereas the proportionate share of the other comprehensive income of the associated
company is recognised in other comprehensive income. Dividends the group receives from invest-
ments accounted for using the equity method reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

2.6. Financial assets

The recognition and derecognition of financial assets whose purchase or sale occurs at standard
market conditions is performed as at the date of fulfilment. Initial recognition occurs at fair value plus
transaction costs. The exceptions are those financial assets categorised as being at “fair value
through profit or loss”. In such cases, the transaction costs are not taken into account, even at the
initial recognition, and instead are recorded directly in profit or loss.

Categories of financial assets

When acquired, financial assets are allocated to the following categories based on their type and
purpose:

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FAFVTPL)

* Held to maturity financial investments (HTM)

* Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS)

¢ Loans and receivables (LAR)
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss primarily comprise financial assets held for
trading. Derivatives are always defined as belonging to this class of trading assets, with the exception
of those representing a financial guarantee or those designated as a hedge.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at their fair value as at the bal-
ance sheet date. As is the case for interest income or dividends stemming from these financial in-
struments, any expense or income resulting from the subsequent measurement of the asset is report-
ed through profit or loss for the respective period.

Since January 2016 income and expense from the measurement of foreign exchange transactions
are reported within “financial income"” or “financial expenses” and therefore in the financial result.
These changes are also applied for last years” figures. For further information see note 2.19.

Income arising from the measurement of other financial assets held for trading is also recognised
like interest income and dividend income from such financial assets in the consolidated income
statement as “financial income” or “financial expenses”.

Held to maturity financial investments
The Semperit Group does not hold any financial assets classified as “held to maturity financial in-
vestments”.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are determined as available-
for-sale and cannot be allocated to any other category. Federal bonds and shares in funds held by
the Semperit Group as well as equity instruments held in other companies as financial investments,
are categorised as being available-for-sale financial assets and recognised at fair value. Profits and
losses resulting from fluctuations in fair value are recognised in the revaluation reserves under other
comprehensive income. Interest income, dividends received and losses arising from impairments are,
on the other hand, recognised through profit or loss for the period under “Financial income” or
“Financial expenses”. The sale of such a financial asset or the determination of its value being im-
paired causes the cumulative income or expenses reported in the revaluation reserves to be reclassi-
fied to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables, featuring pre-set or determinable payments and which
are not listed on an active market, are categorised as being loans and receivables. Loans and receiva-
bles are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.
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Impairment

Financial assets, with the exception of those assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss, are
evaluated at the end of every reporting period for indications of impairment. Trade receivables,
whose impairments cannot clearly be determined on an individual basis, are also to be examined for
such impairments at the portfolio level. An impairment with respect to a financial asset or group of
financial assets is assumed and recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as the result of
one or more events which occurred since initial recognition of the respective asset or group of assets,
and this event or these events impacted or will impact the probable future cash flow of the respective
asset or group of assets.

With respect to available-for-sale equity instruments, a material and ongoing reduction in their fair
value to a value below the cost of acquisition is considered to constitute objective evidence of im-
pairment.

With respect to financial assets stated at amortised cost, the figure to be recognised as impair-
ment corresponds to the difference between the carrying amount of the respective asset using the
effective interest method and the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the asset. In
principle, in case of impairment the carrying amount of the respective financial asset is directly re-
duced with the exception of impairments relating to trade receivables, which are recognised in an
allowance account. Trade receivables are considered not recoverable if the loss of a receivable is
definitively established, and the receivables are derecognised using previously recognised allowances.

Reversal of impairment
In cases in which a financial asset is first recognised as having undergone impairment and then expe-
riences an appreciation in value in one of the following reporting periods, which is objectively at-
tributable to an event which occurred subsequently to the recognition of impairment, the impairment
is to be reversed through profit or loss for the period in which the appreciation took place, with the
exception of impairment losses relating to the disposal of available-for-sale equity instruments.

With respect to available-for-sale equity instruments in which impairments were carried out in the
past and reported in the income statement, appreciation in value is not reported in the period's profit
and loss but rather in the revaluation reserves under other comprehensive income.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised upon expiry of the contractually-stipulated entitlement to the cash
flow or if the financial asset and more or less all the rights to its related risks and rewards related to
this asset are transferred to a third party.
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2.7. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When determining net realisable
value adequate allowances are taken into account for stock risks resulting from the duration of stor-
age or impaired usability. Valuation is generally based on the weighted average method. Manufactur-
ing costs encompass direct expenses as well as all variable and fixed overheads incurred by produc-
tion. Interim profits or losses from intra group deliveries of inventories are eliminated unless they are
of immaterial significance.

2.8. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered most likely through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. The asset is
shown in the balance sheet separately in the line “Non-current assets held for sale”. This is the case
when the sale is highly probable, it will take place within upcoming 12 months and the asset or dis-
posal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Non-current assets held for sales
are recognized at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are no longer depreciated.

2.9. Emission certificates

Two companies in the Semperit Group (Semperit Technische Produkte Gesellschaft m.b.H. and Sem-
perflex Optimit s.r.o.) are subject to the Emission Certificate Act in Austria and the Czech Republic
and receive emission certificates free of charge from public authorities. These emission certificates
are not reported in the balance sheet using the net method. In the financial year 2016 16,238 certifi-
cates (previous year: 16,880) were allocated to the Semperit Group free of charge and no additional
certificates were purchased (as in the previous year). 20,014 certificates (previous year: 18,148) were
used. There were no sales, as was the case in the previous year. A total of 38,828 emission certificates
were unused as of 31 December 2016 (previous year: 42,604).

2.10. Equity and debt capital instruments issued by the group
The contents of their respective contracts dictate whether financial instruments issued by the group
are classified as being financial liabilities or equity.

An equity instrument is a contract giving rise to a residual claim on the assets of a company once
all debts have been subtracted. Equity instruments are recognised in the amount of the issue pro-
ceeds minus directly attributable costs of issuance. Attributable costs of issuance are those which
would not have been incurred had the equity instrument not been issued.

Profit or loss derived from the issuance, sale, buy-back or termination of equity instruments are
neither recognised through profit or loss nor in other comprehensive income, but rather directly in
equity, less any tax effects.
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2.11. Retirement benefit expenses, provisions for pensions and severance payments
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense, if the employees have actual-
ly completed the service obliging the company to make this contribution.

In the case of defined benefit plans, the cost of providing the benefit is calculated using the Pro-
jected Unit Credit Method; for this purpose, an actuarial assessment is carried out at each balance
sheet date. All remeasurements, especially actuarial gains and losses, are not recognised through
profit or loss, but rather are reported directly in equity under other comprehensive income in accord-
ance with IAS 19 (2011).

The provision recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans equals the present value
of the benefits accruing to the employees as of the balance sheet date, less the fair value of the plan
assets required to settle the obligation as of the balance sheet date. Further explanatory material
concerning provisions for pensions and severance payments can be found in note 6.11.

2.12. Other provisions

Provisions are recognised for the group’s present obligations of an uncertain amount and/or timing
resulting from past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits. These obligations may be of a legal or constructive nature. The rec-
ognised amount of the provision is determined on the basis of the best possible estimate to settle
the obligation. If the obligation is not likely to be settled in the near future, the present value of the
probable amount required to settle the obligation is recognised.

If it can be assumed that the amount required to settle the obligation will be completely or par-
tially reimbursed by a third party, this reimbursement claim is recognised if and to the extent that it is
virtually certain that such reimbursement will be received and its amount can be estimated reliably.

Provisions for long-service bonuses are calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method in ac-
cordance with IAS 19, based on an actuarial assessment. Remeasurements (actuarial gains and losses)
are reported in the consolidated income statement for the period as personnel expenses. This is
explained further in note 6.12.

2.13. Liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests

Redeemable or temporary interests held by non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are consid-
ered to constitute financial liabilities and are reported as “Liabilities under redeemable non-
controlling interests”.

They are reported as current liabilities if they are due for settlement within one year after the bal-
ance sheet date or if the group has no unconditional right to delay payment for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date, and otherwise as non-current liabilities.

If the right to redeem is triggered by an event which cannot be influenced by the group, the liabil-
ity is classified as current, if the occurrence of the triggering event has taken place as of the balance
sheet date, notwithstanding the fact whether the group considers it to be improbable that the non-
controlling shareholder will exercise the right of redemption within a twelve month period following
the balance sheet date.
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If the non-controlling shareholder exercises its right to redeem its interest or that right to redeem
expires within the agreed period, the result would be the liquidation of the company. The non-
controlling shareholder must be compensated from the liquidation proceeds. However, if the non-
controlling shareholder exercises its right to redeem, the group may prevent the liquidation of the
company by acquiring the interest from the non-controlling shareholder in return for the pro-rata
share of the enterprise value attributable to its interest. However, acquisition of the interest in such
event is solely at the group’s discretion.

The liability is initially recognised at its fair value, which as a rule equals the fair value of the non-
controlling shareholder’s interest at the time of the investment.

As IFRS do not provide any guidance on the subsequent measurement of such an obligation, a
method has been determined pursuant to IAS 8 which takes into account the information require-
ments of the users of the financial statements and which presents a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position, cash flows and profit and loss of the group, and is neutral, i.e. does not
contain any distorting influences and is prudent and free of any material omissions. Thus, for the
purposes of subsequent measurement at amortised cost, the amount of the liability initially recog-
nised is increased by the share in profit or reduced by the share in loss accruing as of the measure-
ment date in accordance with the possibility described in the statement issued by the Institute of
Public Auditors in Germany (IDW RS HFA 45) on individual issues relating to the recognition of finan-
cial instruments pursuant to IAS 32. In this connection, this share of profit or loss also includes the
share in other comprehensive income. In addition, any amounts reported directly in equity are includ-
ed in the measurement of the liability. Dividends distributed to non-controlling shareholders are
deducted from the liability.

When subsequent measurement takes place, the investment of the non-controlling shareholders
in the subsidiary’s comprehensive income and any amounts recognised directly in equity are recog-
nised in the consolidated income statement and constitute financial expense for the group. This is
disclosed separately as “Results attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests”.

2.14. Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are categorised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss or
as other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FLFVTPL) if:

® They are held for trading; for this purpose, derivative financial instruments (with the exception of
those which constitute a financial guarantee or are designated as hedges and are effective as such)
are always deemed to be held for trading, or

® They have been designated as “Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss”, which may
be of significance, particularly if the financial liability in question forms part of a contract in which a
derivative is embedded.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised at their fair value. As with
interest expenses arising from these financial instruments, any expense or income resulting from the
subsequent measurement of the asset is reported through profit or loss for the respective period.

Income and expense from the measurement of foreign exchange transactions are reported under
“Other operating income” or “Other operating expenses”, as the case may be, as these instruments
are employed as economic hedges against currency risks arising from operations. Income and ex-
penses arising from the measurement of financial liabilities, as is the case with interest expense aris-
ing from such liabilities, are reported as “Financial income” or “Financial expenses”.

There are currently no financial liabilities in the Semperit Group designated as measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including loans raised, are initially recognised at their fair value net of trans-
action costs. They are then subsequently measured at amortised cost in accordance with the effective
interest method.

The effective interest rate is the interest rate which, when used to discount the payments ex-
pected to settle the respective financial liability, results in a present value that exactly matches the
carrying amount of the financial liability at the time of initial recognition.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised if, and to the extent that, the underlying obligation has been
settled, terminated or has expired.

2.15. Derivative financial instruments

In addition to operating measures, individual derivative financial instruments, particularly foreign
exchange forward contracts, are used to hedge currency risks. Hedge accounting as defined in IAS 39
is not applied to foreign exchange forward contracts as the conditions for this are not satisfied. They
are therefore recognised as financial instruments held for trading and are measured at their current
fair value. This corresponds to the value that the respective company would achieve or would have to
pay, should the business be disposed of at the end of the reporting period. Positive market values as
of the balance sheet date are recognised under “Other financial assets” and negative market values
under “Other financial liabilities.”

Derivative financial instruments are occasionally used to hedge interest rate risks. These derivative
financial instruments are accounted for as either cash flow hedges or fair value hedges if the retro-
spective and prospective effectiveness measurements and the documentation of the hedging strate-
gy are fulfilled as required by IAS 39.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments are likewise accounted for at fair value. In the case
of cash flow hedges the effective portion of unrealised gains and losses (as per the effectiveness
measurement) is recognised in other comprehensive income. The ineffective portion is recognised in
profit and loss of the period as “Financial income” or “Financial expense”. As soon as the hedged
transaction is realised (e.g. an interest payment), the amount recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated income statement. The result on fair value hedges is recog-
nised immediately through profit and loss in the consolidated income statement.
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2.16. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualify-
ing assets, i.e. assets, the acquisition, construction or production of which entail a substantial period
of time for their intended use or sale, are included in the cost of such assets up until the date on
which they become chiefly available for their intended use or sale. Otherwise, incidental borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss as “Financial expense” of the period in which they are incurred.

2.17. Income taxes

The income taxes recognised in the consolidated income statement represent the sum arising from
current and deferred tax expense/tax income. As a matter of principle, current and deferred income
taxes are reported as expense or income through profit or loss for the period. The tax effect of items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly under equity, are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly under equity. Similarly, in a business combination, the tax effect
arising from the measurement of the assets and liabilities is not recorded in profit and loss, but in-
cluded in the business combination accounting.

Current income tax expense is determined on the basis of the taxable profit for the period in
question. The taxable profit differs from the earnings before tax listed in the consolidated income
statement. This difference is caused by expenses and income which are either recognised for tax
purposes in a period after the balance sheet date, or are never taxable or tax-deductible.

Deferred taxes are recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset
or liability in the consolidated financial statements and the tax base of such asset or liability, equalling
the expected future tax charge or refund.

Deferred tax assets are recognised if, and to the extent that, future taxable profit will be available
and can be offset against the deductible temporary differences. Similarly, deferred tax assets are
recognised for benefits arising from carryforwards of tax losses if, and to the extent that, it is suffi-
ciently certain that future taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses carried forward
can be utilised.

However, the recognition of deferred taxes does not apply to temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability arising from a transaction, with the exception
of a business combination which at the time of the transaction does not affect either earnings before
tax or taxable earnings.

Deferred tax effects of taxable temporary differences in connection with investments in subsidiar-
ies, joint ventures and associated companies are furthermore accrued unless the group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. The future tax effects of deductible tempo-
rary differences involving investments held in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies
are only accrued if, and to the extent that, it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be
available against which these tax-deductible temporary differences can be utilised and it can be
assumed that these deductible temporary differences will be reversed in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets as at the balance sheet date is impaired if, and to the
extent that, it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
tax asset can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined using the tax laws and rates prevailing or sub-
stantively enacted as at the balance sheet date and which will be applicable as of the probable date
of reversal of the differences. The measurement of deferred income tax assets and liabilities also
reflects the tax consequences that arise from the manner in which the group expects to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities from which the underlying temporary difference
is derived.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities of the same taxable entity are offset if they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts. The tax group formed in Austria in accordance with Section 9 of the Corpora-
tion Tax Act is deemed to constitute a taxable entity for this purpose.

2.18. Material assumptions and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements calls for estimates and assumptions to be
made by management concerning the future. These may affect the assets and liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet, the disclosure of other obligations as of the end of the reporting period and the
recognition of income and expenses during the year. The actual amounts recorded may differ from
amounts based on the assumptions and estimates made.

The fair value for the initial recognition of the investment in joint ventures related to the 50% in-
terest in Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd., Thailand (SSC), was determined on the basis of forward-
looking assumptions such as company planning, the growth rate and the discount rate, with mark-
downs which a willing market participant would make from the point of view of IFRS 13. Any changes
in these assumptions may result in impairments in future periods.

The recognition for SSC changed as per 31. December 2016 according to IFRS 5 since the Sem-
perit group and the Sri Tang Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd Group signed a contract to end nearly all
joint activities. The closing of this joint venture transaction is expected per March 2017 (see note 3.3).
Per 31. December 2016 the sale of SSC is assessed most likely, the 12-months-requirement and the
requirement for the immediate disposal capacity are regarded as fulfilled. Therefore the Semperit
Group derecognized the equity approach under addition of the proportional goodwill. To derive this
proportional goodwill the Semperit group had to derive the proportional Fair Values of the CGU
Sempermed on the one hand and SSC on the other hand.

The recoverability of the carrying amount of goodwill is determined once a year and when there
are impairment indicators. The recoverability of the carrying amount of tangible assets must be
investigated upon any evidence of impairment indicators. Recoverability of the carrying amount is
determined on the basis of forward-looking assumptions such as company planning, future inflation,
growth and exchange rates, as well as assumptions about specific market, sector and company dis-
count rates. Any changes in these assumptions may result in impairments in future periods (for carry-
ing amounts and specific assumptions, see note 6.1).

Assumptions and estimates also have to be made when determining the useful life of intangible
assets with a finite useful life as well as tangible assets (for carrying amounts, see notes 6.1 and 6.2).
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The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the assumption that there will be sufficient tax-
able profit against which deductible temporary differences and/or tax loss carryforwards can be offset
in the future. If actual future taxable profit differs from assumptions, this may render the utilisation of
deferred tax assets unlikely and result in an impairment of these assets (for carrying amounts, see
note 6.8).

When calculating the net realisable values in the course of inventory valuation at the balance
sheet date, the group’s management is required to make estimates about pricing and developments
in the market (see notes 2.7 and 6.3).

When subsequently measuring receivables as of the balance sheet date, assumptions regarding
the probability of default are made (for carrying amounts, see note 6.4).

The actuarial assumptions underlying the measurement of the provisions for pensions and sever-
ance payments are based on estimates concerning interest rates, salary increases, employee turnover,
retirement ages and life expectancy. Any changes in these assumptions may result in a substantially
different valuation (for carrying amounts, specific assumptions and sensitivity analysis, see note 6.11).

For the calculation of other provisions, estimates must be made as to the probability of utilisation
and the expected cash outflow. These estimates may be subject to changes that result in substantially
different amounts being recognised at the end of future reporting periods (for carrying amounts, see
note 6.12).

Alternative valuation techniques are used to measure financial instruments for which no active
market is available. The parameters relevant to valuation for determining fair value are based in part
on forward-looking assumptions. The fair value of the liability from the corporate Schuldschein loan is
determined based on an estimate, made by management, of the Semperit Group rating.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed regularly and, where necessary, adjusted.
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2.19. Retrospective restatement

As an internationally operating group, Semperit is subject to various foreign exchange effects within
the scope of its business activities. For the purpose of a more effective internal management as well
as a more transparent presentation of foreign exchange effects resulting from internal financing in the
external financial reports of Semperit Group and its segments, foreign exchange gains or losses in the
consolidated income statement are no longer shown as part of the operating result in other operat-
ing income / other operating expenses anymore since 1 January 2016, but in financial income / finan-
cial expenses and therefore within the financial result. In order to ensure comparability with the
quarters of the previous year and the previous year following the change of method pursuant to IAS
8, all comparable figures for 2015 are presented according to the same new accounting method in
this report.

Effect on the consolidated income statement as of 31 December 2016
The restated consolidated income statement as of 31 December 2016 is shown in the following table:

2015
in EUR thousand 2015 Restatement restated
Revenue 914,686 0 914,686
Changes in inventories 6,788 0 6,788
Own work capitalised 6,217 0 6,217
Operating revenue 927,691 0 927,691
Other operating income 37,099 -27,953 9,145
Cost of material and purchased services -555,785 0 -555,785
Personnel expenses -164,813 0 -164,813
Other operating expenses -160,639 23,548 -137,092
Share of profits from joint ventures and associated companies 17,078 0 17,078
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 100,630 -4,406 96,224
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of tangible and intangible assets -29,478 0 -29,478
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 71,152 -4,406 66,746
Financial income 1,252 27,953 29,206
Financial expenses -8,228 -23,548 -31,776
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests -5,395 0 -5,395
Financial result -12,371 4,406 -7,965
Earnings before tax 58,781 0 58,781
Income taxes -12,419 0 -12,419
Earnings after tax 46,363 0 46,363

thereof attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding 46,394 0 46,394
thereof attributable to non-controlling interests =31 0 =31
Earnings per share in EUR (diluted and undiluted)” 2.26 0.00 2.26

" Attributable to the shareholders of Semperit AG Holding.
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31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Authorised Direct Group Authorised Direct Group
share capital Holding  holding share capital Holding  holding
Currency in ‘000s in % in % in '000s in % in %
Europe
Semperit Aktiengesellschaft Holding, Wien,
Austria EUR 21,359 21,359
Semperit Technische Produkte Gesellschaft
m.b.H., Wien, Austria EUR 10,901 100.00 100.00 10,901 100.00 100.00
Semperit Import & Services GmbH, Wien,
Austria EUR 36 100.00 100.00 36 100.00 100.00
PA 82 WT Holding GmbH, Wien, Austria EUR 35 100.00 100.00 35 100.00 100.00
Semperflex Rivalit GmbH, Waldbéckelheim,
Germany EUR 1,281 100.00 100.00 1,281 100.00 100.00
Semperit Profiles Deggendorf GmbH
(previously Semperit Gummiwerk Deggendorf
GmbH), Deggendorf, Germany EUR 11,050  100.00 100.00 11,050 100.00 100.00
Semperit Profiles Leeser GmbH & Co. KG
(previously Leeser GmbH & Co. KG),
Hickelhoven, Germany EUR 7,300  100.00 100.00 2 2,700 100.00 100.00
Leeser Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH,
Hiickelhoven, Germany EUR 81 100.00 100.00 81 100.00 100.00
Semperit Profiles Leeser Verwaltungs GmbH,
Germany EUR 25  100.00 100.00 3 - - -
Semperit (France) S.A.R.L., Levallois Perret,
France EUR 495  100.00 100.00 495 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans France Belting Technology
S.A.S., Argenteuil, France EUR 3,165 100.00 100.00 3,165 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans Maintenance France Nord
E.U.R.L., Argenteuil, France EUR 176  100.00 100.00 176 100.00 100.00
Semperit Industrial Products Ltd., Birmingham,
Great Britain GBP 150  100.00 100.00 750 100.00 100.00
Semperflex Roiter S.r.l., Rovigo, Italy EUR 750  100.00 100.00 750 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans Befchatéw Sp. z 0.0., Betchatéw,
Poland PLN 7,301 100.00 100.00 7,301 100.00 100.00
Carlona Sp. z 0.0., Warschau, Poland PLN 66,394 100.00 100.00 5 100.00 100.00 ¥
Semperflex Optimit s.r.o., Odry, Czech
Republic CzZK 470,318  100.00 100.00 470,318 100.00 100.00
Semperflex A.H. s.r.o., Odry, Czech Republic CzZK 100 100.00 100.00 100 100.00 100.00
Elastomer Technology Kmenta s.r.o., Husava,
Czech Republic CzZK 2,848 75.00 75.00 ¥ 2,848 75.00 75.00 ¥
Sempermed Kft., Sopron, Hungary EUR 3,680 100.00 100.00 3,680 100.00 100.00
Semperform Kft., Sopron, Hungary HUF 243,000 100.00 100.00 243,000 100.00 100.00
Sempermed Magyarorszag Kft., Budapest,
Hungary HUF 3,000 100.00 100.00 3,000 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans Conveyor Belt Solutions GmbH
(previously Wohlfahrtseinrichtung fur die
Arbeiter und Angestellten der Semperit
GmbH), Wien, Austria EUR 36 100.00 100.00 36 100.00 100.00
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31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Authorised Direct Group Authorised Direct Group
share capital Holding  holding share capital Holding  holding
Currency in ‘000s in % in % in ‘000s in % in %
The Americas
Sempermed Brazil Comércio Exterior Ltda.,
Piracicaba, Brazil BRL 12,547  100.00 50.00 " 12,547 100.00 50.00 "
Semperit Brasil Produtos Tecnicos Ltda., Sao
Paulo, Brazil BRL 411 100.00 100.00 411 100.00 100.00
Sempermed USA Inc., Clearwater, Florida, USA usD 4,000 75.00 50.00 " 4,000 75.00 50.00 "
Semperit Industrial Products Inc., Fair Lawn,
New Jersey, USA usD 1 100.00 100.00 1 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans North America Investments
Corp., Atlanta, USA usD 0.001  100.00 100.00 - - -
Sempertrans USA, LLC, Atlanta, USA USsD 0 100.00 100.00 - - -
Semperit Productos Técnicos SpA, Santiago de
Chile, Chile CLP 46,000 100.00 100.00 46,000 100.00 100.00
Asia
Semperflex Shanghai Ltd., Shanghai, China usD 15,000 50.00 50.00 " 15,000 50.00 50.00 "
Semperit (Shanghai) Management Co. Ltd.,
Shanghai, China usD 2,000 100.00 100.00 2,000 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans Best (Shandong) Belting Co. Ltd.,
Shandong, China EUR 20,000 80.00 80.00 " 20,000 80.00 80.00 "
Shanghai Semperit Rubber & Plastic Products
Co. Ltd., Shanghai, China EUR 2,471 90.00 90.00 " 2,471 90.00 90.00 "
Shanghai Sempermed Glove Sales Co Ltd.,
Shanghai, China usD 1,000 100.00 50.00 " 1,000 100.00 50.00 "
Shanghai Changning Sempermed Glove
Trading Co. Ltd., Shanghai, China usD 310 100.00 100.00 310 100.00 100.00
Sempertrans India Pte. Ltd., Roha,
Maharashtra, India INR 230,769  100.00 100.00 230,769 100.00 100.00
FormTech Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd, Nilai,
Malaysia MYR 7,000 82.86 4143 " 7,000 82.86 4143 "
Latexx Partners Berhad, Kamunting, Malaysia MYR 137,859 98.55 98.55 137,859 98.50 98.50
Latexx Manpower Services Sdn Bhd,
Kamunting, Malaysia MYR 0.002  100.00 98.55 0.002 100.00 98.50
Latexx Manufacturing Sdn Bhd, Kamunting,
Malaysia MYR 3,000 100.00 98.55 3,000 100.00 98.50
Medtexx Manufacturing Sdn Bhd, Kamunting,
Malaysia MYR 5,000 100.00 98.55 5,000 100.00 98.50
Total Glove Company Sdn Bhd, Kamunting,
Malaysia MYR 10 50.01 49.28 10 50.01 49.26
Worldmed Manufacturing Sdn Bhd,
Kamunting, Malaysia MYR 500 100.00 98.55 500 100.00 98.50
Semperit Engineering Technology Asia Sdn
Bhd, Penang, Malaysia MYR 600  100.00 100.00 600 100.00 100.00
Semperit Industrial Products Singapore Pte
Ltd., Singapore usD 665  100.00 100.00 591 100.00 100.00
Semperit Investments Asia Pte Ltd., Singapore EUR 159,000 100.00 100.00 159,000 100.00 100.00
Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd., Singapore usbD 8,000 50.00 50.00 " 8,000 50.00 50.00 "
Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd., Hat Yai, Thailand THB 380,000 50.00 50.00 " 380,000 50.00 50.00 "

" The investments of other shareholders are reported as redeemable non-controlling interests.
2 Since 18 January 2016 Semperit Profiles Leeser GmbH & Co. KG, Hiickelhoven, Germany

3 Not consolidated due to a lack of materiality.
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The Semperit Group regards the following subsidiaries in which the group has a de facto interest
between 41.43% and 50% as meeting the requirement for control within the meaning of IFRS 10:

® Sempermed USA Inc., Clearwater, Florida, USA

e Sempermed Brazil Comeércio Exterior Ltda., Piracicaba, Brazil
¢ Semperflex Shanghai Ltd., Shanghai, China

¢ Shanghai Sempermed Glove Sales Co Ltd., Shanghai, China
¢ Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd., Singapore

e Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd., Hat Yai, Thailand

® FormTech Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd, Nilai, Malaysia

¢ Total Glove Company Sdn Bhd, Kamunting, Malaysia

The Semperit Group carries out a thorough and ongoing analysis of the above mentioned subsid-
iaries regarding their inclusion in the consolidated financial statement through full consolidation
under IFRS 10, in particular due to the loss of control over Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd. (SSC) in 2014.
This analysis is based on the group’s professional judgement and expert opinions on corporate law
and IFRS.

In light of the conclusions of the analysis as of 31 December 2016 the Semperit Group remains of
the opinion that the requirements for control under IFRS 10 are still met. This assessment is based on
the underlying agreements, the investigation of the relevant activities and the facts and circumstances
relating to the above companies.

The following key arguments were evaluated for the individual companies:

Sempermed USA Inc.

e the deciding vote for the chairman of the Board of Directors, who is appointed by the group

¢ resolutions as a result of this deciding vote and the subsequent implementation

¢ independent, professional management which at the same time has no organ function on the Board
of Directors and is bound by instructions

¢ sales management in the framework of the Sempermed segment

e use of the Sempermed brand in the company name and distribution

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would lead to a complete takeover of the company by
the group at the end of the first quarter 2017

This subsidiary is a 50% subsidiary of SSC and another 25% is held by Semperit Technische
Produkte Gesellschaft m.b.H. In January 2015 a director nominated for the Board of Directors by the
Thai joint venture partner Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd. (Sri Trang) opposed a resolution of
the Board of Directors taken with the deciding vote of the chairman, and applied for an injunction.

The request for an injunction was not granted by the competent court, and a hearing was ordered
to deal with the lawsuit, scheduled for July 2015. In May 2015 an agreement was reached to end the
proceeding and recognise the validity of the right to cast a deciding vote. The articles of incorpora-
tion of SUSA were modified accordingly.
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Sempermed Brazil Comércio Exterior Ltda.

e chairman of the parent entity’s Board of Directors (Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd.) has the right to
cast the deciding vote

* resolution in the 2016 financial year as a result of this deciding vote

e independent, local management which at the same time has no organ function on the Board of
Directors of the parent company and is bound by instructions

* implementation of the necessary measures to establish full functionality of the company in order to
successfully contest the tax proceedings

* use of the Sempermed brand in the company name

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would lead to a complete takeover of the company by
the group at the end of the first quarter 2017

The material activity is the successful handling of several tax cases which local management is
pursuing in consultation with legal advisors and Semperit Group head office departments.

Semperflex Shanghai Ltd.

e the deciding vote for the chairman of the Board of Directors, who is appointed by the group

* resolution as a result of this deciding vote and subsequent implementation

e independent, professional management which at the same time has no organ function on the Board
of Directors and is bound by instructions

* purchasing, production and sales management within the framework of the Semperflex segment

e use of the Semperflex brand in the company name and the Semperit and Semperflex brands in
distribution

® complete integration within the group’s organisational structure

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would lead to a complete takeover of the company by
the group at the end of the first quarter 2017

Shanghai Sempermed Glove Sales Co Ltd.

e the deciding vote for the chairman of the Board of Directors, who is appointed by the group

e independent, professional management which at the same time has no organ function on the Board
of Directors and is bound by instructions

e quality control for gloves within the framework of the Sempermed segment (as material activity)

e use of the Sempermed brand in the company name

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would lead to a complete takeover of the company by
the group at the end of the first quarter 2017

This subsidiary is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SSC. The group does not have a direct investment
in this company. The members of SSC's Board of Directors are nominated through a motion by the
shareholders Semperit or Sri Trang. Given the fact that the members of the Board of Directors are
appointed for an unlimited term, the management is appointed by the group and due to the current
situation of SSC no decisions can be made contrary to the group’s opinion, the group believes there
is control under IFRS 10.



Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd.

¢ the deciding vote for the chairman of the BoD, who is appointed by the group

¢ resolution as a result of this deciding vote

* management of the holding functions by the group

e use of the Sempermed brand in the company name

e appointment of a member of the Board of Directors, nominated by the group, to observe the
interests of the subsidiary Sempermed Brazil Comeércio Exterior Ltda.

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would lead to a complete takeover of the company by
the group at the end of the first quarter 2017

This subsidiary has no operating business and functions as a holding company for Sempermed
Brazil Comercio Exterior Ltda. and FormTech Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd.

Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd.

¢ the deciding vote for the chairman of the BoD, who is appointed by the group

¢ purchasing, production and sales management within the framework of the Semperflex segment

e use of the Semperflex brand in the company name and the Semperit and Semperflex brands in
distribution

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would grant Semperit the option to purchase the re-
maining 50% share of Sri Trang during the period 2019 until 2021

This subsidiary is subject to similar statutory and contractual general conditions as SSC (see note
3.3). Currently, there are no indications that the joint venture partner Sri Trang will prohibit the exer-
cise of control in a similar way as SSC. In the future, such a development could lead to a different
evaluation of control under IFRS 10.

Changes of the joint venture contract to strengthen the right of control of Semperit have been
signed in the framework of the joint venture transaction (see note 3.3.) and will be implemented after
the closing.

FormTech Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd

e chairman of the parent entity’s Board of Directors (Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd) has the right to
cast the deciding vote

¢ ability to appoint the majority of the members of the FormTech BoD

¢ independent, professional management by the two minority shareholders, who act as CEO and

CFO to manage the company and have holdings of 17.14%

e the closing of the joint venture transaction would lead to a takeover of 41.43% of the shares of the

company by the group at the end of the first quarter 2017

Total Glove Company Sdn Bhd

The de facto investment of the group in the subsidiary Total Glove Company Sdn Bhd is below 50%.
Due to the control exercised by Latexx Partners Berhad (98.55%), the Semperit Group regards the
facts and circumstances as sufficient for control within the framework of IFRS 10.
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Significant non-controlling interests

The following table shows information on subsidiaries of the group with significant non-controlling
interests. These significant non-controlling interests represent redeemable or temporary interests
held by non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and are recognised as “Liabilities under redeem-
able non-controlling interests” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Significant non-controlling interests as at 31.12.2016

Sempertrans
Best
Semperflex Semperflex  (Shandong)
Asia Sempermed Shanghai  Belting Co.
in EUR thousand Corp. Ltd. USA Inc. Ltd. Ltd.
Non-controlling interests in % 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 20.0%
Non-current assets 8,883 1,705 10,923 10,533
Current assets 47,864 34,811 9,505 6,200
Non-current provisions and liabilities 246 90 0 3,889
Current provisions and liabilities 4,340 14,742 4,653 2,675
Net assets 52,161 21,684 15,774 10,168
Redeemable non-controlling interests — non-current 11,850 0 0 2,034
Redeemable non-controlling interests — current 14,230 10,842 7,887 0
Revenue 38,307 84,925 14,778 13,393
thereof revenue within the group 29,791 0 9,515 6,604
thereof revenue with third parties 8,517 84,925 5,263 6,790
Earnings after tax 9,436 1,761 1,500 -2,533
Other comprehensive income (currency translation differences) 2,185 719 -518 -478
Comprehensive income 11,621 2,480 982 -3,010
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests 4,718 881 750 -507
Other comprehensive income attributable to redeemable non-controlling
interests 1,092 360 -259 -96
Dividends paid to redeemable non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0
Cash flow from operating activities 8,121 4,026 2,046 -1,449
Cash flow from investing activities -248 -61 -145 -550
Cash flow from financing activities
(including dividends) 0 0 0 0

Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents 7,873 3,965 1,900 -1,999
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Significant non-controlling interests as at 31.12.2015
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Sempertrans
Best
Semperflex Semperflex  (Shandong)
Asia Sempermed Shanghai  Belting Co.
in EUR thousand Corp. Ltd. USA Inc. Ltd. Ltd.
Non-controlling interests in % 50.0% 50.0% 50.0% 20.0%
Non-current assets 10,200 1,988 12,327 11,087
Current assets 34,939 35,993 7,586 7,403
Non-current provisions and liabilities 218 115 2,833 3,438
Current provisions and liabilities 4,380 18,662 2,288 1,874
Net assets 40,540 19,203 14,793 13,179
Redeemable non-controlling interests — non-current 20,270 9,602 7,396 2,636
Revenue 40,420 104,159 12,969 13,972
thereof revenue within the group 30,197 0 7,939 10,274
thereof revenue with third parties 10,223 104,159 5,030 3,698
Earnings after tax 9,293 1,774 98 -3,189
Other comprehensive income (currency translation differences) 822 1,834 925 1,066
Comprehensive income 10,116 3,608 1,023 -2,123
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests 4,647 887 49 -638
Other comprehensive income attributable to redeemable non-controlling
interests 411 917 463 213
Dividends paid to redeemable non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0
Cash flow from operating activities 15,152 6,003 1,257 2,488
Cash flow from investing activities -450 -155 -62 =211
Cash flow from financing activities
(including dividends) 0 -3,598 0 0
Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents 14,702 2,250 1,195 2,277
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3.2. Investments in joint ventures and associated companies
The investments in joint ventures and associated companies are comprised as follows:

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Joint ventures
Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd., Hat Yai, Thailand 0 100,535
Associated companies
Synergy Health Allershausen GmbH, Allershausen, Germany 2,608 2,135
2,608 102,670

The change in the investments in joint ventures and associated companies is as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
As at 1.1. 102,670 82,835
Proportionate period result and intercompany elimination results 8,370 17,078
Currency translation 4,884 2,545
Revaluation of defined benefit obligation 7 211
Reclassification to non-current assets held for sale -113,323 0
As at 31.12. 2,608 102,670

Investments in joint ventures
The consolidated carrying amount of the investment in Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd. Totalled, before
reclassification to non-current assets held for sale, EUR 113,323 thousand as of 31 December 2016
(previous year: EUR 100,535 thousand). Due to the expected joint venture transaction the carrying
value plus the proportional goodwill for the segment Sempermed will be classified as non-current
assets held for sale. The amount for the classification according to IFRS 5 is in total EUR 152,684
thousands, thereof EUR 39,631 thousand for goodwill and EUR 113,323 thousand for the previous
carrying value.

Due to the contractual agreed price for SSC in the context of the joint venture transaction, the
Semperit Group regards the values for SSC as recoverable.
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The following table provides information about the company. The individual items show the total
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amounts recognised in the company, and not the portion attributable to Semperit.

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Group holding in % 50.0% 50.0%
Non-current assets 72,219 76,503
Current assets 174,290 145,021
Non-current provisions and liabilities 2,016 1,853
Current provisions and liabilities 21,633 21,738
Net assets 222,860 197,933
Investments in still fully consolidated subsidiaries -3,520 -3,367
Net assets adjusted 219,340 194,566
Proportional net assets adjusted 109,670 97,283
Goodwill 5,016 4,798
Intercompany elimination results -531 -986
Other -831 -561
Investment in joint ventures 113,323 100,535
Revenue 234,531 269,410
Earnings after tax 15,358 32,849
Other comprehensive income 15 423
Comprehensive income 15,373 33,272
Cash and cash equivalents 102,685 80,885
Current financial liabilities 1,631 1,004
Non-current financial liabilities 0 0
Depreciation and amortisation 14,766 14,813
Financial result -179 -263
Income taxes 3,803 5,557
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As of 31 December 2016 group companies conducted transactions that resulted in the following
assets and liabilities against the joint venture, and their business relationships resulted in the follow-
ing income and expenses in 2015 and 2016:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Revenue 685 1,468
Other operating income 619 488
Cost of material and purchased services 174,381 160,165
Other operating expenses 0 179

31.12.2016  31.12.2015

Inventories 20,112 16,167
Trade receivables 1,930 1,319
Trade payables 27,447 24,533

Investments in associated companies

Nominal

capital in Group
Foreign Currency thousand holding in %
Synergy Health Allershausen GmbH, Allershausen, Germany EUR 512 37.5

The company is included in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The
group’s investment and the nominal capital of the company remained unchanged in the financial year
2016.

The carrying amount of the investment in this associated company as of 31 December 2016 is
EUR 2,608 thousand (previous year: EUR 2,135 thousand). A share in the profit of EUR 473 thousand
was recognised in the consolidated income statement (previous year: EUR 453 thousand). No other
comprehensive income attributable to the associated company had to be taken into account.

The balance sheet date of the company is 31 March. The update to 31 December is based on the
company’s internal reporting, which is then submitted for the consolidated financial statements of the
Semperit Group.

As of 31 December 2016 group companies had the following assets and liabilities against the as-
sociated company, and their business relationships resulted in the following income and expenses in
2016:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Other operating expenses 406 509
Financial income 6 7
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Other financial assets 569 566

Trade payables 32 173
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3.3. Expected changes in the scope of consolidation

On 18 January 2017 Semperit and the Thai company Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd. Group
(Sri Trang) signed an agreement to terminate nearly all of their joint business activities. Under this
agreement Siam Sempermed Corporation Ltd (SSC) will be sold to Sri Trang. In exchange, Semperit
will acquire Sri Trang's respective investment in the following joint venture companies:

* Sempermed USA Inc. (USA) - Sempermed segment

¢ Shanghai Sempermed Glove Sales Co Ltd. (China) - Sempermed segment

* Sempermed Singapore Pte Ltd. (Singapore) - Sempermed segment

® Formtech Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd (Malaysia) — Sempermed segment

e Sempermed Brazil Comeércio Exterior Ltda. (Brazil) - Sempermed segment

¢ Semperflex Shanghai Ltd. (China) — Semperflex segment

® Shanghai Semperit Rubber & Plastic Products Co. Ltd. (China) — Semperform segment

Furthermore, as part of the termination of the joint venture Semperit will receive a one-time com-
pensation payment totalling USD 167.5 million before taxes. In addition, immediately prior to the
closing and thus the complete transfer to Sri Trang, SSC will pay a dividend to Semperit in the
amount of USD 51.0 million before taxes.

Semperit will additionally receive a call option for the Thai company Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd.
(SAC). This option may be exercised between the middle of 2019 and the middle of 2021 at a fixed
price to acquire the remaining 50% interest in SAC. Modifications have been made to the SAC joint
venture agreement in order to strengthen Semperit’s control rights. Moreover, a joint dividend policy
has been agreed for SAC for 2017 and subsequent years. Immediately before the closing a dividend
payment in the amount of USD 15.0 million will be made to the joint venture partner. The corre-
sponding liability will be disclosed as current liability for redeemable non-controlling interests.

If the closing is successful, the termination agreement stipulates that all pending arbitration and
civil proceedings between Semperit Group and Sri Trang Group or SSC will be settled. Customary
break-up fees in the amount of USD 15.0 million have been agreed for the possibility that the closing
fails. For this purpose a Stand-by Letter of Credit has been issued. For collateralization of this Stand-
by Letter of Credit, the Semperit Group pledged fixed deposits in the amount of USD 15.0 million at
the beginning of February 2017. According to IFRS these pledged fixed deposits has to be consid-
ered as restricted cash. The closing of the transaction is scheduled for the middle of March 2017.

The aforementioned transaction (joint venture transaction) has resulted in the following material
effects in these financial statements:

¢ SSC was reclassified as a non-current asset held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 (see Note 3.2).

® The components of the Sempermed cash generating unit were restated when performing the
impairment test pursuant to IAS 36 (see Note 6.1).

* The company planning for the Sempermed cash generating unit was modified in light of the ex-
pected changes resulting from the joint venture transaction. These modifications relate, in particu-
lar, to the estimates of future sales volumes and the corresponding realisable margin.

® The effects from the joint venture transaction on the expected future distributions and the applica-
ble tax rates were already taken into account accordingly in the assessment of the outside-basis
differences under IAS 12 for both SSC and SAC (see Note 6.8).
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* The value of liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests was limited for one group compa-
ny based on the expected valuation under the joint venture transaction. As a result of the loss situa-
tion for this group company, no further booking has therefore been recorded in this item for 2016
(see Note 6.10).

3.4. Change in the method of consolidation for Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd. (SSC) in
the financial year 2014

As at 31 December 2014 the company Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd. (SSC) was originally changed

from full consolidation under IFRS 10 to the equity method in accordance with IFRS 11 and IAS 28.

As the result of a special audit of the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2013
and the consolidated interim financial statements as of 30 June 2014, the Austrian Financial Market
Authority (FMA) reached the conclusion in its decision from 30 July 2015 that SSC was no longer
eligible for consolidation already as of 30 June 2014.

Based on this finding of error, management assessed the effects of the obstacles during the first
half of 2014 described above for the consolidated interim financial statements as of 30 June 2015. As
a consequence, the above-mentioned change in the method of consolidation used for SSC as of 31
December 2014 (from full consolidation to the equity method) was retroactively restated to 31 March
2014.

For more details concerning the change in the method of consolidation for SSC see note 3.3.
Group Financial Statement 2015.

For additional information concerning the ongoing proceedings at the international arbitration
tribunals seated in Zurich (ICC 1 Case) see note 9.

3.5. Other changes in the scope of consolidation

Changes in the scope of consolidation in the financial year 2016
Newly established companies

As of 31 December 2016 the newly established companies Sempertrans North America Investments
Corp., Atlanta, USA, and Sempertrans USA LLC, Atlanta, USA, were included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Semperit Group for the first time.

In addition, in December 2016 the company Leeser Profiles Verwaltungs GmbH was newly estab-
lished as subsidiary of Semperit Profiles Leeser GmbH & Co. KG. Due to the lack of materiality, the
company was not consolidated as of 31 December 2016.

Company disposals and restructurings

The company Carlona Sp. z.0.0., Warsaw, Poland, acquired in the financial year 2015 serves from now
on as intermediate holding company in the Sempertrans segment.
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Changes in the scope of consolidation in the 2015 financial year
Newly established companies

In the third quarter of 2015 the newly established company Shanghai Changning Sempermed Glove
Trading Co. Ltd., Shanghai, China, was included in the consolidated financial statements of the Sem-
perit Group for the first time. In addition, the group purchased the company Carlona Sp. z.0.0.,
Warsaw, Poland, in the third quarter of 2015 for a purchase price of EUR 3 thousand.

Company disposals and restructurings
In the third quarter of 2015 Semperit Tekniska Produkter Aktiebolag, Skarholmen, Sweden, which had
discontinued its business operations in 2014, was sold to a Swedish liquidator.

The company Fabryka Lin “Stolin” Sp. z.0.0., Betchatéw, Poland, was merged in December 2015
into the company Sempertrans Betchatéw Sp. z.0.0., Betchatéw, Poland.

Acquisitions
In April 2015 the Semperit Group acquired a 100% interest in Leeser GmbH & Co. KG, Hickelhoven,
Germany, and in Leeser Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Hickelhoven, Germany (Leeser).
Leeser GmbH & Co. KG has a 75% interest in Elastomer Technology Kmenta s.r.o., Husava, Czech
Republic. Leeser specialises in foam rubber and co-extruded seals for aluminium windows and fa-
cades. The two companies have been assigned to the Semperform segment. The acquisition of
Leeser enables the Semperit Group to strengthen the Semperform segment as a comprehensive
provider in the profiles market. Leeser complements the current Semperform business, particularly in
profiles for windows, doors and facades. The bundling of expertise, particularly with regard to ultra-
high frequency technology, will utilise synergies.

The purchase price allocation based on the fair values determined as of the date of acquisition is
as follows:

in EUR thousand

Purchase price paid in cash 18,216
Purchase price not yet due 200

18,416
Net assets 21,792

Badwill -3,376
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The fair values of the assets and liabilities of Leeser determined as of the date of acquisition are
shown below:

Fair value at
in EUR thousand acquisition date

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 5,697
Tangible assets 16,302
21,999
Current assets
Inventories 2,273
Trade receivables 3,252
Other assets 83
Cash and cash equivalents 742
6,350
Non-current provisions and liabilities
Liabilities to banks 1,594
Deferred taxes 1,569
3,163
Current provisions and liabilities
Other provisions 488
Liabilities to banks 454
Trade payables 1,321
Other liabilities 679
Current tax liabilities 452
3,394
Total net assets at their fair value 21,792
Badwill -3,376
Compensation paid (purchase price paid in cash) 18,416

The purchase price was EUR 3,376 thousand below the fair value of the acquired net assets. In ac-
cordance with IFRS 3, this amount was recognised as a gain in other operating income.

The fair value of trade receivables, i.e. the expected total payments to be received, amounts to
EUR 3,252 thousand as of the acquisition date, while the gross amount is EUR 3,267 thousand. In
accordance with management'’s judgement, the lack of detailed data makes it impossible to deter-
mine with a reasonable effort the disclosures required under IFRS 3.B64 (h) (iii) for the best estimate
of the contractual cash flows at the date of acquisition that will probably be uncollectible.

The measurement of intangible assets and tangible assets was based on appraisals made by re-
nowned external experts.

The negative goodwill (badwill) that arose from the acquisition results from two factors. First, the
purchase price was at the lower end of the valuation ranges, and second, the benefits expected to be
capitalised from the technology resulted in the recognition of corresponding intangible assets.
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Of the purchase price totalling EUR 18,416 thousand, EUR 18,216 thousand was paid in cash, and
the remaining EUR 200 thousand is payable in 2017. Transaction costs of EUR 836 thousand were
incurred in connection with the acquisition of the company. These are included under other operating
expenses.

Since the date of its acquisition, Leeser has contributed EUR 21,616 thousand to revenue and
EUR 107 thousand to earnings before taxes. If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of
2015, Leeser would have contributed EUR 33,902 thousand to revenue and EUR 775 thousand to
earnings before tax.

3.6. Equity transactions

In the 2016 financial year a 0.05% interest in Latexx Partners Berhad was acquired for EUR 57 thou-
sand. As of 31 December 2016 the group’s interest totalled 98.55%, up from 98.50% as of 31 De-
cember 2015. In the 2015 financial year a 0.04% interest was acquired for EUR 63 thousand, increas-
ing the group’s total interest to 98.50% as of 31 December 2015.

These transactions were recognised in 2015 and 2016 as equity transactions. The difference be-
tween the disposal of the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests (EUR 58 thousand, previ-
ous year: EUR 51 thousand) and the fair value of the consideration paid (EUR 57 thousand, previous
year: EUR 63 thousand) amounted to EUR -1 thousand (previous year: EUR 11 thousand). This differ-
ence was recognised directly in equity and is presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity as a change in the position “Other revenue reserves”.

1M1
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4. Segment reporting

The segment report is prepared in accordance with IFRS 8 using the “management approach” and is
based on the internal reports submitted to the Management Board of Semperit AG Holding in its
capacity as the chief operating decision maker on the allocation of resources to the segments.

The segments have been defined by product group. They are managed separately and corre-
spond to the Semperit Group's divisions. The Semperit Group thus comprises four reportable seg-
ments:

* Sempermed
e Semperflex

e Sempertrans
® Semperform

The Sempermed segment produces gloves by means of an immersion technology and sells these
gloves throughout the world. The product portfolio encompasses examination, protective and surgi-
cal gloves.

The Semperflex segment sells low-pressure and high-pressure hoses. These hoses are reinforced
with textiles (industrial hoses) or metal wires (hydraulic hoses).

The Sempertrans segment focuses on the manufacturing and marketing of transport and convey-
or belts, which are reinforced with either textile or steel carcasses.

Semperform produces and markets moulded goods; the focus of its business activities is in Eu-
rope. Rubber and plastics serve as the main raw materials. The individual product groups are manu-
factured on the basis of various technologies.

The accounting and measurement methods used in determining segment earnings, assets and li-
abilities are identical to those described in note 2. The segment result comprises EBIT and is derived
in the same manner as EBIT (earnings before interest and tax) in the consolidated income statement.
This is the figure reported to the Management Board for purposes of resource allocation and perfor-
mance measurement.
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Segment reporting by division
The segment reporting by division is based on internal management and reporting.

Corporate
Center
and inter-
Semper- Semper- Semper- Semper- company
2016 in EUR thousand med flex trans form  tansactions Group
Revenue 345,956 202,327 148,351 155,745 0 852,379
Share of profits from joint ventures and
associated companies 8,370 0 0 0 0 8,370
EBITDA 6,601 48,034 15,855 25,588 -18,168 77,909
EBIT = segment result -23,942 39,521 12,129 18,325 -18,723 27,310
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible and
intangible assets -13,220 -8,501 -3,726 -7,263 -555 -33,265
Impairments of tangible and intangible assets -17,323 -12 0 0 0 -17,334
Reversal of impairments of property, plant and
equipment 0 0 4 0 0 4
Trade Working Capital 51,770 39,096 39,772 22,511 -7,770 145,380
Segment assets 420,832 226,106 147,943 129,482 -42,562 881,801
Non-current assets held for sale 152,684 0 0 0 0 152,684
Segment liabilities 109,831 69,408 31,272 34,490 458,505 703,506
Cash-effective investments in tangible and
intangible assets 25,717 14,444 6,676 13,775 4,460 65,072
Investments in associated companies 2,608 0 0 0 0 2,608

Employees (at balance sheet date) 3,183 1,674 1,036 928 154 6,974
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Corporate
Center
and inter-
Semper- Semper- Semper- Semper- company
2015 in EUR thousand restated” med flex trans form  tansactions Group
Revenue 393,686 203,353 164,870 152,777 0 914,686
Share of profits from joint ventures and
associated companies 17,078 0 0 0 0 17,078
EBITDA 29,422 46,130 23,151 24,345 -26,824 96,224
EBIT = segment result 17,229 38,215 19,888 19,137 -27,723 66,746
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible and
intangible assets -12,193 -7,900 -3,263 -5,208 -899 29,462
Impairments of tangible and intangible assets 0 -16 0 0 0 -16
Reversal of impairments of property, plant and
equipment 5 0 0 0 0 5
Trade Working Capital 54,530 43,423 48,297 22,604 -8,284 160,570
Segment assets 473,481 190,854 150,860 107,176 15,413 937,784
Segment liabilities 109,848 66,097 33,370 35,861 327,424 572,601
Cash-effective investments in tangible and
intangible assets 29,571 14,644 12,293 8,118 7,223 71,848
Investments in joint ventures and associated
companies 102,670 0 0 0 0 102,670
Employees (at balance sheet date) 3,344 1,536 1,086 954 133 7,053

12015 values restated, see page 96 in the notes (Foreign Exchange restatement).

The income and expenses of companies involved in production and distribution in more than one
segment are subdivided and allocated to the appropriate segments so that no further eliminations
are necessary. The Corporate Center consists of Semperit AG Holding, which is not involved in oper-
ating activities, and those portions of a management company in China and a service company in
Singapore that are allocated to the Corporate Center. In addition, some Corporate Center services
are rendered by operating companies. Internal charging and allocations of Corporate Center costs
are already allocated to the segments as far as possible. All group assets are allocated to segments,
with the exception of the assets of Semperit AG Holding as a non-operating parent company, as well
as the assets of a management company in China and a service company in Singapore, which are
allocated to the Corporate Center. A large percentage of the assets can be clearly assigned to the
respective segments as the companies operate in only one segment. The cash and cash equivalents
of Semperit Technische Produkte Gesellschaft m.b.H. are assigned in equal portions to the segments
in which the company is active. The assets of the sales companies are classified according to the
revenue which is generated.



Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

All group liabilities are allocated to segments, with the exception of the liabilities of Semperit AG
Holding as a non-operating parent company, as well as the liabilities of a management company in
China and a service company in Singapore, which are allocated to the Corporate Center. A large
percentage of the liabilities can be clearly assigned to the respective segments as the companies
operate in only one segment. Liabilities of Semperit Technische Produkte Gesellschaft m.b.H. are
assigned in equal portions to the segments in which the company is active. Liabilities held by sales
companies are classified according to the revenue which is generated.

Segment reporting by region
Group activities are primarily conducted in Europe, Asia and the Americas.

Pursuant to IFRS 8, information on revenue is presented depending on the location of the cus-
tomers. Details on non-current assets and investments are based on the respective locations of the
different companies belonging to the Semperit Group.

Semperit does not depend on any one customer for more than 10% of its total revenue.
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2016 2015
Cash- Cash-
Non-current effective Non-current effective
in EUR thousand assets 2% Investments Revenue " assets 2% Investments Revenue "
Austria 67,445 13,150 34,615 65,666 15,157 35,667
EU excluding Austria 150,294 25,696 490,855 133,464 27,308 502,749
Total for EU 217,739 38,846 525,470 199,130 42,465 538,416
Rest of Europe 0 0 57,402 0 0 63,546
Total for Europe 217,739 38,846 582,872 199,130 42,465 601,962
Asia 157,132 26,141 90,009 197,854 29,228 99,648
The Americas 3,157 83 165,495 2,119 155 198,665
Rest of the world 3 1 14,003 0 0 14,411
Group 378,032 65,072 852,379 399,102 71,848 914,686

" After eliminating internal revenue.
2 Consolidation entries are assigned to the regions whenever possible.
3 Non-current assets do not include deferred income tax assets, financial investments and shares in joint ventures and associates.
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5. Notes to the consolidated income statement
5.1. Revenue
Detailed information on the revenues of the various divisions and regions is provided in the segment

reporting.

5.2. Other operating income

2015
in EUR thousand 2016 restated"
Insurance claims 3,106 1,080
Reimbursement of costs ICC1 case 2,514 0
Sale of by-products and waste materials 512 532
Rental income 365 255
Income from the sale of property, plant and equipment 67 144
Reversal of impairments of property, plant and equipment 4 5
Income from first consolidation 0 3,376
Other 3,908 3,753

10,477 9,145
1 2015 values restated, see page 96 in the notes (Foreign Exchange restatement).
5.3. Cost of material and purchased services
in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Cost of materials 459,908 512,457
Purchased services 45,596 43,329

505,504 555,785
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5.4. Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses include the following items:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Wages 58,997 55,911
Salaries 71,330 75,957
Severance payments 1,813 1,509
Retirement benefit expenses 1,125 1,141
Statutory social security expenses and other compulsory wage-related payments 28,059 27,094
Other social security expenses 3,970 3,200

165,294 164,813

The average number of people employed by the Semperit Group is as follows:

2016 2015
Blue-collar workers 5,263 5,308
White-collar workers 1,776 1,677
7,038 6,985

The average number of employees in Austria totalled 838 (previous year: 818).

In the 2016 financial year, the remuneration paid to the active members of the Management
Board totalled EUR 2,676 thousand (previous year: EUR 3,323 thousand), of which EUR 1,213 thou-
sand (previous year: EUR 1,420 thousand) consisted of variable salary components. As a result of the
change to the composition of the Management Board during 2016 and due to the repayment of
variable compensation for previous years in 2016, comparing total compensation with the previous
year is of limited value.

The expenses for pensions and severance payments for the active Management Board members
amounted to EUR 216 thousand (previous year: EUR 191 thousand). Of this amount, EUR 201 thou-
sand (previous year: EUR 180 thousand) is attributable to contribution-based severance and pension
commitments.
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5.5. Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses comprise the following:

2015
in EUR thousand 2016 restated”
Maintenance and services 33,758 33,170
Outgoing freight 30,179 29,408
Legal, consulting and auditing fees 16,654 20,869
Travel expenses 10,108 11,042
Commission and advertising costs 6,984 8,234
Rental and leasing expenses 5,350 4,443
Insurance premiums 4,155 4,338
Other taxes 4,017 4,530
Fees, subscriptions and donations 1,914 1,627
Waste disposal 1,852 2,083
Communications 1,750 1,661
Training and education expenditures 1,400 1,319
Office equipment 1,225 1,250
Energy costs not for production 1,037 1,152
Bank expenses 603 613
Other 8,252 11,356

129,237 137,092

1 2015 values restated, see page 96 in the notes (Foreign Exchange restatement).

In the 2016 financial year the expenses for research and development amounted to around
EUR 13,320 thousand (previous year: EUR 11,800 thousand).

The expenses for the auditors of the consolidated financial statements, Ernst & Young
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna, are as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Auditing of consolidated financial statements and thereto related audit opinion 812 709
there of Ernst&Young Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft m.b.H. 333 226
Other valuation and certification services 15 15
Other services 112 240

938 964




Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

5.6. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of tangible and intangible assets

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Depreciation and amortisation 33,265 29,462
Impairments 17,334 16

50,599 29,478

Impairments in the financial year 2016 relate to impairment of goodwill and impairment of tech-
nical equipment, plant and machinery in the Sempermed segment as well as an impairment in land

value in the Semperflex segment (see Notes 6.1 and 6.2).

5.7. Financial result

2015
in EUR thousand 2016 restated"
Financial income
Income from securities 145 153
Exchange rate gains 21,621 27,953
Interest and related income 1,048 1,099

22,813 29,206
Financial expenses
Other expenses from financial assets -3,169 -2,651
Exchange rate losses -25,287 -23,548
Interest and other financial expenses -7,894 -5,577
-36,350 -31,776
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests -6,393 -5,395
Financial result -19,930 -7,965
12015 values restated, see page 96 in the notes (Foreign Exchange restatement).
Net income from available-for-sale financial assets breaks down as follows:
in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Net income recognised directly in profit and loss
Income from available-for-sale financial assets 145 153
Losses on the disposal of securities 0 0
145 153
Net income/expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains / losses for the period 12 -112
Reclassification to profit and loss for the period 0 0
12 -112
Net income from available-for-sale financial assets 156 41
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Net income from loans and receivables (excluding currency gains and losses) breaks down as

follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Interest income from loans and receivables 1,048 1,099
Valuation adjustments of loans and receivables -1,779 654
Foreign exchange gains from loans and receivables 15,369 11,948
Foreign exchange losses from loans and receibables -13,186 -4,569
Net income from loans and receivables 1,451 9,134

Allowances arising from loans and receivables are summarised under other operating expenses.
This also includes reversals of allowances from loans and receivables recognised in profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains resulting from financial liabilities at amortized cost amounts to EUR 4,510
thousand (previous year: EUR 4,431 thousand). These foreign exchange gains were offset by foreign
exchange losses resulting from financial liabilities at amortized cost of EUR 13,309 thousand (previous
year: EUR 9,689 thousand).

Net income resulting from held for trading financial instruments (derivatives) is as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Income from foreign exchange transactions 827 5,455
Expenses from foreign exchange transactions -3,593 -1,337
Net income from financial instruments held for trading -2,766 4,119

Income and expenses from foreign exchange contracts are included in the financial result and re-
late exclusively to foreign exchange forward contracts. No foreign exchange options were entered
into in the financial years 2016 and 2015. According to the changes in the recognition of foreign
exchange gains and losses see note 2.19.

From the interest expenses and other financial expenses included in the financial result,
EUR 7,894 thousand (previous year: EUR 5,577 thousand) is attributable to liabilities valued at amor-
tised cost. Liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests correspond to the result shown in the
consolidated income statement amounting to EUR 6,393 thousand (previous year:
EUR 5,395 thousand) and represent the effective interest expense.
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5.8. Income taxes

Income tax expense recognised in the financial year includes current and deferred income tax for the
individual companies calculated on the basis of taxable income and the applicable tax rate in the

relevant countries.

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Current tax expense (+) / tax income (-)

for the current period 12,166 13,867
for previous periods 484 -1,445
12,650 12,422

Deferred tax expense (+) / tax income (-)
from the origination or reversal of temporary differences 8,217 3,134
from value adjustment of tax loss carryforwards and temporary differences 3,085 1,854
other deferred tax effects 7,771 -4,992
3,531 -4
16,182 12,419

Other deferred tax effects mainly comprise tax loss carryforwards incurred and capitalised in the
current financial year as well as changes to deferred tax assets on tax credits and tax concessions

usable in future periods, as well as deferred taxes for previous periods.

The effective tax rate in the financial year 2016, i.e. the tax expense in relation to the earnings be-
fore tax and before deduction of profit or loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests, is
117.5% (previous year: 19.4%). The significant increase in comparison to the financial year 2015 is on
the one hand due the impairment of the goodwill which is tax-neutral and on the other hand due to
the re-evaluation of the outside-basis-differences in connection with the joint venture transaction. The

group tax rate is a weighted average of the local income tax rates of all consolidated subsidiaries.
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The following table reconciles earnings before tax with the income tax expense reported in the
consolidated income statement:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Earnings before tax 7.379 58,781
Tax expense / income (-/+) at 25 % -1,845 -14,695
Tax rates in other countries 23 2,791
Share of profits from joint ventures and associated companies 2,093 4,269
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests -1,598 -1,349
Non-deductible expenses -4,041 -2,364
Non-taxable income, tax exemptions and tax deductibles 1,795 1,983
Tax credits and tax concessions usable in future periods 4,553 2,033
Reduction of current tax expenses on the basis of yet unused tax loss

carryforwards 369 46
Non-recognised deferred tax assets on new losses carryforwards and temporary

differences in the financial year -3,892 -153
Value adjustment of deferred tax assets from loss carryforwards or temporary

differences arising and recognised in previous years 438 -1,747
Change to outside-basis-differences —7,680 -1,215
Tax effects on write-downs on holdings of fully consolidated companies 1,045 0
Non-deductible impariment of goodwill -4,246 0
Withholding taxes -1,158 -1,414
Current tax arrears from previous periods -484 1,445
Other -1,553 -2,049
Income taxes according to the consolidated income statement -16,182 -12,419

The change in the outside-basis differences in the amount of EUR 7,680 thousand for the year
2016 relates primarily to the adopted assessment of the applicable tax rate (up to now based on
dividend payment with withholding tax, from now on based on dividend payment with withholding
tax combined with pending taxes in the case of a disposal of the investment) in connection with the
investment in SSC. In 2015 the item “Other” contains the effects from deferred taxes for previous
periods.
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in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Earnings before tax 7,379 58,781
Profit / loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests 6,393 5,395
13,773 64,176
Income taxes according to the consolidated income statement 16,182 12,419
Effective tax rate in % 117.5% 19.4%
5.9. Earnings per share (EPS)
in EUR 2016 2015
Earnings after taxes attributable to the shareholders of Semperit
AG Holding in EUR -8,799,051 46,393,838
Average number of shares issued in units 20,573,434 20,573,434
Earnings per share (diluted and undiluted) in EUR -0.43 2.26

There were no dilution effects as of both 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016.
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6. Notes to the consolidated balance sheet
6.1. Intangible assets

Software licences,
industrial property

in EUR thousand and similar ::g::: Goodwill Prepayments Total
Acquisition costs

As at 1.1.2015 32,807 93,324 4,184 130,315
Additions due to business combinations 5,697 0 0 5,697
Currency translation differences -1,040 -8,597 0 -9,637
Additions 7,286 0 830 8,115
Disposals -89 0 0 -89
Transfers 3,450 0 -3,350 100
As at 31.12.2015 48,111 84,727 1,663 134,501
Currency translation differences -110 -555 0 -664
Additions 2,145 0 3,358 5,503
Disposals -47 0 0 -47
Reclassification to non-current assets held for sale 0 -39,361 0 -39,361
Transfers 608 0 =271 337
As at 31.12.2016 50,707 44,812 4,749 100,268
Depreciation / write-ups / impairment

As at 1.1.2015 17,900 0 0 17,901
Currency translation differences -458 0 0 -458
Depreciation and amortisation 5,826 0 0 5,826
Impairments 0 0 0 0
Disposals -88 0 0 -88
Transfers 6 0 0 6
As at 31.12.2015 23,186 0 0 23,187
Currency translation differences -117 0 0 -117
Depreciation and amortisation 6,865 0 0 6,865
Impairments 0 16,984 0 16,984
Disposals -47 0 0 -47
Reclassification to non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0 0
As at 31.12.2016 29,887 16,985 0 46,872
Carrying amount

Carrying amount 1.1.2015 14,907 93,324 4,183 112,415
Carrying amount 31.12.2015 24,925 84,727 1,663 111,315
Carrying amount 31.12.2016 20,820 27,827 4,749 53,395

Note: Rounding differences may occur through the use of automated calculations.
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The scheduled depreciation, amortisation and impairments are reported in the consolidated in-
come statement under the item “Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of tangible and intangi-
ble assets”. For 2016 there was an impairment of intangible assets amounting to EUR 16,984 thou-
sand (previous year: EUR O thousand) necessary. There was no reversal of impairments in the two
financial years for intangible assets necessary.

The reported goodwill is distributed to the cash-generating units (CGU) as follows:

Cash generating unit in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Segment Sempermed 26,063 82,963
Segment Semperflex 1,693 1,693
Segment Sempertrans 71 71
27,828 84,727

The impairment testing of goodwill was performed as at 31 December 2016 at the respective
segment level. The recoverable amount of the respective segment is based on its value in use, which
is calculated using the segment's discounted future cash flows. These forecasted cash flows were
determined using the budgets for the 2016 financial year that were approved by the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition, an organic (growth from own business activity without
acquisitions) medium-term plan covering the next five years was taken into account as well. For
Sempermed segment a financial haircut due to historical planning mismatches was also taken into
account. The planning is based on assumptions made by segment management on the development
of their markets, the market share of their segments and specific business initiatives. Key assumptions
in the plan are unit sales and EBIT margins, which are determined in medium-term planning in coor-
dination with strategic product and customer initiatives.

These assumptions are subject to forecasting uncertainty. Corporate planning in this regard as-
sumes, in principle, that measures will be taken in the future to expand the segment’s capacity and
improve its infrastructure. The planned cash flows from these measures were eliminated from the
impairment test if the implementation of these measures had not begun as at the reporting date. The
change in working capital is derived from internally defined targets for the respective segment.

A constant long-term growth rate of 0.75% (previous year: 1.5%) is used for the period after the
detailed planning time period in the Sempermed segment. For the Sempertrans and Semperflex
segments a constant long-term growth rate of 1.25% (previous year: 1.5%) is assumed. This is based
on market growth expected in the long term, allowing for forecast expectations in inflation.

The discount rate used is the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) as derived in the capital
asset pricing model. When determining this rate, a separate peer group is assumed for the Medical
Sector (equivalent to the Sempermed segment) and the Industrial Sector (includes the Semperflex,
Sempertrans and Semperform segments). The pre-tax discount rate, which was determined for each
segment individually, was 8.7% (previous year: 9.4%) for the Sempermed segment, 11.3% (previous
year: 11.8%) for the Sempertrans segment, and 11.2% (previous year: 11.7%) for the Semperflex
segment.

The recoverability of the goodwill has been proofed by the impairment test for the Sempertrans
and Semperflex segments. The recoverable amount of the CGU was higher than the book value, so
that no impairment is necessary.
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For the Sempermed segment the recoverable amount for the CGU totalled to EUR 186.859 thou-
sand and therefore was below the book value which resulted in the necessity for an impairment of
EUR 16,984 thousand. The main reason for this impairment were adjustments in the budgets of the
CGU Sempermed. The company planning for the Sempermed cash generating unit was modified in
light of the expected changes resulting from the joint venture transaction. These modifications relate,
in particular, to the estimates of future sales volumes and the corresponding realisable margin.

These adjustments mainly were performed in respect to the business influences of the joint ven-
ture transaction. By virtue of the joint venture transaction the SSC including the proportional goodwill
is recognized under the position “non-current assets held for sale” and therefore the cash inflows are
not realized through the operating profit anymore and consequently not accounted in the segment
assets.

The value in use is largely determined using the end value (present value of a perpetual annuity),
which is especially sensitive to changes in assumptions regarding free cash flow, long-term growth
rates and the discount rate. Management regards the following negative changes in parameters as

possible.

Change in parameters 201 6 201 5
Discount rate (WACC) +/-1 percentage point + 1 percentage point
Long-term growth rate +/-0.75 percentage point -1 percentage point
Change in free cash flows +/-10% change -10% change

For the Sempermed segment the sensitivity analysis was designed in a way that considers nega-
tive as well as positive changes for the individual parameters in isolation. These results were com-
pared to the book value of the CGU (after the Impairment amounting to EUR 16.984 thousand). The
results of this analysis are shown in the following table and show a change of the Impairment value
(increase / decrease respective elimination / formation of Headroom):

WACC Long-term growth rate Change in free cash flows
in EUR thousand +1%" -1% +0.75% -0.75% +10% -10%"
Impairment Risk (-)
/ Headroom (+) -30,875 42,682 22,898 -18,046 49,444 -43,853

" The remaining goodwill in the Sempermed segment amounts to EUR|26,063 thousand, further impairment tests of assets have to be
considered on asset level.

For the Sempertrans and Semperflex CGU the above given, realistic parameter changes were tak-
en into account. These sensitivity analyses showed that there is no necessity for any impairment since
the book value is still covered.

No impairment test was performed for the Semperform CGU, which does not contain any good-
will or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, because there was no indication that an impair-
ment was present.

Besides goodwill, the Semperit Group has no other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life.
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Land and build- Technical Other Prepayments
ings, including equipment equipment, office and assets

on land owned and furniture and under
in EUR thousand by third parties machinery equipment construction Total
Acquisition costs
As at 1.1.2015 136,575 361,779 60,626 41,678 600,659
Additions due to business combinations 5,698 8,798 1,770 36 16,302
Currency translation differences 1,108 953 418 -1,909 570
Additions 2,832 16,216 5,735 42,794 67,578
Disposals -54 -5,563 -2,126 -74 -7,817
Disposals resulting from changes in the
scope of consolidation 0 0 -55 0 -55
Transfers 8,705 26,423 925 -36,153 -100
As at 31.12.2015 154,865 408,606 67,294 46,372 677,138
Currency translation differences -1,699 -2,566 171 -156 -4,249
Additions 5,083 22,191 4,957 37,235 69,466
Disposals -150 -6,154 -1,998 -16 -8,317
Other adjustments 0 15 -44 0 -29
Transfers 16,915 21,156 2,760 -41,168 -337
As at 31.12.2016 175,015 443,248 73,141 42,269 733,673
Depreciation / write-ups / impairment
As at 1.1.2015 71,036 263,218 46,387 0 380,642
Currency translation differences 757 2,109 588 0 3,454
Depreciation and amortisation 3,241 16,341 4,055 0 23,637
Impairments 0 1 15 0 16
Write-ups 0 -5 0 0 -5
Disposals -54 -5,439 -1,681 0 7,174
Disposals resulting from changes in the
scope of consolidation 0 0 -55 0 -55
Transfers 0 0 ) 0 -6
As at 31.12.2015 74,980 276,225 49,304 0 400,509
Currency translation differences -334 -835 248 0 -922
Depreciation and amortisation 3,469 17,767 5,164 0 26,400
Impairments 12 339 0 0 350
Write-ups -4 0 0 0 -4
Disposals -50 —4,441 -1,728 0 -6,219
As at 31.12.2016 78,073 289,054 52,987 0 420,114
Carrying amount
Carrying amount 1.1.2015 65,539 98,561 14,239 41,678 220,016
Carrying amount 31.12.2015 79,885 132,381 17,991 46,372 276,630
Carrying amount 31.12.2016 96,942 154,195 20,154 42,269 313,559

Note: Rounding differences may occur through the use of automated calculations.

EUR 10,481 thousand of the carrying amount reported for land and buildings, including land

owned by third parties, is attributable to land (land value) (previous year: EUR 10,468 thousand).

EUR 33,194 thousand of the carrying amount reported for prepayments and assets under construc-

tion (previous year: EUR 37,676 thousand) is attributable to assets under construction.



128 Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

In the financial year 2016 EUR 365 thousand (previous year: EUR O thousand) of borrowing costs
were capitalised as part of the production costs of qualified assets.

The depreciation, amortisation and impairments are recognised in the consolidated income
statement under the item “Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of tangible and intangible
assets”. Write-ups in value are included in the consolidated income statement in the item “Other
operating income”.

In the 2016 financial year impairments totalling EUR 350 thousand (previous year: EUR 16 thou-
sand) for tangible assets were necessary. Thereof an impairment amounting to EUR 339 thousand
relates primarily to technical equipment, plant and machinery in the Sempermed segment. In the
financial year 2015 there were impairments on technical equipment, plant and machinery in the
amount of EUR 16 thousand. This was due to changes in the possible use of plant and machinery in
the Semperflex segment.

In 2016 impairment losses were reversed in the amount of EUR 4 thousand (previous year:
EUR 5 thousand) because the reasons for the impairments were no longer present.

As of 31 December 2016 tangible assets with a carrying amount of EUR 98 thousand (previous
year: EUR 192 thousand) are pledged as collateral for liabilities to banks and liabilities from finance
leases.

As of 31 December 2016 the group has contractual obligations to acquire tangible assets total-
ling EUR 53,214 thousand (previous year: EUR 30,835 thousand). The increase compared to the
previous year is due to the investment projects to expand production capacity.

In addition to operating leases, the Semperit Group also makes use of finance leases. Finance
lease agreements have been concluded in Semperit for various production machinery and vehicles.
The agreements are generally structured so that ownership of the asset transfers to the group at the
end of the agreement term. The leased assets serve as security for the leasing obligations. The assets
associated with these agreements are depreciated over the asset’s expected useful life and not over
the shorter term of the leasing agreement. The agreements typically do not contain an option to
extend the lease or a specially agreed purchase option.

The tangible assets include the following assets from finance lease agreements:

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Acquisition  Accumulated Carrying Acquisition  Accumulated Carrying

in EUR thousand costs  depreciation amount costs  depreciation amount
Other equipment, office furniture and

equipment 382 283 98 486 294 192

In addition, the Semperit Group rents a number of storage and office facilities based on operating
leases. Most of these leasing relationships have a remaining term of less than 5 years. The agree-
ments are normally designed so that an extension is possible. An option to purchase the assets at
market prices is also included in several individual agreements.



Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

Moreover, when needed, leasing agreements are concluded for company cars, IT equipment as

well as machines and office equipment. As at the reporting date, the remaining term of these agree-

ments is generally less than 5 years. Individual agreements include an option to extend the term

and/or a purchase option at market prices at the end of the agreement term.

As at the balance sheet date, the future minimum leasing payments from non-terminable tenan-

cies, operating and other leases total as follows:

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Within the following year 2,928 2,287
Within the following 2 to 5 years 6,046 5,194
More than 5 years 376 1,150

The cost of rent and leases from operating lease agreements came to a total of EUR 5,139 thou-

sand in the financial year 2016 (previous year: EUR 4,443 thousand).

6.3. Inventories

The balance sheet item “inventories” comprises the following:

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Raw materials and supplies 36,378 36,020
Work in progress 18,699 18,422
Finished goods and merchandise 82,524 80,736
Prepayments 303 185
Services not yet billable 200 348
138,105 135,711
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Inventories
thereof at acquisition / production costs 124,468 120,283
thereof at their net realisable value 13,636 15,428
138,105 135,711

The allowances for inventories recognised as an
under review (previous year: EUR 3,556 thousand).

expense totalled EUR 5,875 thousand in the year
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6.4. Trade receivables
Trade receivables are assigned to the category loans and receivables and are therefore recognised at
amortised cost. Impairments to trade receivables are indirectly recognised in allowance accounts.

Trade receivables comprise the following:

31.12.2016 31.12.2015
in EUR thousand Gross  Allowances Net Gross  Allowances Net
Receivables not yet due 87,900 -187 87,713 100,244 -545 99,699
Up to 1 month overdue 19,225 -123 19,102 17,818 -108 17,710
1 to 3 months overdue 7,822 -291 7,531 4,715 -62 4,653
3 to 6 months overdue 3,212 -90 3,122 2,538 -317 2,221
6 to 12 months overdue 3,129 -1,764 1,365 795 -273 522
More than 12 months overdue 954 -944 11 1,582 -868 714

122,243 -3,399 118,844 127,691 -2,172 125,519

Trade receivables which are already due, but have not been subject to valuation adjustments, total
EUR 27,123 thousand as of 31 December 2016 (previous year: EUR 21,290 thousand).

The typically stipulated terms of payment range between 14 and 90 days. In addition to receiva-
bles which are classified as non-performing due to an individual assessment of the respective cus-
tomers, and have been written down to the likely recoverable amount, valuation adjustments are also
carried out in part on overdue receivables based on country-specific empirical values. Experience-
based allowances also apply to receivables not covered by credit insurance at all or with regard to the
retained portion of credit-insured receivables that the entity has to pay.

The overdue receivables are largely covered by credit insurance. With regard to Semperit's portfo-
lio of overdue trade receivables, there is no indication that the debtors will not be able to fulfil their
contractual payment obligations.

The receivables not covered by credit insurance exist primarily at subsidiaries in India, USA, Po-
land and China. With respect to non-insured receivables and the retained portion of insured receiva-
bles, there is no significant concentration of credit risk due to the company’s diversified customer
base.
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Impairments on trade receivables are usually recognised indirectly in allowance accounts. Allow-
ances changed as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
As at 1.1. 2,172 3,573
Release —464 -1,991
Currency translation difference 62 88
Written down due to irrecoverability -515 -147
Additions 2,144 649
As at 31.12. 3,399 2,172

The allowances as of the end of the financial year include specific valuation allowances for receiv-
ables based on an individual assessment of the respective customers. These specific allowances total
EUR 2,272 thousand (previous year: EUR 897 thousand). They are primarily allocated on the basis of
insolvency proceedings over the assets of the affected customers. The remaining carrying amounts
after deduction of the allowances are the amounts likely to be recoverable in the insolvency proceed-
ings. The other allowances were made on a portfolio basis.

6.5. Other financial assets
The carrying amounts of the other financial assets break down as follows:
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Thereof Thereof Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 non-current current  31.12.2015  non-current current
Securities available-for-sale
Shares in funds, shares, other securities 6,498 6,498 0 6,490 6,490 0

6,498 6,498 0 6,490 6,490 0
Financial assets recognised at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivatives 4,811 4,802 9 4,469 4,462 8
Loans and receivables recognised
at amortised cost
Loans to associated companies 563 563 0 563 563 0
Other loans 13 5 8 11 5
Receivables to employees 1,740 427 1,313 922 922
Accruals and deferrals 2,517 0 2,517 0 0
Other financial assets 4,727 875 3,852 2,201 852 1,349
9,559 1,870 7,689 3,697 1,421 2,276
20,868 13,170 7,698 14,656 12,372 2,284

The funds comprise 97,500 units (previous years: 97,500 units) in PIA Toprent, a bond fund suita-
ble for funding pension provisions. The fund invests primarily in fixed-income and floating-rate Euro-
zone government bonds.

The carrying amount of the available-for-sale financial assets amounts to EUR 6,498 thousand
(previous year: EUR 6,490 thousand) corresponds to the fair value.
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The loan to associated companies, amounting to EUR 563 thousand (previous year: EUR 563
thousand), bears a standard market rate of interest of 1,12% as of 31 December 2016 (previous year:
1.17%) and is attributable to Synergy Health Allershausen GmbH, Allershausen, Germany, which is
included in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the equity method.

No allowances were necessary for the loans and receivables recognised at amortised cost.

The part of the item “Other financial assets” shown as current includes interest free employer
loans for management amounting to EUR 654 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thousand).

6.6. Other assets

Thereof Thereof Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 non-current current 31.12.2015 non-current current
Accrued expenses 8,758 3,051 5,707 9,382 4,799 4,583
Prepayments 712 0 712 716 0 716
Tax receivables 7,544 337 7,208 11,236 0 11,236
Other non-financial receivables 1,510 1,017 494 611 476 135

18,525 4,404 14,121 21,945 5,275 16,670

The main item contained in non-current accrued expenses is an advance payment for a volume in-
centive under a strategic customer agreement.

6.7. Cash and cash equivalents

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Cash on hand 45 44
Cash deposits in banks 190,163 126,387

190,208 126,430

The term to maturity of all short-term deposits at the time of the investment was less than three
months. The cash and cash equivalents correspond to the liquid funds in the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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6.8. Deferred taxes
Tax deferments recognised in the balance sheet after temporary differences comprise the following:

31.12.2016
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31.12.2015

Deferred tax Deferred tax

Deferred tax Deferred tax

in EUR thousand assets liabilities assets liabilities
Intangible assets 1,154 2,227 844 2,019
Tangible assets 1,406 9,175 658 7,806
Financial assets 270 0 0 74
Inventories 2,622 0 2,288 102
Receivables 428 3,809 696 2,675
Other assets 177 1,062 57 49
Provisions for personnel 6,694 0 6,935 0
Other provisions 1,273 13 2,989 136
Trade payables 48 3 372 140
Other liabilities 1,131 487 1,217 539
Temporary differences in connection with shares in

subsidiaries and joint ventures / non-current assets held for sale (outside-basis-

differences) 0 15,604 0 7,375
Tax loss carryforwards and as yet unused tax credits 28,047 0 18,932 0
Total deferred tax assets and liabilities 43,250 32,380 34,989 20,914
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets -9,860 0 -9,280 0
Offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities -14,544 -14,544 -8,991 -8,991
Net deferred tax assets 18,846 16,717

Net deferred tax liabilities 17,836 11,924

The allowance for deferred tax assets of EUR 9,860 thousand (previous year: EUR 9,280 thousand)
includes an allowance for deferred tax assets on temporary differences in the amount of EUR 3,730
thousand (previous year: EUR 4,468 thousand) and an allowance for deferred tax assets on loss carry
forwards in the amount of EUR 6,130 thousand (previous year: EUR 4,812 thousand).
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Deferred tax, after taking into account allowances for deferred tax assets and before netting off,

relates to the following differences between the financial statements for tax purposes and IFRS:

31.12.2016

31.12.2015

Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax

in EUR thousand assets liabilities assets liabilities

Different acquisition and production costs of intangible and tangible assets,

elimination of intercompany profits 357 7,694 1,285 6,513

Different useful lives of intangible and tangible assets 2,198 2,407 168 1,453

Valuation of assets acquired in business combinations 0 1,294 0 1,731

Tax valuation differences in valuation adjustments of receivables 672 1,482 417 1,370

Tax valuation differences of inventories, elimination of intercompany profits 2,362 0 1,989 102

Differing tax recognition of personnel provisions 3,311 0 3,196 0

Differing tax recognition of other provisions 1,132 13 2,704 136

Differences in foreign currency valuation of assets and liabilities at the balance

sheet date 692 2,603 638 468

Deferred tax assets on loss carryforwards 13,828 0 9,797 0

Deferred tax assets on tax assets and tax concessions usable in future periods 6,385 0 3,197

Impairments of investments not yet taxed 1,703 0 1,126

Temporary differences in connection with shares in subsidiaries and joint

ventures / non-current assets held for sale (outside-basis-differences) 0 15,604 0 7,375

Other differences 749 1,285 1,191 1,767

Total 33,390 32,380 25,709 20,915

The change in the deferred taxes recognised in the balance sheet is as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Net deferred taxes as at 1.1. 4,794 8,429
Deferred taxes in profit or loss for the financial year -3,531 4
Deferred taxes in other comprehensive income for the financial year -253 -2,070
Changes in the scope of consolidation 0 -1,569
Net deferred taxes as at 31.12. 1,010 4,794
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The change in the deferred taxes recognised in other comprehensive income for the period is as

follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Amounts that will not be recognised through profit and loss in future

periods

Deferred taxes related to remeasurements of defined benefit plans (IAS 19) 326 -2,189

Amounts that will potentially be recognised through profit and loss in future

periods

Deferred taxes related to available-for-sale financial assets -3 28

Deferred taxes related to cash flow hedges -4 -327

Currency translation differences related to deferred taxes -573 418
-579 119
-253 -2,070

Deferred taxes attributable to the remeasurement of defined benefit plans (IAS 19), which are in-
cluded in other comprehensive income for the financial year, were influenced by allowances.

The currency translation differences of EUR -573 thousand (previous year: EUR 418 thousand) are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income under the heading “Currency
translation differences for the period”.

Deferred tax liabilities amounting to EUR 15,604 thousand (previous year: EUR 7,375 thousand)
were recognised for temporary differences in connection with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures (or non-current assets held for sale). The increase of this position relates primarily to the
adopted assessment of the applicable tax rates (up to now based on dividend payment with with-
holding tax, from now on based on dividend payment with withholding tax combined with pending
taxes in the case of a disposal of the investment) in connection with the investment in SSC.

In addition, there are taxable temporary differences in the amount of EUR 195,281 thousand (pre-
vious year: EUR 180,887 thousand) and deductible temporary differences of EUR 170,414 thousand
(previous year: EUR 12,373 thousand) in connection with investments in subsidiaries, for which de-
ferred tax liabilities of EUR 48,020 thousand (previous year: EUR 41,926 thousand) and deferred tax
assets of EUR 33,971 thousand (previous year: EUR 3,644 thousand) were not recognised. This is
because the parent is able to manage the timing of the offset of the temporary difference, and it is
probable at the balance sheet date that the temporary differences will not be offset in the foreseea-
ble future.

The temporary differences in connection with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (or
non-current assets held for sale) can arise either from the withholding tax on the distribution of divi-
dends or from the tax obligation of the holding. Depending on the specifics of the transaction lead-
ing to the reversal of the differences, there may be tax consequences of various types at the different
participation levels in the group. The computation of temporary differences in connection with in-
vestments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (or non-current assets held for sale) was made taking into
account tax effects outside the respective group level.

As of the reporting date there are further deductible temporary differences of EUR 13,714 thousand
(previous year: EUR 16,546 thousand) and unused tax losses of EUR 26,202 thousand (previous year:
EUR 17,913 thousand), for which no deferred tax assets were recognised.
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Of these unused tax losses, EUR 15,136 thousand (previous year: EUR 15,534 thousand) expire within
five years. Otherwise these losses and deductible temporary differences can be carried forward
without limit.

Recognised deferred tax assets include deferred tax assets for tax jurisdictions, in which during
the reporting period or in the previous period tax losses were incurred, which exceed the deferred
tax liabilities of the relevant companies by EUR 14,260 thousand (previous year: EUR 11,883 thou-
sand). Deferred tax assets are recognised based on the assumption that there will be sufficient taxa-
ble profit in the coming years, that the incurred tax losses were attributable to extraordinary effects in
connection with the expense of litigation, and that concrete organisational measures have been
undertaken which indicate that the planned improvement in pre-tax profit can be expected. Moreo-
ver expence reduction concerning joint venture transaction costs is expected.

6.9. Equity
Changes in shareholders’ equity are presented in detail in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

As at 31 December 2016, Semperit AG Holding's share capital was unchanged at EUR 21,358,997. It
is divided into 20,573,434 fully paid in no-par-value ordinary shares. Each share represents an equal
interest in the share capital. It entitles the holder to one vote and dividends.

Capital reserves are primarily formed by issuing shares above and beyond the proportional amount
of share capital (premium). As in the previous year, a total of EUR 21,503 thousand of the capital re-
serves are appropriated reserves. These may be released only to compensate for a net loss for the year
as reported in the annual financial statements of the parent company Semperit AG Holding if no free
reserves are available to cover the loss.

The revaluation reserve accrues gains and losses from fluctuations in the fair value measurement of
available-for-sale financial assets until the respective assets are disposed of or until an impairment of the
respective assets has been determined.

The other revenue reserves encompass the statutory reserves of Semperit AG Holding totalling
EUR 999 thousand (previous year: EUR 999 thousand), the free reserves of Semperit AG Holding
amounting to EUR 32,500 thousand (previous year: EUR 47,500 thousand), Semperit AG Holding's net
profit for the period under the Austrian Company Code (UGB) in the amount of EUR 14,548 thousand
(previous year: EUR 24,798 thousand), the untaxed reserves less the deduction of deferred taxes of the
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements, the retained earnings of subsidiaries since
the date of acquisition and the effects of the first-time adjustment of the annual accounts of the consol-
idated companies (recognised and measured according to the accounting policies of the group). In
addition, the item includes remeasurements from defined benefit plans (IAS 19) and the cash flow
hedge reserve (IAS 39).

The currency translation reserve is the result of currency translation differences involved in the con-
version of the annual financial statements of group subsidiaries from the functional currency to euros
until the disposal or other derecognition reasons of the respective subsidiary.

The other comprehensive income from joint ventures / non-current assets held for sale is shown
in other revenue reserves and currency translation reserves. In the financial years 2016 and 2015, the
position “other comprehensive income / non-current assets held for sale” solely includes the result
of SSC.
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The non-controlling interests as well as their corresponding portion of earnings after tax and com-
prehensive income relate exclusively to Latexx Partners Berhad, the company acquired in 2012, and its
subsidiaries.

The management board was enabled by the shareholders” meeting per 26 April 2016 — under
simultaneous repeal of the shareholders” meeting decision of 23 April 2012 — under approval of the
board of directors, to raise the registered capital in the following five years from the date of the entry
in the company register on — against Cash and/or contributions in kind by 50% or up to 10,286,717
share units — at most in serveral instalments. Furthermore the management board was enabled, upon
approval by the board of directors, to issue convertible bonds. Linked to this is the possibility to raise
the registered capital through conversion or subscription rights respective conversion or subscription
obligations up to 10,286,717 share units (50 % of the existing share units).

The management board was enabled by the shareholders” meeting per 26 April 2016 — under
simultaneous revocation of the existing authorisation of 29 April 2014 to repurchase treasury shares
according to § 65 Abs. 1Z 8 AktG - to repurchase and, if appropriate, to collect own shares up to the
legal limit of 10% of the registered capital, for the duration of 30 month from the date of the corre-
sponding resolution in the shareholders” meeting on in accordance with $ 65 Abs. 1 Z 8 AktG under
approval of the board of directors. In the same shareholders” meeting the management board was
enabled, according to § 65 Abs. 1b AktG, and under approval of the board of directors, to resolve
another way of disposal than the stock exchange or a public offer or through an exclusion of the right
to resale (subscription rights) for the shareholders. At the moment there ist no share buyback pro-
gram, the company does not hold any treasury shares.

Dividend and treasury shares
The shareholders are entitled to a distribution of Semperit AG Holding's net profit for the year. The
statutory reserves of Semperit AG Holding may be released only to compensate for a net loss for the
year as reported in its annual financial statements if no free reserves are available to cover the loss.
The Management Board will propose to distribute a total dividend of EUR 14,401 thousand (pre-
vious year: EUR 24,688 thousand), or EUR 0.70 per share (previous year: EUR 1.20 per share), for the
financial year 2016. This dividend proposal is based on the assumption that the joint venture transac-
tion will be closed and must still be voted on at the Annual General Meeting and is accordingly not
yet recognised as a liability in the present financial statements. The payment of the dividend has no
tax consequences for the Semperit Group.
Semperit AG Holding has no treasury stock as at 31 December 2016.

6.10. Liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests

Shares of subsidiaries’ net assets held by non-controlling shareholders are recognised as liabilities
from redeemable non-controlling interests provided the respective shareholder has an unconditional
termination right or a termination right linked to conditions, the fulfilment or non-fulfilment of which
lies outside the control of the Semperit Group, or if the company in which the non-controlling share-
holder owns an interest has a limited life span.
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Liabilities from redeemable interests of non-controlling shareholders changed as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
As at 1.1. 44,192 37,303
Dividends 0 -1,003
Share of annual income after tax 6,591 5,395
Currency translation differences 950 2,405
Other changes 92 92
As at 31.12. 51,825 44,192

EUR 37,506 thousand of the liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests as of 31 Decem-
ber 2016 are current. The short term part is related to entities, for which can be assumed that in
course of the joint venture transaction the Semperit Group will take over their shares in the first
quarter 2017, as well as on the planned dividend of SAC. The profit / loss attributable to the redeem-
able, non-controlling shares is reported separately in the financial result in the consolidated income
statement.

6.11. Provisions for pension and severance payments

Pension plans - defined benefit plans
Pension commitments
In accordance with the Austrian Corporate Pension Statute of 1997, employees who joined their
companies prior to 1 January 1991 are granted occupational pensions that take the form of a fixed
amount that depends on an employee’s length of service. The statute stipulates that only retired
former employees or their surviving dependants are entitled to these pensions. In accordance with
this statute, these obligations are not funded by plan assets.

A number of former members of the Management Board were granted pensions under individual
pension agreements. These liabilities are also not covered by pension plan assets.

Severance payment commitments

Depending on their length of service, most employees in Austria, France, ltaly and Thailand are
legally entitled to a one-off payment on retirement. One Management Board member is contractually
entitled to a severance payment in accordance with the Austrian Employee Act on termination of his
service on the Management Board. The benefits due on retirement are considered to be payments
due following termination of the employment relationship in accordance with IAS 19. These obliga-
tions are not funded by plan assets.

Actuarial assumptions
The most important actuarial parameters for the defined benefit pension and severance plans are as
follows:
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Discount rate p.a. in %
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31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Austria — pensions

1.10%/1.40% 1.60%/2.10%

Austria — severance payments

1.50% / 1.60% 2.20%

Germany - pensions

1.40% / 1.60% 2.10% / 2.20%

Other countries — severance payments

France 1.60% -1.80%  2.30% -2.50%
Italy 1.70% 2.30%
Poland 3.50% 3.00%
India 6.70% 7.70%
Thailand 3.00% 2.90%

Interest rates were determined separately in the individual countries depending on the pension

plan.

Salary increases p.a. in %

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Austria — pensions

0.00% 0.00%

Austria — severance payments

3.50% / 4.00% 4.50%

Germany - pensions

1.80% /3.40% 1.80% /3.40%

Other countries — severance payments

France 2.30% 2.30%
Italy 1.50% 1.50%
Poland 2.00% 2.00%
India 5.00% / 12.00% 5.00% / 12.00%
Thailand 3.00% /5.00% 3.00% / 5.00%

Salary increases were determined in the individual countries by the relevant benefit plan and, if

relevant, separately for wage-earning and salaried employees.

Fluctuation deductions p.a. in %

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Austria — pensions 0.00% 0.00%
Austria — severance payments 0.00% —6.90% 0.00% —10.00%
0.00% 0.00%

Germany — pensions

Other countries — severance payments

France 0.00% -7.00%  0.00% -7.00%
Italy 5.00% 5.00%
Poland 5.00% 5.00%
India 2.00% 2.00%
Thailand 0.00% -30.00% 0.00% —30.00%

Fluctuation deductions were taken into account depending on the length of service of the em-

ployees.

The retirement age was set either in accordance with the individual regulations of the specific plan
or, in the absence of such, at the earliest possible statutory retirement age of the country concerned.
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The following biometric parameters and assumptions were used:
* Austria: AVO 2008-P ANG
* Germany: Heubeck 2005G
e France: TH 00-02 / TF 00-02
* |taly: RG48 (Ragioneria Generale dello Stato)
* Poland: Polish Life Length Table 2013
* India: Indian Assured Live Mortality (2006 - 08)
® Thailand: Thailand TM008

Balance sheet figures
The provisions for pensions and severance payments comprise the following:

Total Thereof Thereof Total Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016  non-current current 31.12.2015 non-current current
Provisions for pensions 19,623 17,886 1,737 19,483 17,698 1,784
Provisions for severance payments 23,055 22,180 875 24,159 23,077 1,082

42,678 40,066 2,612 43,642 40,775 2,866

Provisions for pensions
The provisions for the group's obligations arising from defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016  31.12.2015
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 3,795 3,685
Fair value of the plan assets -691 -886
Deficit 3,104 2,799
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations 16,519 16,684
Plan deficit = provision 19,623 19,483

The present value of the obligations arising from defined benefit pension plans changed as fol-

lows:
in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Present value of the obligations (DBO) as at 1.1. 20,368 22,211
Current service costs 19 20
Interest expense 409 387
Total expenses for pensions 428 407
Remeasurements 1,288 -445
Payments / Transfers -1,770 -1,804
Present value of the obligations (DBO) as at 31.12. 20,314 20,368

The expenses shown in the table are recognised as “Pension expenses” under personnel expens-
es in the consolidated income statement (see note 5.4.).
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Plan assets measured at fair value consist of the following:
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in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Cash funds 180 116
Other receivables 511 769
Fair value of the plan assets as at 31.12. 691 886

There are no prices quoted on an active market for the components of the plan assets.
Plan assets changed as follows:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Fair value of the plan assets as at 1.1. 886 1,070
Remeasurements of plan assets 44 39
Payments / Transfers -239 -224
Fair value of the plan assets as at 31.12. 691 886

Interest income from plan assets is recognised as “Pension expenses” under personnel expenses
in the consolidated income statement. The remeasurements of plan assets are recognised in accord-
ance with IAS 19 (2011) directly in equity under other comprehensive income.

Provisions for severance payments

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Present value of the obligations (DBO) as at 1.1. 24,159 25,475

Current service costs 611 682

Interest expense 550 460
Total expenses for severance payments 1,161 1,142
Remeasurements -730 -1,576
Payments -1,544 -203
Currency translation differences 9 21
Present value of the obligations (DBO) as at 31.12. 23,055 24,159

The expenses shown in the table are recognised as “Severance expenses” under personnel ex-
penses in the consolidated income statement (see note 5.4).
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Remeasurements
The remeasurements recognised under other comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 19
(2011) comprise the following:

in EUR thousand 2016 2015

Pensions

Remeasurements of the obligation

from changes to financial assumptions -1,053 592
Experience adjustments -236 -147
-1,288 445
Remeasurements of plan assets 44 39
-1,244 484

Severance payments

Remeasurements of the obligation

from changes to demographic assumptions 0 -2

from changes to financial assumptions 458 1,337
Experience adjustments 272 241

730 1,576

Total remeasurements -515 2,060

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analyses were performed for pension and severance plans regarding the effect of signifi-
cant actuarial assumptions. The determination of sensitivities was carried out based on the same
actuarial assumptions used to value the provisions for pensions and severance payments. The remain-
ing parameters remained unchanged.
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A change of one percentage point in each of these parameters has the following impact on the
present value of pension obligations totalling EUR 20,314 thousand (previous year: EUR 20,368
thousand) and on the present value of severance payment liabilities amounting to EUR 23,055 thou-
sand (previous year: EUR 24,159 thousand):
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Present value of obligation
(DBO) 31.12.2016

Present value of obligation
(DBO) 31.12.2015

Change in increase in decrease in increase in  decrease in
in EUR thousand parameter parameter parameter parameter parameter
Pensions

+/-1 percentage
Interest rate point 18,501 22,486 18,589 22,491
+/-1 percentage
Increases in salaries point 21,501 19,322 21,522 19,404
Life expectancy +/-1 year 21,228 19,414 21,181 19,597
Severance
payments
+/-1 percentage
Interest rate point 20,691 25,852 21,670 27,104
+/-1 percentage
Increases in salaries point 25,617 21,834 26,849 21,826

Average duration

The average weighted duration of defined benefit pension and severance liabilities, presented in

years, is as follows:

Weighted average duration 31.12.2016  31.12.2015
Austria — pensions 7.8 9.6
Austria — severance payments 11.5 11.7
Germany - pensions 10.9 10.4
Other countries — severance payments
France 14.9 14.8
Italy 14.6 15.2
Poland 9.0 10.5
India 7.6 7.5
Thailand 15.0 15.0
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Maturity analysis
The following table shows the maturities of the expected benefit payments:
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016  31.12.2015

Severance payments

under 1 year 875 1,082
1to 5 years 6,200 5,416
6 to 10 years 7,279 7,188
over 10 years 21,405 27,081
Pensions

under 1 year 1,737 1,785
1to 5 years 6,622 6,012
6 to 10 years 4,843 5,778
over 10 years 8,936 11,744

Pension plans - defined contribution plans

Semperit AG Holding is required to contribute to a pension fund for all members of the Management
Board with one exception. Annually, 1/14 of the respective fixed remuneration is paid into a pension
fund (APK Pensionskasse AG). In 2016 the expense for these contributions amounted to EUR 107
thousand (previous year: EUR 89 thousand).

One member of the Management Board and selected executives were granted pensions, which
are covered by reinsurance policies with Generali Versicherung AG, whereupon the pension entitle-
ment matches the amount covered by the reinsurance. Based on an updated analysis of these com-
mitments this plan is since 2015 treated as a defined contribution plan. In 2016 the expense for these
contributions amounted to EUR 271 thousand (previous year: EUR 262 thousand).

Employees whose employment is subject to Austrian law and who entered into this employment
relationship after 31 December 2002 are not entitled to severance payments from their employer. For
these employees and all members of the Management Board with one exception, contributions
amounting to 1.53% of their wages or salaries are paid into a staff pension fund. The expense for
Semperit's contributions in the financial year 2016 amounted to EUR 526 thousand (previous year:
EUR 494 thousand). It is expected that a similar amount of contributions will be paid out in the follow-
ing year.

For employees in the USA, contributions amounting to a fixed percentage of the annual salary are
paid into a pension fund. The expense for these contributions in the financial year 2016 amounted to
EUR 145 thousand (previous year: EUR 151 thousand).

For employees in Singapore, contributions amounting to a fixed percentage of the annual salary
are paid into a pension fund. The expense for these contributions in the financial year 2016 amount-
ed to EUR 167 thousand (previous year: EUR 170 thousand).

Semperit Group employees are also entitled to country-specific state pension plans, which are
usually financed on a pay-as-you-go (unfunded) basis. The obligations of the group are limited to
paying contributions when they are due. There is no legal or de facto obligation with regard to future
benefits.
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6.12. Other provisions

The carrying amounts of the other provisions are as follows:
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Thereof Thereof Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016  non-current current  31.12.2015  non-current current
Long-service bonuses 4,313 4,093 220 4,063 3,886 177
Guarantees 3,029 473 2,556 8,969 3,344 5,625
Bonuses and other personnel provisions 4,464 821 3,642 12,488 1,461 11,028
Other 12,255 10,998 1,257 4,933 2,730 2,203

24,060 16,384 7,676 30,453 11,421 19,033
The other provisions changed as follows:
Currency
in EUR thousand 1.1.2016  differences Release Use Additions Interest cost  31.12.2016
Long-service bonuses 4,063 0 0 -210 376 83 4,313
Guarantees 8,969 -136 -5,481 -1,486 1,164 0 3,029
Bonuses and other personnel
provisions 12,488 =37 -832 -11,544 4,388 0 4,464
Other 4,933 1,161 -1,191 -2,113 9,337 127 12,255
30,453 989 -7,504 -15,353 15,265 210 24,060
The timing of the expected payment streams from other provisions is as follows:
31.12.2016
More than
in EUR thousand Total Under 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
Long-service bonuses 10,531 225 1,620 8,687
Guarantees 3,029 2,556 473 0
Bonuses and other personnel provisions 4,464 3,642 535 286
Other 12,415 1,227 11,158 30
31.12.2015
More than
in EUR thousand Total Under 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
Long-service bonuses 11,003 177 1,085 9,741
Guarantees 8,969 5,747 3,222 0
Bonuses and other personnel provisions 12,488 11,053 960 476
Other 5,243 2,438 2,621 185
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Provisions for long-service bonuses are established for employees in Austria, Germany and in the
Czech Republic. Said employees are entitled to long-service bonuses based on collective bargaining
agreements. The valuation was carried out based primarily on the same actuarial assumptions used to
value the provisions for pensions and severance payments (see note 6.11.). Remeasurements (actuari-
al gains and losses) are recognised under personnel expenses. The average weighted duration of the
present value of the long-service bonus obligations is around 10 years (previous year: 10 years).
Sensitivity analyses regarding the effects of material actuarial assumptions were performed. These
resulted in the following effects on the present value of the provisions for long-service bonuses:

Present value of obligation  Present value of obligation

(DBO) 31.12.2016 (DBO) 31.12.2015

Change in increase in  decrease in increase in  decrease in

in EUR thousand parameter parameter parameter parameter parameter
+/-1 percentage

Interest rate point 3,920 4,779 3,695 4,414
+/-1 percentage

Increases in salaries point 4,676 3,998 4,498 3,764

The provisions for warranties are based largely on a case-by-case assessment of the risks. In addi-
tion, provisions are allocated on a portfolio basis and according to experience, based on the revenue
of the previous financial year. Claims against the group resulting from these risks are considered to be
likely, and the amount recognised corresponds to a best possible estimate of the value of the claims
that can be expected. Since these claims may involve long negotiations as well as legal disputes, it is
not possible to accurately predict when payments will actually have to be made.

The decrease of the bonuses and other personnel provisions in 2016 mainly results from missing
some of the earning targets in the Semperit group so there is no claim on the applicability of the
group bonus policy.

In the remaining other provisions the most significant item is a provision for transfer taxes in Brazil
with an amount of EUR 8,126 thousand (previous year: EUR O thousand). In comparison to 2015 this
issue leads to the increase in remaining other provisions. Furthermore EUR 1,238 thousand (previous
year: EUR 1,352 thousand) are recognized for lawsuits in conjunction with the transfer tax topic in
Brazil.
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6.13. Corporate Schuldschein loan

In July 2013 Semperit AG Holding issued a corporate Schuldschein loan totalling EUR 125 million
with partially fix and partially variable interest. In the second quarter of 2014 and in the first quarter
of 2015, additional corporate Schuldschein loans amounting to EUR 5 million with the same condi-
tions as the 10-year fixed-interest tranche of the original corporate Schuldschein loan were issued to
“Privatstiftung zur Férderung der Gesundheit von Beschaftigten der Semperit AG Holding” (in Eng-
lish: Private Foundation to Promote the Health of the Employees of Semperit AG Holding). This
means that the total notional volume amounted to EUR 130 million.

In 2015 Semperit AG Holding redeemed the variable five- and seven-year tranches (notional vol-
ume EUR 36,500 thousand and EUR 35,500 thousand) of the existing corporate Schuldschein loan. In
July 2015 these two variable tranches of the corporate Schuldschein loan from July 2013 were repaid.
At the same time in July 2015, Semperit AG Holding issued a new corporate Schuldschein loan for a
total amount of EUR 75,000 thousand in order to take advantage of the decline in financing costs.
This corporate Schuldschein loan consists of three fixed-interest tranches with durations of seven, ten
and fifteen years. The average interest rate of the issue is 2.16%. The loan was placed primarily in
Austria and Germany. The cash inflows were primarily used to repay the variable tranches of the
corporate Schuldschein loan from July 2013.

In November 2016 Semperit AG Holding issued additional corporate Schuldschein loans with a total
volume of EUR 139 million (SSD 2016), which are denominated in US Dollar (approx. 63%), in Polish
Zloty (approx. 23%) and in Czech Koruna (approx. 14%). By using these additional corporate
Schuldschein loans, Semperit Group further optimizes its financing structure as well as its foreign ex-
change exposure management. Primarily, the proceeds from the SSD 2016 transaction are intended to
be used to reduce Semperit’s current long-term borrowings provided by the revolving credit facility.
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Thereof Thereof Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 non-current current 31.12.2015 non-current current
Corporate Schuldschein loan 277,547 275,578 1,969 134,096 132,615 1,481
Liabilities to banks 143,236 136,421 6,814 168,458 162,898 5,560

420,782 411,999 8,783 302,554 295,513 7,041

The corporate Schuldschein loans 2016 are composed of various long-term tranches with fixed
and also variable interest rates with a maturity inbetween three and seven years. The average interest
rate of these Schuldschein offerings were 1.10% up to 3.22% depending on their underlying curren-
cies and durations. These corporate Schuldschein loans were primarily placed in Austria, in Germany,
in the Netherlands as well as in various countries in Asia.

As of 31 December 2016 accrued interest amounting to EUR 1,969 thousand is recognised with
the current liabilities section. The differences between the carrying amounts excluding interest (clean
prices) and the nominal amounts are the transaction cost of the Schuldschein offerings in July 2013
and July 2015. These differences are allocated over the terms of the corporate Schuldschein tranches
in accordance with the effective interest rate method.

In October 2013, Semperit entered into two interest rate swaps (hedged notional volume of
EUR 30,240 thousand) to hedge the variable-interest-rate tranches of the corporate Schuldschein
loan from 2013. As a result, a part of the variable-interest-rate tranche was converted into a fixed
one. Both interest rate swaps were accounted for as cash flow hedges in accordance with IAS 39.
When the variable tranches of the corporate Schuldschein loan were redeemed in July 2015, both
interest rate swaps were settled as well and the hedge accounting relationships were terminated.
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In order to hedge Semperit’s financing to a subsidiary company issued in Malaysian Ringgit, Sem-
perit AG Holding entered into a cross currency swap in April 2015. On the one hand, the cross cur-
rency swap causes the variable refinancing to be converted into fixed interest rates, on the other
hand, the exchange rate of the Euro and the Malaysian Ringgit was fixed. According to IAS 39 the
cross currency swap was classified as a cash flow hedge (regarding interest rate risk) and as a fair
value hedge (regarding the foreign exchange risk) too. In total, the derivative was accounted for at
fair value. As of 31 December 2015 the requirements for hedge accounting in accordance with IAS 39
were no longer met. Since then, all fair value changes are recognised completely through profit and
loss within the financial result section of the consolidated income statement. Considering also the
ongoing negative EURIBOR, an interest rate floor was added to the existing cross currency swap on
30 September 2016 with the intention to increase the effectiveness of these counter-balancing fair
value changes.

In order to hedge Semperit’s further financing to a subsidiary company issued in Malaysian Ring-
git, Semperit AG Holding entered into two additional cross currency swaps in March 2016 and in
August 2016. On the one hand, the cross currency swaps again caused the variable refinancing to be
converted into fixed interest rate, on the other hand, the exchange rates of the Euro and the Malaysi-
an Ringgit were fixed. According to IAS 39 these cross currency swaps are also classified as cash flow
hedges (regarding interest rate risk) and as fair value hedges (regarding the foreign exchange risk). In
total, these derivatives are also accounted for at fair value. For 2016 the effective portion of this cash
flow hedge of EUR 289 thousand was recognised in other comprehensive income and EUR -274
thousand were reclassified in the consolidated income statement. As of 31 December 2016 the cash
flow hedge reserve from both cross currency swaps amount to EUR 15 thousand (31 December 2015:
EUR 0 thousand).

6.14. Liabilities to banks

The liabilities to banks are recognised at amortised cost and consist of the following:

31.12.2016

Carrying

Nominal amount in
Effective value in local EUR Thereof Thereof
interest rate Currency currency thousand  non-current current

EUR
0.9-1.6% thousand 136,541 136,541 136,421 120

MYR
3.0-5.0% thousand 26,271 5,556 0 5,556

usbD

Variable-interest liabilities to banks 5.7% thousand 1,200 1,139 0 1,139

143,236 136,421 6,814
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31.12.2015
Carrying
Nominal amount in
Effective value in local EUR Thereof Thereof
interest rate Currency currency thousand  non-current current
EUR
0.8-1.1% thousand 144,630 144,648 144,527 121
MYR
3.0-5.0% thousand 25,484 5,427 0 5,427
usD
Variable-interest liabilities to banks 1.47% thousand 20,000 18,383 18,371 12
168,458 162,898 5,560
In December 2014 a framework loan agreement for EUR 250,000 thousand was concluded with a
consortium of six banks. This agreement comprises two tranches, one for EUR 100,000 thousand with
a five-year term, and another in the amount of EUR 150,000 thousand with a seven-year term (original
term of five years with two renewal options, each for one year, of which both options have already
been exercised). As of the balance sheet date EUR 135,014 thousand of the framework loan agree-
ment was utilised.
6.15. Other financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of the other financial liabilities break down as follows:

Thereof Thereof Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 non-current current  31.12.2015 non-current current
Liabilities from finance leases 30 0 30 91 31 59
Derivatives 171 0 171 240 240
Personnel liabilities 5,853 86 5,767 4,266 0 4,266
Accruals and deferrals 5,597 0 5,597 5,431 5,431
Remaining other financial
liabilities 4,722 710 4,012 4,597 831 3,766

16,372 796 15,576 14,624 862 13,762

The liabilities from finance leases as at 31 December 2016 break down as follows:
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Term to Term to Term to Term to Term to Term to
maturity of  maturity of  maturity of  maturity of = maturity of  maturity of
in EUR thousand under 1 year 1toS5years over5years under1year 1to5years overb5 years
Total future minimum leasing payments 31 0 0 62 32 0
Interest portion -1 0 0 -3 -1 0

Present value of the minimum leasing

payments 30 0 0 59 31 0
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6.16. Other liabilities

The carrying amounts of the other liabilities break down as follows:

Thereof Thereof Thereof Thereof
in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 non-current current 31.12.2015 non-current current
Liabilities from taxes and social security
contributions 5,238 0 5,238 8,937 0 8,937
Prepayments received 2,017 0 2,017 2,314 0 2,314
Accrued income 417 161 256 496 153 343
Unused holidays and overtime balances 5,699 328 5,371 5,270 232 5,039
All other liabilities 809 343 466 2,765 362 2,403

14,181 832 13,349 19,783 746 19,037

6.17. Disclosures on financial instruments
The following tables show the carrying amounts of the individual financial assets and liabilities classi-
fied in accordance with the valuation categories stipulated in IAS 39.9.

Assets
Carrying amount  Carrying amount
in EUR thousand Valuation category IAS 39 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Trade receivables Loans and receivables 118,844 125,519
Other financial assets
Securities Available-for-sale 6,498 6,490
Loans to associated companies Loans and receivables 563 563
Other loans Loans and receivables 13 11
Derivative financial instruments Held for trading 4,396 4,469
Designated as a hedging
Derivative financial instruments instrument 415 0
Other financial assets Loans and receivables 8,984 3,123

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand, cheques and cash deposits in banks - 190,208 126,430
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Liabilities

Carrying amount
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Carrying amount

in EUR thousand Valuation category IAS 39 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Corporate Schuldschein loan Liabilities at amortised cost 277,547 134,096
Liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests Liabilities at amortised cost 51,825 44,192
Trade payables Liabilities at amortised cost 111,569 100,660
Liabilities to banks Liabilities at amortised cost 143,236 168,458
Other financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities Held for trading 171 240
Liabilities from finance leases Liabilities at amortised cost 30 91
Remaining other financial
liabilities Liabilities at amortised cost 16,172 14,293
Fair value
The three levels in the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:
Level 1: measurement based on quoted prices on an active market for a specific financial in-
strument
Level 2: measurement based on quoted market prices for similar instruments or on the basis
of valuation models based exclusively on input factors that are observable on the
market
Level 3: measurement based on models with significant input factors that are not observable
on the market
In 2016 there were no reclassifications of financial instruments between the above mentioned levels.
Assets and liabilities at fair value
Financial instruments at fair value include securities and derivative financial instruments.
Fair Value Fair Value
in EUR thousand Valuation category IAS 39 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 Level
Assets
Securities Available-for-sale 6,498 6,490
Derivative financial instruments Held for trading 4,396 4,469
Derivative financial instruments Designated as a hedging instrument 415 0
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities Held for trading 171 240 2

The fair values of available-for-sale securities are determined using publicly available prices.

The derivative financial instruments held for trading purposes are foreign exchange forward con-
tracts and one cross currency swap. Their fair values are determined using generally accepted finan-
cial valuation models (e.g. determination of the present value of expected future cash flows based on
current foreign exchange rates and yield curves).
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Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
The fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities, except for the following items and liabilities
from redeemable non-controlling interests, corresponds to their carrying amount.

Fair Value Fair Value
in EUR thousand Valuation category IAS 39  31.12.2016 31.12.2015 Level
Liabilities
Corporate Schuldschein loan Liabilities at amortised cost 291,537 144,794
Liabilities from finance leases Liabilities at amortised cost 44 92

The fair value of the corporate Schuldschein loan was determined by discounting the contractual
payment streams with current interest rates. The comparable interest rates as at the reporting date
were derived from capital market yields with matching maturities and then adjusted for current risk
and liquidity costs that are observable on the market. These comparable interest rates were derived
based on management’s current assessment of the rating of the Semperit Group. The difference
between carrying value and fair value is, on the one hand, the result of a very significant decrease
since the issue of the corporate Schuldschein loan in the banks’ refinancing costs (as part of the cost
of corporate financing through banks) due to the measures taken by the ECB, such as medium-term
refinancing tenders for banks at a current interest rate of 0.05% p.a. and the ECB's quantitative
easing measures, which led to a significant decrease in risk premiums. On the other hand, the positive
wording of several clauses in the corporate Schuldschein loan contract, which deviate from a standard
loan, is in Semperit’s favour.

For existing fixed-interest finance lease liabilities, current third-party interest rates were queried
and then compared with the contractually agreed interest rates. As a result, the difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value shows the margin between the contractually agreed historical
return and the return currently available on the market. The finance lease liabilities are shown under
the item “Other financial liabilities.”

For the valuation of redeemable non-controlling interests, which are planned to be transferred in
conjunction with the joint venture transaction, the agreed valuation range is about 15% above the
book value amounting to EUR 22,593 thousand per 31 December 2016. The calculation of the fair
value for the remaining redeemable non-controlling interests would require a disproportionally high
effort and is thus not disclosed in this report.
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7. Consolidated cash flow statement

The consolidated cash flow statement is created using the indirect method and shows how the cash
and cash equivalents of the Semperit Group changed in the course of the financial year. Cash and
cash equivalents correspond to those recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (see note 6.7.).

Investments in tangible and intangible assets recognised in the consolidated cash flow statement
are cash-effective investments in the 2016 financial year. These include investments from the previous
year amounting to EUR 7,194 thousand (previous year: 6,480 thousand) which became cash-effective
in the 2016 financial year.

The additions in the statement of changes in tangible and intangible assets (see notes 6.1. and
6.2.) amounting to EUR 74,969 thousand (previous year: EUR 75,964 thousand) include investments
totalling EUR 17,091 thousand (previous year: EUR 10,325 thousand) that did not result in a cash
outflow in the 2016 financial year.

The investments in tangible and intangible assets were made to expand production capacities,
particularly in the Sempermed and Semperflex segments, and to modernise existing facilities particu-
larly in the Semperform segment.

Cash flow from investing activities contains in the previous year outflows of EUR 17,474 thousand
for the acquisition of Leeser.

Cash flow from financing activities contains cash proceeds in the amount of EUR 142,948 thou-
sand from the issue of a new corporate Schuldschein loan (see note 6.13.), and a cash outflow of
EUR 26,837 thousand (previous year EUR 0 thousand) for the repayment of liabilities to banks. In the
previous year there was a cash outflow of EUR 72,000 thousands for the repayment of the corporate
Schuldschein loan (see note 6.13.). A further part of the cash flow from investing activities is the
dividend payment to shareholders of Semperit AG Holding in the financial year 2016 in the amount of
EUR 1.20 per share , in total EUR 24,688 thousand.

There was also a cash outflow in the previous year due to the distribution of dividends to non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries amounting to EUR 1,003 thousand.

The cash flow from financing activities also contains the cash outflow associated with the acquisi-
tion of an additional investment in Latexx Partners Berhad totalling EUR 57 thousand (previous year:
EUR 63 thousand) (see note 3.5.).
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8. Risk management

As a group with international activities, Semperit constantly has to face new challenges as a result of
the current fragility of the global economy with its strong regional differences. Semperit operates in
countries with different economic framework conditions. In addition, these countries are in different
phases of political, constitutional and social development. Semperit is subject to risks related to this
situation. The strategic orientation of each of Semperit's four operating segments means that their
success depends to differing degrees on the general economic environment.

A risk potential of Semperit's worldwide business activities is the volatility of exchange rates, par-
ticularly between euro and US dollar/Polish zloty/Czech crown as well as between US dollar and
Malaysian ringgit/Singapore dollar/Chinese renminbi. Therefore, unfavourable exchange rate fluctua-
tions may have significant effects on earnings.

The Management Board of Semperit AG Holding and the bodies subordinate to it undertake ex-
tensive monitoring and controlling tasks with respect to operating units in the context of an integrat-
ed control system covering all group sites. Identifying and evaluating strategic risks and opportunities
and responding to them at an early stage are accordingly an important component of these units’
management activity, based on a uniform group-wide system of monthly reporting. The foundation
for this is a standardised, group-wide monthly reporting system.

Semperit’s objective is to minimise significant risk potentials of future events through effective en-
terprise risk management. Furthermore, risk management supports the achievement of company
objectives as well as the company strategy while simultaneously developing competitive advantages.
In addition to compliance with legal requirements, the main objective of group-wide risk manage-
ment is to increase risk awareness and to integrate the resulting findings into operational work and
strategic company development.

Capital risk management

The goals of capital management are to ensure the company’s continued existence and to enable
growth-oriented organic (own business activity without acquisitions) and non-organic (acquisitions)
investment activity and dividend policies based on these goals. Relating to loan agreements, the
usual clauses include a termination by the banks/investors in case of non-compliance and therefore a
possible negative effect on the asset, liabilities, financial and earnings position.

Given the group’s organic and non-organic growth strategy, the Semperit Group has decided not
to establish a firmly defined target capital structure because different capital structures could be
needed. Management aims to ensure that the group has a sustainably robust capital structure

The total capital of the Semperit Group consists of equity, including non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries (if they relate to equity instruments), liabilities from redeemable non-controlling interests
and net financial debt.

To calculate net financial debt, the balance of cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale securi-
ties is deducted from the balance of interest-bearing financial liabilities (corporate Schuldschein loan,
liabilities to banks, loans from non-controlling shareholders from subsidiary companies, liabilities from
finance leases).
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As of 31 December 2016 net financial debt was EUR 224,106 thousand. The Semperit Group had
net financial debt as of 31 December 2015 totalling EUR 163,724 thousand.

The group is not subject to any statutory requirements with regard to a minimum level of equity, a
minimum equity ratio or a maximum level of gearing.

The group is subject to certain loan agreement requirements related to the consolidated financial
statements. These requirements include a minimum equity ratio and a maximum level of indebted-
ness. As of 31 December 2016 the corresponding requirements were complied with.

Interest rate risk management

Operating resources, investments and acquisitions in the group’s business operations are partially
financed using debt and partially carry variable interest rates. An increase in interest rates may have
negative effects on the asset, liabilities, financial and earnings position.

Semperit tries to minimise the interest rate risk by various measures, among other things by a
well-balanced ratio between variable and fixed interest rate agreements.

The risk related to fixed-interest financial instruments is that the market value will be negatively
impacted in the event of interest rate changes. In the case of variable-interest financial instruments,
the risk is that fluctuations in cash flows can adversely affect the balance of cash and cash equivalents,
and the planning of future cash flows.

In order to hedge Semperit’s financing to a subsidiary company issued in Malaysian Ringgit, Sem-
perit AG Holding entered into a cross currency swap in April 2015. On the one hand, the cross cur-
rency swap causes the variable refinancing to be converted into fixed interest rates, on the other
hand, the exchange rate of the Euro and the Malaysian Ringgit was fixed. According to IAS 39 the
cross currency swap was classified as a cash flow hedge (regarding interest rate risk) and as a fair
value hedge (regarding the foreign exchange risk) too. In total, the derivative was accounted for at
fair value. As of 31 December 2015 the requirements for hedge accounting in accordance with IAS 39
were no longer met. Since then, all fair value changes are recognised completely through profit and
loss within the financial result section of the consolidated income statement. Considering also the
ongoing negative EURIBOR, an interest rate floor was added to the existing cross currency swap on
30 September 2016 with the intention to increase the effectiveness of these counter-balancing fair
value changes.

In order to hedge Semperit’s further financing to a subsidiary company issued in Malaysian Ring-
git, Semperit AG Holding entered into two additional cross currency swaps in March 2016 and in
August 2016. On the one hand, the cross currency swaps again caused the variable refinancing to be
converted into fixed interest rates, on the other hand, the exchange rates of the Euro and the Malay-
sian Ringgit were fixed. According to IAS 39 these cross currency swaps are also classified as cash
flow hedges (regarding interest rate risk) and as fair value hedges (regarding the foreign exchange
risk). In total, these derivatives are also accounted for at fair value. For 2016 the effective portion of
this cash flow hedge of EUR 289 thousand was recognised in other comprehensive income and
EUR 274 thousand were reclassified in the consolidated income statement. Details to the cash flow
hedge reserve see note 6.13.
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The current balance of interest rate risks is derived from the interest-bearing financial instruments

as of the balance sheet date. The interest rate profile of the group’s interest-bearing financial instru-

ments is shown below:

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Fixed Variable Fixed Variable

in EUR thousand interest interest interest interest
Financial assets 349 54,340 16,806 72,975
Financial liabilities 140,494 278,348 133,091 168,457

The focal point of the interest rate sensitivity analysis is the risk arising from variable-interest fi-

nancial instruments. It is assumed that the variable-interest assets and liabilities have been outstand-
ing for a full year at the reporting date. When performing this analysis, an increase and a decrease in

interest rates of 100 basis points are simulated.

The resulting effects on the financial result are shown below:

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Sensitivity to changes in interest rates by  Sensitivity to changes in interest rates by

+100 basis -100 basis +100 basis -100 basis

in EUR thousand Balance points points" Balance points points"
Variable-interest financial assets 54,340 543 —44 72,975 730 -438
Variable-interest financial liabilities 278,348 -2,783 2,740 168,457 -1,685 1,597

" For interest rates below 1%, negative interest rates are not taken into account
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Liquidity risk management
There are default risks relating to Semperit's bank deposits. These deposits are not or only partially
secured by deposit protection funds and may be the reason why Semperit cannot or only partially or
only with some delay access this liquidity or credit lines in case of difficulties of individual banks or
another bank and/or financial crisis. In addition, Semperit has business activities in countries with
capital controls or agreements with joint venture partners, which results in restrictions on the free
availability of the respective cash and cash equivalents. The above-mentioned risks may have nega-
tive effects on the asset, liabilities, financial and earnings position.
The maturities of the undiscounted contractual cash flows from financial liabilities break down as

follows:
31.12.2016

Up to 1 2to3 4to12 1to5 Over 5
in EUR thousand Total month months months years years
Corporate Schuldschein loan 310,108 0 0 6,787 197,651 105,670
Liabilities to banks 143,475 1,874 3,721 1,219 135,712 949
Trade payables 111,569 61,972 46,045 2,911 308 334
Derivatives 171 154 0 17 0 0
Liabilities from finance leases 30 2 5 22 0 0
Other financial liabilities 14,462 7,273 5,068 1,515 564 42
31.12.2015

Upto1 2to3 41012 1to5 Over 5
in EUR thousand Total month months months years years
Corporate Schuldschein loan 152,038 1,619 0 1,619 53,277 95,522
Liabilities to banks 168,699 1,817 3,665 77 162,065 1,075
Trade payables 100,661 54,579 36,516 8,950 50 566
Derivatives 240 72 168 0 0 0
Liabilities from finance leases 94 5 14 39 36 0
Other financial liabilities 14,409 7,637 627 3,669 2,436 40
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Default / Credit risk management

Credit risks arise when the other parties to transactions do not meet their obligations, resulting in a
financial loss for the group. Semperit's contractual partners are for the most part banks with a good
credit rating. Furthermore, Semperit has defined maximum investment amounts with each contractual
partner in order to minimise the default risk. In countries with restricted cash transfer, Semperit tries
to limit the locally kept amount to the operationally necessary minimum.

In addition, the default risk is largely limited by credit insurance and in certain cases through bank
collateral (bank guarantees). If credit limits are exceeded or payments delayed, deliveries are halted
and only resumed once specific conditions are met and on the order of authorised individuals speci-
fied in Semperit Group directives. Since there are also credit risks for financial partners with excellent
creditworthiness, developments in the financial markets are monitored continuously and the credit
limits are adjusted accordingly.

The default risk associated with receivables from customers is assessed as low since their credit-
worthiness is monitored continuously. Furthermore, the group's diversified customer structure means
that risk is not concentrated on individual customers.

The default risk associated with liquid funds is low, since the group’s contracting parties are large-
ly banks with very good credit ratings from international credit rating agencies. To further minimise
the risk, defined maximum amounts are set for each contracting party.

The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the corresponding valuation categories in 1AS
39.9 are as follows:

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Derivative financial instruments (held for trading) 4,811 4,469
Units in funds, government bonds, equities (AFS) 6,498 6,490
Loans and receivables 36,694 41,638
Cash and cash equivalents 190,208 126,430

Currency risk management

As a result of international trading activities in various foreign currencies, the Semperit Group is
exposed to currency risk. There are associated transaction risks in all group companies, which for
example purchase raw materials in foreign currencies or sell products in a currency other than the
euro. The main currencies in this context are the US dollar, Czech crown, Polish zloty and Malaysian
ringgit.

The translation of separate financial statements in foreign currencies to the euro, the reporting
currency, results in currency translation differences (translation risk), which amount to EUR -489 thou-
sand (previous year: EUR -4,751 thousand) and were recognised in other comprehensive income. EUR
-187 thousand (previous year: EUR -204 thousand) of this amount was attributable to non-controlling
interests, and foreign exchange differences from joint ventures / nun-current assets held for sale
amounted to EUR 4,884 thousand (previous year: EUR 2,545 thousand). In connection with the joint
venture transaction an amount of EUR 14,033 thousand has been classified from the currency transla-
tion reserve to reserves which are attributable to non-current assets held for sale.

This led to a change in the foreign currency translation reserve from EUR 2,664 thousand as of 31
December 2015 to EUR -11,670 thousand as of 31 December 2016. In 2015 the foreign currency
translation reserve changed from EUR 7,211 thousand to EUR 2,664 thousand. The carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities belonging to subsidiaries not based in the Eurozone and the contribution of
these subsidiaries to the earnings of the group depend to a significant degree on the exchange rate
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between the euro and the functional currency used by these subsidiaries. Translation risk is not taken
into account in the following disclosures under IFRS 7.

The following breakdown of the Semperit Group'’s revenue into key currencies (as a percentage of
overall revenue) shows that in 2016, 41.1% (previous year: 47.5%) of sales was realised in a foreign

currency.
in % of Group's revenue 2016 2015
EUR 58.9% 52.5%
usb 31.9% 35.6%
CNY 2.9% 2.9%
INR 1.7% 1.9%
GBP 1.6% 2.2%
PLN 0.7% 2.2%
MYR 0.4% 0.4%
THB 0.3% 0.2%
Other 1.6% 2.0%

A significant portion of the group’s earnings is generated by subsidiaries that are not headquar-
tered in the Eurozone.

The group’s financial management is committed to avoiding currency risks as much as possible by
coordinating payment flows.

The table below shows the derivative financial instruments used to hedge against currency risk by
company, type of forward transaction and hedged currency. There are forward sales and cross cur-

rency swaps.

159

Range of
Fair value remaining
in EUR days to
Type of Hedge Hedge thousand maturity
31.12.2016 Country  transaction Currency amount " rate? 31.12.2016 in days
Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd., Forward
Hat Yai, Thailand Thailand exchange EUR 1,549,895 38.39 8 160-187
Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd., Forward
Hat Yai, Thailand Thailand exchange usD 6,833,779 35.01 -153 48-136
Cross
Currency 6,562,397/
Semperit AG Holding Austria Swap EUR/MYR 30,000,000 4.57 214 818
Cross
Currency 6,625,881/
Semperit AG Holding Austria Swap EUR/MYR 30,000,000 4.53 201 1,916
Cross
Currency 25,641,026/
Semperit AG Holding Austria Swap EUR/MYR 100,000,000 3.90 4,387 1,084

" Refers to the total amount of all existing derivative financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period.
2 Refers to the weighted average rate derived from all existing derivative financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period.
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Range of
Fair value remaining
in EUR days to
Type of Hedge Hedge thousand maturity
31.12.2015 Country  transaction Currency amount " rate ? 31.12.2015 in days
Sempertrans Befchatéw Forward
Sp. z o.0. Poland exchange EUR 26,000,000 4.27 -87 7-182
Semperit Technische Produkte Forward
GmbH Austria exchange CNY 58,590,000 7.29 -72 21
Forward
Semperit AG Holding Austria exchange usbD 10,000,000 1.10 -73 57
Cross
Currency 25,641,026/
Semperit AG Holding Austria Swap EUR/MYR 100,000,000 3.90 4,462 1,449

" Refers to the total amount of all existing derivative financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period.
2 Refers to the weighted average rate derived from all existing derivative financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period.

The derivatives are reported as instruments held for trading rather than as hedges because the
prerequisites for hedge accounting in accordance with IAS 39 are not met. The fair values are report-
ed in the consolidated balance sheet as “Other financial assets” or “Other financial liabilities”.

In terms of currency risk, sensitivity analyses of monetary items that deviate from the functional
currency are prepared for measurement at the reporting date. When doing so, the effects on profit
are determined based on hypothetical changes in exchange rates for each currency pair. The basis
takes into account the receivables and liabilities in the currency pair in question at the reporting date
and the currency derivatives. A uniform change in the range of price fluctuation was not assumed,;
instead, the appropriate fluctuation ranges for each currency pair were determined based on histori-
cal fluctuations during the year.
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The following table shows the effects of currency appreciation and devaluation of the major cur-

rencies versus the euro.
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2016 2015

Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on

Calculated profit from profit from Calculated profit from  profit from

fluctuation price price fluctuation price price

range increase decrease range increase decrease

in EUR in EUR in EUR in EUR

Change in currency to EUR in % thousand thousand in % thousand thousand
usD 5% 4,904 -4,904 5% -554 554
THB 4% -598 598 9% 23 -23
PLN 3% 725 -725 4% -1,368 1,368
CzK 0% -24 24 2% 146 -146
HUF 2% 33 -33 3% 40 -40
GBP 10% 122 -122 5% 158 -158
CNY 3% -141 141 5% 676 -676
INR 4% -135 135 6% =176 176
MYR 4% -1,515 1,515 14% -2,877 2,877
SGD 3% 3 -3 5% 4 -4
2016 2015

Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on

Calculated profit from profit from Calculated profit from profit from

fluctuation price price fluctuation price price

range increase decrease range increase decrease

in EUR in EUR in EUR in EUR

Change in currency to USD in % thousand thousand in % thousand thousand
THB 2% 137 -137 8% 147 -147
PLN 6% 493 -493 5% 496 -496
CzK 4% 71 71 4% 45 -45
HUF 5% -92 92 4% 1 -1
GBP 1% 188 -188 3% 40 -40
CNY 4% 166 -166 3% 41 -41
INR 2% 0 0 5% 27 =27
MYR 7% 307 -307 14% 299 -299
SGD 4% 43 -43 4% 46 -46
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9. Other commitments and risks

Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations

A group company is currently conducting tax proceedings regarding levies in Brazil. Based on the
negative outcome of these proceedings in the financial year 2016 as well as external expert opinions,
the management expects that the requirements for a provision are fulfilled and therefore a provision
is necessary for the assessment years 2008 to 2010 (see note 6.12.). For the assessment years 2011
and 2012 the management still assumes that no provision is necessary for a possible tax risk. In the
event that this assessment of risk is not correct, there could be a loss, which would significantly im-
pact the asset, liabilities, financial and earnings position of the group. Management aims to ensure
that all necessary measures will be taken for a successful enforcement of the legal position of the
group company concerned. Appropriate provisions have been accrued for the expected costs of the
proceedings (see note 6.12.).

There are otherwise only contractual-performance, warranty and advance-payment guarantees
that are normal in the industry or business.

In addition, there are liabilities from the use of tangible assets not reported in the balance
sheet that are based on tenancy or lease agreements, as well as liabilities related to the acquisition
of tangible assets based on contractually binding investment projects involving tangible assets (see
note 6.2.).

Legal disputes

Various companies in the group are the defendant in cases in which the plaintiffs claim to have in-
curred damages caused by products of the defendant. The Semperit Group rejects all of these claims
as being unjustified. None of the cases are currently at a stage at which the outcome can be estimat-
ed with a sufficient degree of probability. However, in light of the current insurance coverage, the
management of the Semperit Group does not expect these cases to significantly impair the asset,
liabilities, financial and earnings position.

One group company is involved in an unfair competition proceeding. The case is currently not at a
stage at which the outcome can be estimated with a sufficient degree of probability. The case is
being heard before the authorities in consultation with local specialists. The subsidiary is cooperating
with the competent authorities and is providing all the necessary assistance. The management of the
Semperit Group does not expect this case to significantly impair the asset, liabilities, financial and
earnings position. For the anticipated costs and the appropriate risk a provision has been made in the
most likely amount according to the assessment of the Semperit Group and in accordance with IAS
37. The amount is reviewed periodically in case there is need for adjustment.

Detailed information on the specific financial effects would seriously weaken the position of the
Semperit Group in asserting its interests in the current legal proceedings, and is therefore omitted in
application of IAS 37.92.
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Legal disputes with the joint venture partner Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd.
Since 2014, the Semperit Group has been involved in several legal proceedings with domestic courts
in Thailand and with international arbitration tribunals seated in Zurich based on the rules of the
International Chamber of Commerce (ICC). These proceedings relate in particular to the competen-
cies and internal organisation of the Board of Directors (BoD) being the management body of Siam
Sempermed Corp. Ltd. (SSC), a joint venture in Thailand. They also concern the business conduct of
SSC, SSC's business relationships with group subsidiaries of the Thai joint venture partner, Sri Trang
Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd. (Sri Trang), and the exclusive distribution rights of the Semperit Group.

The opposing parties in the arbitration proceedings are the contracting parties in the joint venture
agreements and SSC itself. In the proceedings at Thai courts, the opposing parties are the BoD mem-
bers who have been nominated by Sri Trang. Semperit is the plaintiff in the ICC proceedings. The BoD
members appointed by Semperit are the defendants in most of the proceedings at Thai courts.

The core issue at dispute is that the members of SSC's BoD who have been nominated by the
joint venture partner Sri Trang are currently hindering the exercise of control by Semperit.

Due to this inability to exercise control over SSC and the assessment of a loss of control under
IFRS 10.B24, Semperit decided to change the method of consolidation for SSC as of 31 March 2014,
from full consolidation according to IFRS 10 to the equity method in accordance with IFRS 11/ IAS 28
(see note 2.18. in the annual report 2015).

ICC Cases

Currently, the arbitration proceedings are mostly at an advanced or final stage; the arbitration tribu-
nals have been constituted and case management conferences have been held. Semperit has then
prepared and submitted detailed statements of claim and additional briefs. In addition, hearings were
held where witnesses were questioned and expert reports presented.

ICC 1 Case
In the second quarter 2016, a final award was rendered in favour of Semperit in the arbitration pro-
ceeding against the joint venture partners concerning the possibility to pass board resolutions with a
reduced quorum. The arbitral tribunal decided that the Sri Trang nominated directors of SSC cannot
and may not block SSC's decision-making and also the Casting Vote of the Semperit nominated
Chairman, by not participating in board meetings. Further, the joint venture partners are ordered to
bear the costs of the arbitration proceedings and of the ICC Court and to reimburse to Semperit an
amount of approximately EUR 2.5 million (net value less the costs of arbitration already paid to the
ICC). The joint venture partners failed to honour the award.

Semperit has taken necessary legal actions in Thailand to enforce the award and in both, Thailand
and Singapore, to execute the claim for cost reimbursement.

Due to the expected sale of SSC the consolidation method has been changed in accordance with
IFRS 5 as of 31 December 2016. Now SSC is disclosed as non-current asset held for sale.
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ICC 2 Case
In the first quarter 2016, a partial award was rendered in the arbitration proceedings against the joint
venture partner concerning the business operations and the business relationships with the joint
venture company SSC. The arbitral tribunal decided that Sri Trang and the other Thai joint venture
partners must comply with Semperit's request for access to SSC’s accounts and company records as
well as for the restoration of transparency at SSC.

The joint venture partners failed to honour the partial award, as a consequence Semperit has tak-
en necessary legal actions in Thailand to enforce the partial award.

Other contentious issues that have not been included in the partial award remain subject of the
ongoing proceedings. Another partial award is expected to be rendered during the first half of 2017.

ICC 3 Case
In the second quarter of 2016, a Partial Award in this case was issued. The arbitration tribunal decid-
ed, that SSC itself has to fulfill the demands of Semperit of restoration for transparency, access to the
books and accounts and access to the premises.

SSC failed to honour the partial award, as a consequence Semperit has taken necessary legal ac-
tions in Thailand to enforce the partial award.

ICC 4 Case
In the fourth quarter of 2016, Semperit initiated a further arbitration proceeding which is at the
beginning. This arbitration proceeding refers to violations of contracts in relation to a noncompetition
clause in Thailand. The arbitration proceeding is at an early stage, the arbitration tribunal has not
been constituted so far.

For the ICC Cases 1 to 3, the 30-day-periods for application to set aside the (partial) awards have
expired according to Swiss Law and so they are effective.
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Thailand Cases
Several proceedings are still pending at the Thai courts.

Some of these lawsuits were submitted by a Sri Trang nominated director against SSC directors
nominated by Semperit and against SSC itself. In the course of 2016, three decisions in favour of
Semperit have been made by the courts, the counterparty has filed or is expected to file appeals
against these decisions.

Semperit nominated directors have also initiated a lawsuit against Sri Trang nominated directors. In
this litigation, the court of appeal overturned the lower court decision and confirmed the legal posi-
tion of the Semperit directors. The counterparty has filed an appeal against this decision which has
remained enforceable so far.

Additionally, Semperit has sued two Sri Trang nominated SSC directors.

In the year 2016, one of the Sri Trang nominated directors commenced a lawsuit against the valid-
ity of one shareholders’ resolution regarding a shareholder-audit, which was previously passed by an
unanimous consent of all SSC shareholders. The first lawsuit has been rejected in the first instance.
The counterparty is expected to file appeals against these decision.

If the closing is successful, the termination agreement stipulates that all pending arbitration and
civil proceedings between Semperit Group and Sri Trang Group or SSC will be settled.

BWB Case

In October 2015, the Austrian Federal Competition Authority (BWB) - acting on a petition from Sri
Trang companies, which are Semperit's joint venture partners in SSC — commenced a proceeding
against Semperit and these Sri Trang companies with the antitrust court in Vienna. The proceeding
relates to exclusive distribution rights in Europe. In December 2015, Semperit submitted extensive
briefs to defend its legal position. In the first quarter 2016, a court hearing was held and Semperit
submitted additional briefs. By the end of June 2016, the antitrust court in Vienna determined in a
partial ruling the incompatibility of the exclusive distribution rights with the legal regulations of the
EU Competition Law. In July 2016, Semperit filed an appeal with the Austrian Supreme Court. Sem-
perit also proposed that this legal issue be decided by the European Court of Justice because there
has so far been no ruling in similar cases on the prohibition of distribution regulations. A decision is
expected during the first half of 2017.

The Semperit Group continues to anticipate that its interpretation of the law will be confirmed in
these proceedings. The costs for the proceedings in which Semperit is the claimant are being ex-
pensed as incurred. Appropriate provisions have been set up for the expected costs of the proceed-
ings in which Semperit is the defendant.
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10. Related-party transactions with companies, individuals and
co-partners

10.1. Related-party transactions with companies and individuals
Outstanding balances and transactions between Semperit AG Holding and its subsidiaries were
eliminated in the course of consolidation and are not further discussed here.

B & C Semperit Holding GmbH is the direct majority shareholder of Semperit AG Holding, and
B & C Privatstiftung is the dominant legal entity. B & C Holding Osterreich GmbH is the shareholder
holding an indirect majority stake which draws up and publishes consolidated financial statements in
which the Semperit Group is consolidated. Under IAS 24, B & C Privatstiftung and all its subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associated companies are related parties of the Semperit Group.

Related parties of the Semperit Group include the members of the Management and Supervisory
Boards of Semperit AG Holding, the managing directors and supervisory board members of all com-
panies which directly or indirectly hold a majority stake in Semperit AG Holding, and finally the mem-
bers of the management board of B & C Privatstiftung and the close family members of these man-
agement and supervisory board members and managing directors.

Compensation paid to members of the Management Board is shown in note 5.4., loans to the
Management Board are shown in note 6.5. The Supervisory Board compensation for the 2016 finan-
cial year consists of basic compensation, compensation for the members for each committee, and an
attendance fee for each meeting. In the 2016 financial year, the remuneration paid to members of the
Supervisory Board for 2015 amounted to EUR 482 thousand (previous year: EUR 353 thousand).

Balances and transactions with joint ventures and associated companies are explained in more de-
tail in note 3.2.

With the other related parties mentioned below the group has the following transactions:

In 2016 the group conducted transactions with unit-it GmbH in the amount of EUR 462 thousand
(previous year: EUR 1,130 thousand). This related to the maintenance of SAP licences and was con-
ducted at arm’s length conditions. As of 31 December 2016 there are no unpaid liabilities to the
company (previous year: EUR 558 thousand).

In 2016 the group conducted transactions with Grohs Hofer Rechtsanwalte Gesellschaft m.b.H.
and Grohs Hofer Rechtsanwalte GmbH & Co KG in the amount of EUR 612 thousand (previous year:
EUR 264 thousand). These transactions relate to legal consulting services and were conducted at
arm'’s length conditions. As of the reporting date there are unpaid liabilities to these companies in the
amount of EUR 251 thousand (previous year: EUR 20 thousand).

The remaining level of transactions with associated companies and other related parties is low,
and they are conducted on normal business terms and conditions.

10.2. Transactions with co-partners

The fully consolidated company Semperflex Asia Corp. Ltd. has a business relationship with the non-
controlling co-partner of this subsidiary, Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd. In addition, Semper-
trans Best (Shandong) Belting Co. Ltd. conducts business with Wang Chao Coal & Electricity Group,
the non-controlling co-partner of this subsidiary.
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10.3. Management Board matters
In year 2016 the Supervisory Board of the Semperit AG Holding extended the mandate of the
Chairman Thomas Fahnemann for an additional period of office till 31 December 2019.

In the reporting period the Supervisory Board appointed Michele Melchiorre for three years as a
member of the Management Board. His mandate commenced on 1 June 2016 and will last until 31
May 2019. Mr. Melchiorre is responsible as technical director for the Industrial Sector.

Chief Financial Officer Johannes Schmidt-Schultes and Chief Information Officer Declan Daly in-
formed the Supervisory Board in September 2016, that after expiry of their terms of office (end of April
2017 and end of May 2017) they would not be available for another contract renewal. Johannes
Schmidt-Schultes has been working for Semperit since April 2011, Declan Daly since June 2014. Jo-
hannes Schmidt-Schultes and Declan Daly have terminated their mandate on 30 November 2016 by
mutual agreement.

The function of the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information Officer have been merged. For
this function, the Supervisory Board appointed Frank Gumbinger as a member of the Management
Board. His mandate commenced on 1 December 2016 and last until 31 December 2019.

11. Events after the balance sheet date
On 18 January 2017 Semperit and the Thai company Sri Trang Agro-Industry Public Co Ltd. Group
(Sri Trang) signed an agreement to terminate nearly all of their joint business activities. For further
details see note 3.3.

No further significant events requiring disclosure occurred between 31 December 2016, the bal-
ance sheet date, and 9 March 2017, the date on which this report was approved for publication.

Vienna, 9 March 2016

The Management Board

Thomas Fahnemann

Chairman
i ' ‘ JA, '
(g
Frank Gumbinger Richard Ehrenfeldner Michele Melchiorre

Finance Member Technic
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Independent Auditor’s Report”

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Audit Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of

Semperit Aktiengesellschaft Holding, Vienna,

and of its subsidiaries (the Group) comprising the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
fiscal year then ended and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our audit the accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in accord-
ance with the legal regulations and present fairly, in all material respects, the assets and the financial
position of the Group as of December 31, 2016 and its financial performance for the year then ended
in accordance with the International Financial Reportings Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by EU, and
the additional requirements under Section 245a Austrian Company Code UGB.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those regulations
and standards are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidat-
ed Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Austrian General Accepted Accounting Principles and professional requirements and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the fiscal year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Below we describe the Key Audit Matters:

* Valuation of goodwill in the Sempermed segment
* Valuation of deferred tax assets
e Effects of current transactions — signing of an agreement to terminate the joint ventures with Sri

Trang

" This report is a translation of the original report in German, which is solely valid. Publication or sharing with third parties of the consolidated
financial statements together with our auditor's opinion is only allowed if the consolidated financial statements and the management report
for the Group are identical with the German audited version. This audit opinion is only applicable to the German and complete consolidated
financial statements with the management report for the Group. Section 281 paragraph 2 UGB (Austrian Company Code) applies to alternated
versions.
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Valuation of goodwill in the Sempermed segment

The consolidated financial statements of the Semperit Group contain a material goodwill (carrying
amount as at 31 December 2016: EUR 26,063 thousand), which is allocated to the Sempermed cash
generating unit (CGU).

There is a considerable risk associated with the recoverability of the goodwill, primarily because of
the negative earnings trend in the Sempermed segment during 2016. An impairment loss on goodwill
in the Sempermed segment was recognised in the financial year in the amount of EUR 16,984 thou-
sand.

When performing the impairment test key assumptions and estimates must be made regarding
value in use, which is determined using the discounted cash flow method. The key risk lies in the
estimation of these future cash flows and the discount rate.

The corresponding disclosures of the Semperit Group on goodwill are contained in Note “6.1 In-
tangible assets”.

In order to address this risk we have scrutinised and reviewed management’s assumptions and es-

timates. We have additionally performed audit procedures, including the following:

® Assessed the planning and design of the process to review the valuation

e Audited the methodology applied, the mathematical accuracy of the documentation and calcula-
tions provided, and reviewed the plausibility of the discount rates with the assistance of our valua-
tion specialists

¢ Audited whether the forecasted revenue and earnings as well as the investments for the Sem-
permed CGU agree with the plans submitted to the Supervisory Board, and whether these items
are in compliance with the requirements of 1AS 36

® Reviewed the planning documentation and performed a plausibility analysis of the key value drivers
(revenue, expenses, investments and changes in working capital) in order to verify the appropriate-
ness of these plans

Valuation of deferred tax assets
A material amount of deferred tax assets is recognized in the balance sheet of the Semperit Group
(31 December 2016: EUR 18,846 thousand).

The measurement of deferred tax assets is based on significant estimates and judgements. The
key risk relates to estimates of future taxable income and the assessment when this income will be
realised. To do this Semperit derives a plan for taxable income based on the company’s medium-term
planning. It then assesses as recoverable those values which can probably be realised over the next
five years.

The company's disclosures on deferred tax assets are contained in the Note “6.8 Deferred taxes”.

In order to address this risk we have scrutinised and reviewed management’s assumptions and esti-

mates. We have additionally performed audit procedures, including the following:

¢ Assessed the planning and design of the process to review the recoverability of deferred tax assets

® Reconciled the planning data submitted to the Supervisory Board to the tax planning of the individ-
ual companies and analysed the plausibility of the key value drivers

¢ Audited the methodology applied and the mathematical accuracy of the documentation submitted
and the calculations

¢ Performed analyses and assessed the plausibility of the recoverability of deferred tax assets within
the next five years using the tax planning

Heading
Risk

Audit response

Heading
Risk

Audit response
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Effects of current transactions - signing of an agreement to terminate the joint venture
structure with Sri Trang

The Austrian Semperit Group (Semperit) and the Thai company Sri Trang-Agro Industry Public Co Ltd
Group (Sri Trang) signed an agreement on 18 January 2017 to terminate nearly all of their joint busi-
ness activities.

Under this agreement Semperit will acquire the joint sales company in the USA (Sempermed
USA). In addition, Semperit will acquire the current Sempermed joint venture companies in Singa-
pore, China and Brazil as well as the majority interest in the Malaysian company Formtech (producer
of ceramic moulds for glove production).

Sri Trang will acquire the glove production of Siam Sempermed Corporation Ltd. (SSC) in Thai-
land, which has been operated jointly until now.

In the Industrial Sector Semperit will completely acquire Semperflex Shanghai with a hydraulic
hose production plant in China. Semperit will increase its investment in the Semperform business
activities in China from 90% to 100%. The Semperflex Asia (SAC) joint venture in Thailand will be
continued. Semperit, on the one hand, and Sri Trang together with additional investors, on the other,
will each continue to own a 50% interest in the production plant for hydraulic hoses in Hatyai, Thai-
land.

As part of the termination of the joint venture structure Semperit will receive a one-time compen-
sation payment totalling USD 167.5 million before taxes. Immediately prior to the closing SSC will
adopt a resolution to pay a dividend amounting to a total distribution of about USD 118.2 million.
SAC will adopt a resolution to pay a dividend amounting to a total distribution of USD 30 million.

This agreement also provides for the termination of all ongoing litigation with Sri Trang.

The key risk relates to the complete recognition of the accounting consequences and the neces-
sary disclosures as at 31 December 2016 resulting from the transaction with Sri Trang. These include,
in particular, the following issues:

e Definition of the cash generating unit in the Sempermed segment

* Recognition as an asset held for sale

* Reclassification of the goodwill attributable to Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd.

* Measurement of the at-equity carrying amount of Siam Sempermed Corp.

® Measurement of the non-controlling interests

* Valuation based on third-party principles

* Assessment of the accounting effects associated with the settlement of the arbitration proceedings
in favour of Semperit

* Tax effects

* Presentation of the notes regarding these events occurring after the balance sheet date

The company’s disclosures on the effects resulting from the signing of the agreement to terminate
the joint venture structure with Sri Trang are included in Note 3.3.

In order to address this risk we have scrutinised and reviewed management’s estimates. We have
additionally performed audit procedures, including the following:
* Reviewed the agreement to terminate the joint venture structure with Sri Trang
* Assessed the definition of the cash generating unit in the Sempermed segment
* Audited the recognition as an asset held for sale
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¢ Audited the derecognition of the goodwill attributable to Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd.

¢ Audited the recoverability of the at-equity carrying amount of Siam Sempermed Corp. Ltd.

¢ Assessed the measurement and presentation of the non-controlling interests

* Assessed whether the valuations were made based on arms-length principles

e Audited the accounting effects associated with the settlement of the arbitration proceedings in
favour of Semperit

* Audited the tax effects as at 31 December 2016

¢ Audited the disclosures regarding events occurring after the balance sheet date

Responsibilities of Management and of the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accord-
ance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements under Section 245a Austrian
Company Code UGB for them to present a true and fair view of the assets, the financial position and
the financial performance of the Group and for such internal controls as management determines are
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liqui-
date the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial state-

ments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU regulation and in accordance with

Austrian Standards on Auditing, which require the application of ISA, always detect a material mis-

statement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic deci-
sions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the EU regulation and in accordance with Austrian Stand-
ards on Auditing, which require the application of ISA, we exercise professional judgment and main-
tain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the over-
ride of internal control.
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® obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underly-
ing transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

® obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethi-
cal requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are there-
fore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Comments on the Management Report for the Group
Pursuant to Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the management report for the
Group is to be audited as to whether it is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and as
to whether the management report for the Group was prepared in accordance with the applicable
legal regulations.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the management report for the Group in ac-
cordance with Austrian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Austrian Standards on Auditing for the audit of the
management report for the Group.

Opinion

In our opinion, the management report for the Group was prepared in accordance with the valid legal
requirements, comprising the details in accordance with Section 243a Austrian Company Code UGB,
and is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

Statement

Based on the findings during the audit of the consolidated financial statements and due to the thus
obtained understanding concerning the Group and its circumstances no material misstatements in the
management report for the Group came to our attention.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the infor-
mation included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, the
management report for the Group and the auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is estimated to
be provided to us after the date of the auditor's report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance con-
clusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information, as soon as it is available, and, in doing so, to consider whether - based on our
knowledge obtained in the audit - the other information is materially inconsistent with the consoli-
dated financial statements or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsible Austrian Certified Public Accountant
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Hans-Erich
Sorli.

Vienna, 9 March 2017
Ernst & Young
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H.

Mag. Gerhard Schwartz mp Mag. Hans-Erich Sorli mp
Wirtschaftsprifer / Certified Public Wirtschaftsprifer / Certified Public
Accountant Accountant
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Balance sheet of Semperit AG Holding"

in EUR thousand 31.12.2016  31.12.2015
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 12,362 10,149
Tangible assets 889 1,088
Financial assets 337,898 335,403
351,148 346,640
Current assets
Receivables from affiliated companies 121,542 86,944
Receivables from joint ventures 258 129
Other receivables 6,995 4,681
Cash on hand, bank deposits 52,356 5,630
181,150 97,384
Accruals and deferrals 903 613
Net deferred tax assets 3,259 0
ASSETS 536,461 444,637
LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 21,359 21,359
Capital reserves 21,540 21,540
Revenue reserves 33,499 48,500
Net profit for the period 14,548 24,798
90,946 116,196
Provisions
Provisions for severance payments 2,334 2,644
Provisions for pensions 12,563 12,562
Tax provisions 1,071 1,071
Other provisions 8,454 12,649
24,423 28,926
Liabilities
Corporate Schuldschein loan 279,499 134,481
Liabilities to banks 135,014 161,467
Trade payables 3,328 2,788
Liabilities to affiliated companies 193 524
Otbher liabilities 3,058 255
421,092 299,515
LIABILITIES 536,461 444,637

" Shortened version.
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Income statement of Semperit AG Holding

Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016

in EUR thousand 2016 2015
Revenue 23,949 20,510
Other own work capitalised 111 949
Other operating income 3,168 1,148
Personnel expenses -17,576 -16,654
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible and intangible assets -1,866 -1,182
Other operating expenses -35,208 -35,326
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) -27,421 -30,555
Income from investments 32,500 72,000
Income from other securities of financial assets 102 109
Interest and related income 10,078 6,474
Income from write up to financial assets 129 35
Expenses from financial assets —-7,389 -4,362
Interest and related expenses -16,706 -7,855
Financial result 18,714 66,401
Result from ordinary business activities -8,707 35,846
Income taxes 8,143 4,021
Earnings after tax -564 39,867
Allocation of other reserves 0 -15,200
Release of other reserves 15,003 0
Profit carried forward from the previous year 110 131
Net profit for the period 14,548 24,799

" Shortened version.

The unshortened annual financial statements 2016 of Semperit AG Holding, which were prepared
according to Austrian accounting standards and awarded an unqualified audit opinion by Ernst &
Young Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna, were submitted together with all the relevant
documentation to the commercial register of the Vienna Commercial Court under the commercial
register number 112544 g. These financial statements are included in the Annual Financial Report
2016 in German, which is available for download from the homepage www.semperitgroup.com/ir.



176 Semperit Group | Annual Report 2016 Separate Financial Statements Semperit AG Holding

The local financial statement of the Semperit AG Holding as of 31. December 2016 shows net
profit for the period EUR 14,547,748.66. Management Board of the Semperit AG Holding propose a
dividend of total EUR 14,401,403.80 from the net profit for the period as showed in the financial
statement as of 31. December 2016, which equals to a dividend of EUR 0.70 per share. The remaining
amount of EUR 146,344.86 will be carried forward. This dividend proposal is based on the assumption
that the joint venture transaction “termination of Siam Sempermed joint venture” will be closed, as
announced in the inside information of 18 January 2017. If the transaction fails to be closed, the
Management Board reserves the right to make a resolution proposal at the 128. Annual General
Meeting of the Semperit AG Holding that deviates from this dividend proposal.

Vienna, 9 March 2017

The Management Board

Thomas Fahnemann

Chairman
i ' ‘ ﬁ%v '
(A
Frank Gumbinger Richard Ehrenfeldner Michele Melchiorre

Finance Member Technic
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Statement of all legal representatives

Pursuant to Section 82 (4) (3) of the Austrian Stock Exchange Act

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the consolidated financial statements as at 31 Decem-
ber 2016 prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the European Union (EU) give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the group as required by the applicable accounting standards and that the group
management report gives a true and fair view of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties the
group faces.

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the separate financial statements of Semperit
Aktiengesellschaft Holding as at 31 December 2016 prepared in accordance with the Austrian
Company Code (UGB) give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the parent company as required by the applicable accounting standards and that the man-
agement report gives a true and fair view of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties the
company faces.

Vienna, 9 March 2017

The Management Board

Thomas Fahnemann

Chairman
" ( M Ml"\’l
i T
Frank Gumbinger Richard Ehrenfeldner Michele Melchiorre

Finance Member Technic
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Group’s history

1824

1852
1890
1900
1912
1920
1985

1989

1996

1998
1999
2000
2001

2007
2008

2009
2010

2011
2012

2013

2014

2015
2016

Johann Nepomuk Reithoffer received a patent for waterproofing cloth,
laying the foundation for Semperit

First European rubber processing factory founded in Wimpassing, Austria
Company listed on the Vienna stock exchange for the first time

The “Semperit” name mentioned for the first time

Semperit Group established following the merger of several factories
Production of latex gloves commenced

Group reorganized to concentrate on four business segments
Tyre production business sold to Continental

First glove factory established in Thailand

Conveyor belt company acquired in France

Hydraulic hose production commenced in Thailand

First production facility built in China (handrails)

Europe’s largest hose factory acquired in the Czech Republic
Handrail factory opened in New Jersey, USA
Conveyor belt factory acquired in Poland

Majority interest acquired in an Indian conveyor belt factory
Hose factory bought in Italy

New hose factory opened in China

Handrail production relocated to Shanghai, China
Distribution company for medical gloves bought in Brazil

Joint venture established for a conveyor belt factory in China

New glove factory built in Thailand

Distribution company for hydraulic hoses established in Brazil

Porcelain mould production facility established in a joint venture in Malaysia
Largest acquisition in the company’s history carried out with the purchase of Latexx
Partners, a producer of gloves in Malaysia

Start of the largest organic investment in the company’s history at the conveyor belt
plant in Betchatéw, Poland

Semperit became the main supplier of conveyor belts to the German energy com-
pany RWE

Decision and start of a growth investment programme totalling EUR 100 million for
2014-2016

Acquisition of the German profile manufacturer Leeser

Expantion of the glove production at the plant in Kamunting, Malaysia



Glossary

Glossary

A

ATX (Austrian Traded Index)
Leading index of the Vienna Stock Exchange
comprising the 20 largest Austrian companies.

B

Butadiene
Organic, two-fold unsaturated chemical poly-
mer used in the manufacture of synthetic
latex, among other things; a petrochemical
by-product.

C

CAGR (compound annual growth rate)
Average annual growth rate over a specific
period of time.

Compliance

Conformity with regulations; adherence to
rules, guidelines and voluntary codes within a
company.

Corporate Governance

Rules for the responsible management and
control of a company; laid out in the Austrian
Corporate Governance Code.

D

DAX
German equity index comprising the 30
largest German companies.

Directors’ Dealings / Managers'
transactions

Share transactions conducted by the man-
agement of exchange-listed companies in the
companies’ own shares.

Directors and Officers (D&O) Insurance
Liability insurance taken out by a company for
its boards and executives.

Dividend ex day
The day on which the amount of the dividend
is deducted from the share price.
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Dividend payout ratio

Distribution ratio; share of the profit that is
distributed to shareholders in the form of
dividends.

E

EBIT
Earnings before interest and tax; operating
result.

EBIT margin
EBITDA in relation to revenue.

EBITDA
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation.

EBITDA margin
EBITDA in relation to revenue.

Equity ratio
The ratio of shareholders’ equity to total
assets.

Elastomer
Form stable but elastically deformable
plastics.

EPDM (ethylene-propylene-diene-
monomer)

Synthetic rubber.

Equity consolidation

The share in earnings after tax prorated ac-
cording to the proportion of ownership inter-
est is disclosed in the income statement under
the item “Investments in joint ventures and
associated companies”.

F

Full consolidation

All assets and liabilities, expenses and income
of the subsidiaries are included in full in the
consolidated financial statements. If the
shareholding is less than 100% the share in
equity not attributable to the group is report-
ed either in equity under non-controlling
interests or in debt under redeemable non-
controlling interests.
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IFRS (International Financial Reporting
Standards)

Accounting standards developed by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). In addition to the International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Inter-
national Accounting Standards (IAS) of the
IASB, it also incorporates the Interpretations
of the International Financial Reporting Inter-
pretations Committee (IFRIC) and the Inter-
pretations of the Standing Interpretations
Committee (SIC).

Industrial Sector
The Industrial Sector comprises the Semper-
flex, Sempertrans and Semperform segments.

ISO (International Organization for
Standardization)

Institute responsible for coordinating stand-
ards worldwide.

K

Key account management

A type of marketing organisation. Preferred
treatment of buyers that hold a key position in
relation to a company’s success.

M

Market capitalisation

Number of shares multiplied by the share
price; market value of a company in absolute
terms.

Medical Sector
The Medical Sector consists of the segment
Sempermed.

Glossary

N

Natural latex
Milky juice of the rubber tree that is obtained
by grazing the bark.

Nitrile

Comprehensive term for a group of chemical
compounds — basic material for Semperit's
synthetic gloves.

0]

Organisation for Economic Cooperation
and Development (OECD)

An organisation of 30 industrial states aiming
to promote economic growth and global
trade.

P

Payout ratio
See dividend payout ratio.

Provisions

Accounting provisions for future obligations,
the extent and maturity of which cannot be
determined explicitly.

Price-earnings ratio
Share price divided by profit per share.

R

Return on equity
The return on equity in terms of earnings after
tax.

Vv

Vinyl
Thermoplastic polymer, e.g. polyvinyl chloride
(PVQ).
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Contact Financial Calendar 2016

10.03.2017 Publication of 2016 annual financial statements
Semperit AG Holding 13.05.2017 Record date for the Annual General Meeting
Modecenterstrasse 22 16.05.2017  Report on the first quarter of 2017
1031 Vienna, Austria 23.05.2017 Annual General Meeting, Vienna
Tel.: +43 1797770 29.05.2017 Last possible day to purchase shares entitled to
Fax: +43 179 777 600 receive the dividend
www.semperitgroup.com/en 30.05.2017 Dividend ex day

31.05.2017 Dividend record date (= day at the end of which
CSD Austria determines the securities entitled to
receive the dividend)

01.06.2017 Dividend payment day
17.08.2017 Half-year financial report 2017
16.11.2017 Report on the first three quarters 2017

Investor Relations

Stefan Marin

Tel.: +43 179777 210
investor@semperitgroup.com

www.semperitgroup.com/en/ir

Addresses of the Semperit Group
www.semperitgroup.com/en/contact
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